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a currently valid OMB number. ificant to the fair value measurement of the financial instrument. Valuation techniques using
unobservable inputs reflect management�s assumptions about the estimates used by other market participants in
valuing similar financial instruments. These valuation techniques are developed based on the best available
information at the measurement date.

The availability of inputs observable in the market varies by product and can be affected by a variety of factors. Significant factors include, but
are not restricted to the prevalence of similar products in the market, especially for customized products, how established the product is in the
market, for example, whether it is a new product or is relatively mature, and the reliability of information provided in the market which would
depend, for example, on the frequency and volume of current data. A period of significant change in the market may reduce the availability of
observable data. Under such circumstances, financial instruments may be reclassified into a lower level in the fair value hierarchy.

Significant judgments used in determining the classification of financial instruments include the nature of the market in which the product would
be traded, the underlying risks, the type and liquidity of market data inputs and the nature of observed transactions for similar instruments.
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Where valuation models include the use of parameters which are less observable or unobservable in the market, significant management
judgment is used in establishing fair value. The valuations for Level 3 financial instruments, therefore, involve a greater degree of judgment than
those valuations for Level 1 or Level 2 financial instruments.

Certain criteria management use to determine whether a market is active or inactive include the number of transactions, the frequency that
pricing is updated by other market participants, the variability of price quotes among market participants, and the amount of publicly available
information.

Level 3 financial assets excluding derivatives as a proportion of total financial assets excluding derivatives, carried at fair value on a recurring
basis was 3% as of March 31, 2013 as listed below:

Billions of yen
March 31, 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Counterparty
and Cash
Collateral
Netting Total

The proportion
of Level 3

Financial assets measured at fair value (Excluding
derivative assets) ¥ 8,638 ¥ 8,739 ¥ 546 ¥ �  ¥ 17,923 3%
Derivative assets 728 26,479 368 (25,684) 1,891
Derivative liabilities 830 26,296 395 (25,636) 1,885
See Note 2 �Fair value measurements� in our consolidated financial statements.

Private equity business

All private equity investments made by investment company subsidiaries pursuant to the provisions of ASC 946 �Financial Services�Investment
Companies� (�ASC 946�) are accounted for at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized through the consolidated statements of income.

The valuation of unlisted private equity investments requires significant management judgment because the investments, by their nature, have
little or no price transparency. Private equity investments are initially carried at cost as an approximation of fair value. Adjustments to carrying
value are made if there is third-party evidence of a change in value. Adjustments are also made, in the absence of thirdparty transactions, if it is
determined that
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the expected exit price of the investment is different from carrying value. In reaching that determination, Nomura primarily uses either a
discounted cash flow (�DCF�) or market multiple valuation technique. A DCF valuation technique incorporates estimated future cash flows to be
generated from the underlying investee, as adjusted for an appropriate growth rate discounted at a weighted average cost of capital. Market
multiple valuation techniques include comparables such as Enterprise Value/earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ratios,
Price/Earnings ratios, Price/Book ratios, Price/Embedded Value ratios and other multiples based on relationships between numbers reported in
the financial statements of the investee and the price of comparable companies. A liquidity discount may also be applied to either a DCF or
market multiple valuation to reflect the specific characteristics of the investee. Where possible these valuations are compared with the operating
cash flows and financial performance of the companies or properties relative to budgets or projections, price/earnings data for similar quoted
investee, trends within sectors and/or regions and any specific rights or terms associated with the investment, such as conversion features and
liquidation preferences. Private equity investments are generally classified as Level 3 since the valuation inputs such as those mentioned above
are usually unobservable.

Any changes to valuations are then stress tested to assess the impact of particular risk factors in order to establish the final estimated valuation.
For more information on our private equity activities, see �Private Equity Business� below.

Derivative contracts

We use a variety of derivative financial instruments including futures, forwards, swaps and options, for trading and non-trading purposes. All
derivatives are carried at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized either through the consolidated statements of income or the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income depending on the purpose for which the derivatives are used.

Fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments entered into under a legally enforceable master netting agreement are offset in the
consolidated balance sheets and fair value amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral (a receivable) and the obligation to return
cash collateral (a payable) are also offset against net derivative liabilities and net derivative assets, respectively.

Derivative contracts consist of listed derivatives and OTC derivatives. The fair value of listed derivatives are generally determined from quoted
market prices. OTC derivatives are valued using valuation models. Listed derivative and OTC derivative assets and liabilities after netting are
shown below:

Billions of yen
March 31, 2012

Assets Liabilities
Listed derivatives ¥ 304 ¥ 334
OTC derivatives 1,056 974

¥ 1,360 ¥ 1,308

Billions of yen
March 31, 2013

Assets Liabilities
Listed derivatives ¥ 443 ¥ 559
OTC derivatives 1,448 1,326

¥ 1,891 ¥ 1,885
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The fair value of OTC derivative assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2013 by remaining contractual maturity are shown below:

Billions of yen
March 31, 2013

Years to Maturity
Less than
1 year

1 to 3
years

3 to 5
years

5 to 7
years

More than
7 years

Cross-maturity
netting(1)

Total
fair value

OTC derivative assets ¥ 796 ¥ 1,015 ¥ 1,049 ¥ 860 ¥ 2,854 ¥ (5,126) ¥ 1,448
OTC derivative liabilities 916 790 1,056 767 2,611 (4,814) 1,326

(1) This column shows the impact of netting derivative assets with derivative liabilities for the same counterparty across maturity band
categories. Derivative assets and derivative liabilities with the same counterparty in the same maturity category are netted within the
maturity category. This column also includes cash collateral netting with the same counterparty.

The fair value of derivative contracts includes adjustments for credit risk, both with regards to counterparty credit risk on positions held and our
own creditworthiness on positions issued. We realize gains or losses relating to changes in credit risk on our derivative contracts together with
the movements of trading positions, which include derivatives, that are expected to mitigate the above mentioned impact of changes in credit
risk.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recognized upon completion of a business combination as the difference between the purchase price and the fair value of the net
assets acquired. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impairment at a reporting unit level during the
fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or more frequently during interim periods if events or circumstances indicate there may be impairment.
Nomura�s reporting units are at one level below its business segments.

Nomura tests goodwill of each separate reporting unit by initially qualitatively assessing whether events and circumstances indicate that it is
more-likely-than-not (i.e. greater than 50%) that a reporting unit�s fair value is less than its carrying amount. If such assessment indicates fair
value is not less than the carrying value, the reporting unit is deemed not to be impaired and no further analysis is required. If it is
more-likely-than-not that the fair value of the reporting unit is below its carrying value, a quantitative two-step impairment test is then
performed.

In the first step, the current estimated fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its carrying value, including goodwill. If the fair value is
less than the carrying value, then a second step is performed. In the second step, the implied current fair value of the reporting unit�s goodwill is
determined by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to the fair value of the net assets of the reporting unit, as if the reporting unit were
being acquired in a business combination. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its implied current fair
value.

For the year ended March 31, 2013, we recognized a goodwill impairment loss on goodwill relating to the Wholesale segment of ¥8,293 million
within Non-interest expenses�Other in the consolidated statements of income, due to a decline in fair value of a reporting unit in the Wholesale
segment caused by the prolonged economic downturn. The fair value was determined based on DCF.

Assets and Liabilities Associated with Investment and Financial Services Business

Exposure to Certain Financial Instruments and Counterparties

Challenging market conditions continue to impact numerous products including securitization products and leveraged finance to which we have
certain exposures. We also have exposures to Special Purpose Entities (�SPEs�) and others in the normal course of business.
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Securitization Products

Our exposure to securitization products consists of commercial mortgage-backed securities (�CMBS�), residential mortgage-backed securities
(�RMBS�), commercial real estate-backed securities and other securitization products. We hold these securitization products in connection with
securitization, financing, trading and other activities. The following table provides a summary of our exposure to securitization products by
geographic region of the underlying collateral as of March 31, 2013.

Millions of yen
March 31, 2013

Japan Europe Americas
Asia and
Oceania Total(1)

CMBS(2) ¥ 6,014 ¥ 15,324 ¥ 63,866 ¥ 571 ¥ 85,775
RMBS(3) 38,077 33,200 309,424 �  380,701
Commercial real estate-backed securities 2,500 �  �  �  2,500
Other securitization products(4) 114,127 8,831 138,204 1,867 263,029

Total ¥ 160,718 ¥ 57,355 ¥ 511,494 ¥ 2,438 ¥ 732,005

(1) The balances shown exclude certain CMBS of ¥20,551 million for which we transferred financial assets to securitization vehicles where
such transfers were accounted for as secured financings rather than sales under ASC 860, �Transfers and Servicing� (�ASC 860�), and in
which we have no continuing economic exposure because the beneficial interests in the vehicles have been sold to third parties.

(2) We have ¥10,617 million exposure, as whole loans and commitments, to U.S. CMBS-related business as of March 31, 2013.
(3) The RMBS balance for Americas excludes mortgage pass-through securities and U.S. government-guaranteed collateralized mortgage

obligations (�CMO�) of ¥2,343,620 million, because their credit risks are considered minimal.
(4) Includes collateralized loan obligations (�CLO�), collateralized debt obligations (�CDO�) and asset-backed securities (�ABS�) such as those

secured on credit card loans, auto loans, student loans and home equity loans.
The following table provides our exposure to CMBS by geographic region and the external credit ratings of the underlying collateral as of
March 31, 2013. Ratings are based on the lowest ratings given by Standard & Poor�s Financial Services LLC, Moody�s Investors Service, Inc.,
Fitch Ratings Ltd., Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. or Rating and Investment Information, Inc. as of March 31, 2013.

Millions of yen
March 31, 2013

AAA AA A BBB BB B Not rated Total
Japan ¥ �  ¥ �  ¥ 709 ¥ �  ¥ 394 ¥ 96 ¥ 4,815 ¥ 6,014
Europe �  59 4,745 3,681 2,989 2,950 900 15,324
Americas 10,797 8,651 5,338 6,695 12,071 11,430 8,884 63,866
Asia and Oceania 571 �  �  �  �  �  �  571

Total ¥ 11,368 ¥ 8,710 ¥ 10,792 ¥ 10,376 ¥ 15,454 ¥ 14,476 ¥ 14,599 ¥ 85,775

Leveraged Finance

We provide loans to clients in connection with leveraged buy-outs and leveraged buy-ins. As this type of financing is usually initially provided
through a commitment, we have both funded and unfunded exposures on these transactions.
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The following table sets forth our exposure to leveraged finance by geographic location of the target company as of March 31, 2013.

Millions of yen
March 31, 2013

Funded Unfunded Total
Europe ¥ 33,468 ¥ 28,164 ¥ 61,632
Americas 5,166 49,990 55,156
Asia and Oceania 1,482 797 2,279

Total ¥ 40,116 ¥ 78,951 ¥ 119,067

Special Purpose Entities (�SPEs�)

Our involvement with these entities includes structuring, underwriting, as well as, subject to prevailing market conditions, distributing and
selling debt instruments and beneficial interests issued by these entities. In the normal course of securitization and equity derivative activities
business, we also act as a transferor of financial assets to, and underwriter, distributor and seller of repackaged financial instruments issued by
these entities. We retain, purchase and sell variable interests in SPEs in connection with our market-making, investing and structuring activities.
Our other types of involvement with SPEs include guarantee agreements and derivative contracts.

For further discussion on Nomura�s involvement with variable interest entities (�VIEs�), see Note 8 �Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities� in
our consolidated financial statements.

Accounting Developments

See Note 1 �Summary of accounting policies: New accounting pronouncements adopted during the current year� in our consolidated financial
statements included in this annual report.

Private Equity Business

We make private equity investments primarily in Japan and Europe.

Private equity investments made by certain entities which we consolidates under either a voting interest or variable interest model which are
investment companies pursuant to the provisions of ASC 946 (�investment company subsidiaries�) are accounted for at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognized through the consolidated statements of income. Investment company accounting applied by each of these investment
company subsidiaries is retained in these consolidated financial statements within this annual report.

These entities make private equity investments solely for capital appreciation, current income or both rather than to generate strategic operating
benefits to us. In accordance with our investment policies, non-investment companies within the group may not make investments in entities
engaged in non-core businesses if such investments would result in consolidation or application of the equity method of accounting. Such
investments may generally only be made by investment company subsidiaries. Non-core businesses are defined as those engaged in activities
other than our business segments.

We also have a subsidiary which is not an investment company but which makes investments in entities engaged in our core businesses. These
investments are made for capital appreciation or current income purposes or both and are also carried at fair value, either because of election of
the fair value option or other U.S. GAAP requirements.
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Private equity business in Japan

We have an established private equity business in Japan, which has been operated primarily through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Nomura
Principal Finance Co., Ltd (�NPF�). NPF is an investment company subsidiary pursuant to the provisions of ASC 946 and therefore has carried all
of its investments at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized through the consolidated statements of income.

Since its inception in 2000, NPF had made investments in 21 entities, however, we exited from the majority of these investments for the year
ended March 31, 2012 and as a result, the fair value of its investment portfolio as of March 31, 2012 was ¥789 million. And, we exited from the
remaining investments held by NPF during the year ended March 31, 2013, therefore, the fair value of its investment portfolio was ¥nil as of
March 31, 2013.

We also make private equity investments through another wholly-owned subsidiary, Nomura Financial Partners Co., Ltd. (�NFP�). NFP is not an
investment company subsidiary as it invests in entities engaged in our core business. We elected the fair value option to account for its 47.0%
investment in the common stock of Ashikaga Holdings

Private equity business in Europe

In Europe, our private equity investments primarily comprise legacy investments made by its former Principal Finance Group (�PFG�) now
managed by Terra Firma (collectively referred to as the �Terra Firma Investments�), investments in other funds managed by Terra Firma (�Other
Terra Firma Funds�) and through other investment company subsidiaries (�Other Investments�).

Terra Firma Investments

Following a review to determine the optimum structure for our European private equity business, on March 27, 2002, we restructured PFG and,
as a result, contributed its investments in certain of its remaining investee companies to Terra Firma Capital Partners I (�TFCP I�), a limited
partnership which is engaged in the private equity business, in exchange for a limited partnership interest. Terra Firma Investments (GP)
Limited, the general partner of TFCP I, which is independent of us, assumed the management and control of these investments, together with
one other PFG investment, Annington Holdings plc (�Annington�), which due to contractual restrictions was not transferred to the partnership.

With effect from March 27, 2002, we ceased consolidating the Terra Firma Investments and accounted for those investments at fair value in
accordance with ASC 946.

The Terra Firma Investments are held by entities which are investment company subsidiaries and therefore we continue to account for these
investments at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized through the consolidated statements of income.

In December 2012, we completed the sale of Annington to Terra Firma and as a result, the fair value of the Terra Firma Investments fell from
¥102,649 million as of March 31, 2012 to ¥nil as of March 31, 2013.

Other Terra Firma Funds

We are a 10% investor in a ¥234 billion private equity fund (�TFCP II�) and a 2% investor in a ¥623 billion private equity fund (�TFCP III�), also
raised and managed by Terra Firma Capital Partners Limited.

Our total commitment for TFCP II was originally ¥23,362 million and reduced to ¥4,001 million as a result of adjustments for recyclable
distributions. As of March 31, 2013, ¥3,957 million had been drawn down for investments.
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For TFCP III, our total commitment was ¥11,793 million and ¥11,094 million had been drawn down for investments as of March 31, 2013.

The investments in TFCP II and TFCP III are carried at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized through the consolidated statements of
income.

Other Investments

We also make private equity investments in Europe through wholly-owned subsidiaries and other consolidated entities which have third party
pooling of funds. Certain of these entities are investment company subsidiaries and therefore all of their investments are carried at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognized through the consolidated statements of income.

Deferred Tax Assets Information

Details of deferred tax assets and liabilities

Details of deferred tax assets and liabilities reported within Other assets�Other and Other liabilities respectively in the consolidated balance
sheets as of March 31, 2013 are as follows:

Millions of yen
March 31, 2013

Deferred tax assets
Depreciation, amortization and valuation of fixed assets ¥ 10,043
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates 177,175
Valuation of financial instruments 146,800
Accrued pension and severance costs 17,999
Other accrued expenses and provisions 106,436
Operating losses 341,177
Other 5,228

Gross deferred tax assets 804,858
Less�Valuation allowance (522,220) 

Total deferred tax assets 282,638

Deferred tax liabilities
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates 88,631
Valuation of financial instruments 53,367
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries 2,960
Valuation of fixed assets 21,950
Other 4,210

Total deferred tax liabilities 171,118

Net deferred tax assets ¥ 111,520

Calculation method of deferred tax assets

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, we recognize deferred tax assets to the extent we believe that it is more likely than not that a benefit will be
realized. A valuation allowance is provided for tax benefits available to us, which are not deemed more likely than not to be realized.
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B. Liquidity and Capital Resources.

Funding and Liquidity Management

Overview

We define liquidity risk as the potential inability to meet financial obligations as they become due. This risk could arise from an inability to
access the secured or unsecured debt markets, a deterioration in our credit ratings, a failure to manage unplanned changes in funding
requirements, a failure to liquidate assets quickly and with minimal loss in value, or changes in regulatory capital restrictions which may prevent
the free flow of funds between different group entities. Liquidity risk could be due both to Nomura-specific and market-wide events. Liquidity
risk management policy is based on liquidity risk appetite which the Group Integrated Risk Management Committee formulates upon delegation
by the Executive Management Board (�EMB�). Our primary objective for liquidity risk management is to ensure continuous liquidity across
market cycles and periods of market stress, and to ensure that all funding requirements and unsecured debt obligations that fall due within one
year can be met without additional unsecured funding or forced liquidation of assets.

We have in place a number of Liquidity Risk Management frameworks that enable us to achieve our primary liquidity objective. These
frameworks include (1) Centralized Control of Residual Cash; (2) Appropriate Funding and Diversification of Funding Sources and Maturities
Commensurate with the Composition of Assets; (3) Management of Credit Lines to Nomura Group Entities; (4) Implementation of Liquidity
Stress Tests; and (5) Contingency Funding Plan.

Our EMB has the authority to make decisions concerning the group liquidity management. The Chief Financial Officer (�CFO�) has the
operational authority and responsibility over our liquidity management based on decisions made by the EMB.

1.    Centralized Control of Residual Cash.

We centrally control residual cash held at Nomura Group entities for effective utilization purposes. As for the usage of funds, we manage the
overall level of unsecured funding and set internal limits on the additional amount of unsecured funding available across Nomura Group. The
limit for unsecured funding is set by the EMB and monitored closely by Global Treasury.

In order to enable us to transfer funds smoothly among group entities, we limit issuance of securities by regulated broker-dealers or banking
entities. We actively seek to concentrate issuance of all long-term unsecured, non-deposit funding instruments at either Nomura or unregulated
issuing entities. The primary benefits of this strategy include cost minimization, wider investor name recognition and greater flexibility in
providing funding to various subsidiaries across Nomura Group.

2.    Appropriate Funding and Diversification of Funding Sources and Maturities Commensurate with the Composition of Assets.

We seek to maintain a surplus of long-term debt and equity above the cash capital requirements of our assets. This enables us to fund our
operations for at least one year in a stress event, without needing to raise additional unsecured funding or forcing the liquidation of assets. The
amount of liquidity required is based on an internal model which incorporates the following requirements:

(i) Our ability to finance assets using secured funding, including repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions. The cash
capital requirements are calculated using conservative estimates of the assets secured borrowing power in stressed scenarios.

(ii) Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets, property, equipment and other illiquid assets.

(iii) Collateral requirements on derivative contracts arising as a result of a two-notch downgrade in our credit rating.
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Collateral requirements to support potential increased intraday collateral requirements from our clearers and settlement agents arising
as a result of a two-notch downgrade in our credit rating.

In addition, other unencumbered assets held at exchanges for chaining requirements are also funded with long-term liquidity.

(iv) Commitments to lend to external counterparties based on the probability of drawdown.

(v) Capital or other forms of financing in our regulated subsidiaries that is in excess of their long-term cash capital requirements.
Our internal model takes into account legal, regulatory and tax restrictions that may impact the ability to freely transfer of liquidity across the
entities within the group.

We seek to achieve diversification of our funding sources by market, instrument type, investors and currency in order to reduce our reliance on
any one funding source and reduce refinancing risk. We benefit by distributing a significant portion of our debt through our retail and
institutional sales force to a diversified global investor base.

We diversify funding by issuing various types of debt instruments�these include both structured loans and notes. Structured notes are debt
obligations with returns linked to other debt or equity securities, indices, currencies or commodities. We issue structured notes in order to
increase the diversity of our debt instruments. We typically hedge the returns we are obliged to pay with derivative positions and/or the
underlying assets to maintain funding consistency with our unsecured long term debt. The proportion of our non-yen denominated long-term
debt slightly increased to 29.7% of total term debt outstanding as of March 31, 2013 from 28.0% as of March 31, 2012.

2.1    Short-Term Unsecured Debt

Our short-term unsecured debt consists primarily of short-term bank borrowings (including long-term bank borrowings maturing within one
year), commercial paper, deposits at banking entities, certificates of deposit and bonds and notes maturing within one year. Deposits at banking
entities and certificates of deposit comprise customer deposits and certificates of deposit held by our banking subsidiaries.

Our total short-term unsecured debt decreased ¥715.8 billion to ¥2,293.3 billion as of March 31, 2013 from ¥3,009.1 billion as of March 31,
2012 mainly due to a ¥629.4 billion decrease in short-term bank borrowings to ¥621.3 billion as of March 31, 2013 from ¥1,250.7 billion as of
March 31, 2012. The average outstanding balance of commercial paper was ¥262.0 billion for the period ended in March 31, 2013.

The following table presents an analysis of our short-term unsecured debt by type of financial liability as of March 31, 2012 and 2013:

Billions of yen
March 31

2012 2013
Short-term bank borrowings ¥ 1,250.7 ¥ 621.3
Other loans 99.0 42.4
Commercial paper 315.6 296.7
Deposit at banking entities 589.8 781.4
Certificates of deposit 234.7 214.5
Bonds and notes maturing within one year 519.3 337.0

Total short-term unsecured debt(1) ¥ 3,009.1 ¥ 2,293.3

(1) Short-term unsecured debt includes the current portion of long-term unsecured debt.
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2.2    Long-Term Unsecured Debt

We also routinely issue long term-debt in various maturities and currencies to maintain a long-term funding surplus, and to also achieve both
cost-effective funding and a maturity profile where the average duration of our debt is sufficient to meet our long-term cash capital requirements.

Our long-term unsecured debt includes senior and subordinated debt issued through U.S registered shelf offerings and our U.S. registered
medium-term note programs, our Euro medium-term note programs, registered shelf offerings in Japan and various other bond programs.

As a globally competitive financial service group in Japan, we have access to multiple markets worldwide and major funding centers. The
Company, NSC, Nomura Europe Finance N.V. (�NEF�) and Nomura Bank International plc (�NBI�) are the main group entities that borrow
externally, issue debt instruments and engage in other funding activities. By raising funds to match the currencies and liquidities of our assets or
by using foreign exchange swaps as may be necessary, we pursue optimization of our funding structures.

We use a wide range of products and currencies to ensure that our funding is efficient and well diversified across markets and investor types.
Our unsecured senior debt is issued without financial covenants, such as covenants related to adverse changes in our credit ratings, cash flows,
results of operations or financial ratios, which could trigger an increase in our cost of financing or accelerate the maturity of the debt.

The following table presents an analysis of our long-term unsecured debt by type of financial liability as of March 31, 2012 and 2013.

Billions of yen
March 31

2012 2013
Long-term deposit at banking entities ¥ 80.2 ¥ 76.2
Long-term bank borrowings 2,589.1 2,173.7
Other loans 144.4 133.9
Bonds and notes(1) 3,559.3 4,073.5

Total long-term unsecured debt total ¥ 6,373.0 ¥ 6,457.3

NHI shareholders� equity ¥ 2,107.2 ¥ 2,294.4

(1) Excludes �long-term bonds and notes issued by consolidated VIEs� that meet the definition of Variable Interest Entities (�VIEs�) under ASC
810, �Consolidation� (�ASC 810�) and secured financing transactions recognized within long-term borrowings as a result of transfers of
financial assets that are accounted for as financings rather than sales in accordance with ASC 860.

Our long-term debt increased ¥84.3 billion to ¥6,457.3 billion as of March 31, 2013 from ¥6,373.0 billion as of March 31, 2012, primarily due to
¥514.2 billion increase in bonds and notes to ¥4,073.5 billion as of March 31, 2013 from ¥3,559.3 billion as of March 31, 2012. The increase
was partly offset by a ¥415.4 billion decrease in long-term bank borrowings to ¥2,173.7 billion as of March 31, 2013 from ¥2,589.1 billion as of
March 31, 2012.

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, Nomura issued ¥539.6 billion of domestic and global senior bonds.

2.3    Maturity Profile

We also seek to maintain an average maturity for plain vanilla instruments greater than or equal to three years. The average maturity for plain
vanilla debt securities and borrowings with maturities longer than one year was 3.80 years as of March 31, 2013. A major part of our
medium-term notes are structured and linked to interest
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or equity, indices, currencies or commodities. Conditions for calling notes linked to indices are individually determined. These maturities are
evaluated based on our internal model and monitored by Global Treasury. Maturities for plain vanilla debt securities and borrowings are
evaluated based on contractual maturities. Where there is a possibility that notes may be called prior to their scheduled maturity date, maturities
are based on our internal stress option adjusted model. This model values the embedded optionality under stress market conditions in order to
determine when the note is likely to be called.

On this basis, the average maturity of structured notes (notes with maturities longer than one year) was 7.95 years as of March 31, 2013. The
average maturity of our entire long-term debt portfolio, including plain vanilla debt securities and borrowings, was 5.19 years as of March 31,
2013. The graph below shows the distribution of maturities of our outstanding long-term debt securities and borrowings.

Redemptionschedule is individually estimated by considering the probability of redemption.
2.4    Secured Borrowings

We typically fund our trading activities on a secured basis through secured borrowings, repurchase agreements and Japanese �Gensaki Repo�
transactions. Repo transactions involve the selling of government and government agency securities under agreements with clients to repurchase
these securities from clients. Japanese �Gensaki Repo� transactions have no margin requirements or substitution right. We believe these funding
activities in the secured markets are more cost-efficient and less credit-rating sensitive than financing in the unsecured market. Also, repurchase
agreements tend to be short-term, often overnight. We manage the liquidity risks arising from secured funding by transacting with a diverse
group of global counterparties, delivering various types of securities collateral and actively seeking for long-term agreements. For more detail of
secured borrowings and repurchase agreements, see Note 6 �Collateralized transactions� in our consolidated financial statements.

3.    Management of Credit Lines to Nomura Group entities

We maintain committed facility agreements with financial institutions for Nomura Group entities in order to provide contingent financing
sources. Total unused committed facilities decreased ¥60.3 billion to ¥78.0 billion
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as of March 31, 2013 from ¥138.3 billion as of March 31, 2012. We have structured facilities to ensure that the maturity dates of these facilities
are distributed evenly throughout the year in order to prevent excessive maturities of facilities in any given period. While the ability to borrow
under these facilities is subject to customary lending conditions and covenants, we do not believe that any of the covenant requirements will
impair our ability to draw on the facilities. We occasionally test the effectiveness of our drawdown procedures.

4.    Implementation of Liquidity Stress Tests

We maintain our liquidity portfolio and monitor our sufficiency of liquidity based on an internal model which simulates changes in cash outflow
under specified stress scenarios to comply with our above mentioned liquidity management policy.

We assess the liquidity requirements of the Nomura Group under various stress scenarios with differing levels of severity over multiple time
horizons. We evaluate these requirements under Nomura-specific and broad market wide events, including potential credit rating downgrades at
our parent company and subsidiary levels that may impact us by loss of access to unsecured capital markets, additional collateral posting
requirements, limited or no access to secured funding markets and other events. We call this risk analysis our �Maximum Cumulative Outflow
(�MCO�)� framework.

The MCO framework is designed to incorporate the primary liquidity risks for Nomura and models the relevant cash flows in the following two
primary scenarios:

� Stressed scenario�To maintain adequate liquidity during a severe market-wide liquidity event without raising additional funds through
unsecured financing or the liquidation of assets for a year; and

� Acute stress scenario�To maintain adequate liquidity during a severe market-wide liquidity event coupled with credit concerns
regarding Nomura�s liquidity position, without raising additional funds through unsecured funding or the liquidation of assets for one
month.

We assume that Nomura will not be able to liquidate assets or adjust its business model during the time horizons used in each of these scenarios.
The MCO framework therefore defines the amount of liquidity required to be held in order to meet our expected liquidity needs in a stress event
to a level we believe appropriate based on our liquidity risk appetite.

As of March 31, 2013, our liquidity portfolio exceeded net cash outflows under the stress scenarios described above.

To ensure a readily available source for a potential liquidity requirement, we maintain a liquidity portfolio in the form of cash and highly liquid,
unencumbered securities that may be sold or pledged to provide liquidity. As of March 31, 2013, our liquidity portfolio was ¥5,883.5 billion
which generated a liquidity surplus taking into account a stress scenario as defined in our liquidity risk policy. We recognize that the liquidity
standards for financial institutions continue to be the subject of further discussion among the relevant supervisory bodies including the Basel
Committee. The existing model and simulations upon which we currently rely may need to be reviewed depending on any new development in
this area.
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The following table presents a breakdown of our liquidity portfolio by type of financial assets as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 and yearly
averages maintained during the fiscal year. Yearly averages are calculated using month-end amounts.

Billions of yen
Average for

fiscal year ended
March 31,
2012

As of
March 31,
2012

Average for
fiscal year ended
March 31, 2013

As of
March 31,
2013

Cash, cash equivalent and time deposits(1) ¥ 1,156.3 ¥ 1,137.3 ¥ 911.1 ¥ 960.6
Government securities 4,433.1 3,877.4 4,712.3 4,512.3
Others(2) 477.4 413.0 480.3 410.6

Total liquidity portfolio ¥ 6,066.8 ¥ 5,427.7 ¥ 6,103.7 ¥ 5,883.5

(1) Cash, cash equivalents, and time deposits include nostro balance and deposits with both central banks and market counterparties that are
readily available to support the liquidity position of Nomura.

(2) Others include other liquid financial assets such as money market funds and U.S. agency securities.
The following table presents a breakdown of our liquidity portfolio by currency as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 and yearly averages maintained
during the fiscal year. Yearly averages are calculated using month-end amounts.

Billions of yen
Average for

fiscal year ended
March 31,
2012

As of
March 31,
2012

Average for
fiscal year ended
March 31, 2013

As of
March 31,
2013

Japanese Yen ¥ 1,970.5 ¥ 1,531.1 ¥ 1,836.6 ¥ 1,362.2
US Dollar 1,714.6 2,273.3 2,445.6 2,355.1
Euro 1,691.1 813.4 816.1 876.5
British Pound 491.5 487.2 695.9 752.6
Others(1) 199.1 322.7 309.5 537.1

Total liquidity portfolio ¥ 6,066.8 ¥ 5,427.7 ¥ 6,103.7 ¥ 5,883.5

(1) Others include other currencies such as the Canadian dollar, the Australian dollar, and the Swiss franc.
We assess our liquidity portfolio requirements globally as well as by each major operating entity in the Nomura group. We primarily maintain
our liquidity portfolio at Nomura Holdings, Inc. (�NHI�), Nomura Securities Co. Ltd (�NSC�), our other major broker-dealer subsidiaries and our
bank subsidiaries. In determining the amounts and entities which hold this portfolio, we consider legal, regulatory and tax restrictions which may
impact our ability to freely transfer liquidity across different entities in the Nomura Group. For more information regarding regulatory
restrictions, see Note 20 �Regulatory requirements� in our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report.

The following table presents a breakdown of our liquidity portfolio by entity as of March 31, 2012 and 2013:

Billions of yen
March 31

    2012    2013
NHI and NSC(1) ¥ 1,535.6 ¥ 1,616.9
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Major broker-dealer subsidiaries 2,724.7 3,179.0
Bank subsidiaries 921.7 775.3
Other group entities 245.7 312.3

Total liquidity portfolio ¥ 5,427.7 ¥ 5,883.5
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(1) NSC, a broker dealer located in Japan, holds an account with the BOJ and has a direct access to the BOJ Lombard facility through which
same day funding is available for our securities pool. Liquidity surplus at NHI is lent to NSC via short-term intercompany loans, which can
be unwound immediately when needed.

In addition to the liquidity portfolio, we have ¥1,168.4 billion of other unencumbered assets comprising mainly unpledged trading assets that can
be used as an additional source of secured funding. The aggregate value of our liquidity portfolios and other unencumbered assets as of
March 31, 2013 was ¥7,051.9 billion which represented 307.5% of our total unsecured debt maturing within one year.

Billions of yen
March 31

2012 2013
Net liquidity value of other unencumbered assets ¥ 1,289.6 ¥ 1,168.4
Liquidity portfolio 5,427.7 5,883.5

Total ¥ 6,717.3 ¥ 7,051.9

In the stress test, we assume the cash outflow as shown below and also assume that in certain instances, legal and regulatory requirements can
restrict the flow of funds between entities in our consolidated group, and funds or securities may not freely move among us.

The size and structure of our liquidity portfolio takes into account immediate cash requirements arising from

(i) Upcoming maturities of unsecured debt (maturities less than one year)

(ii) Potential buybacks of our outstanding debt

(iii) Loss of secured funding lines particularly for less liquid assets, over and above our cash capital estimates

(iv) Fluctuation of funding needs under normal business circumstances

(v) Cash and collateral outflows in a stress event
We constantly evaluate and modify our liquidity risk assumptions based on regulatory and market changes. The model we use in order to
simulate the impact of stress scenarios assumes no liquidation of assets, no ability to issue additional unsecured funding, a widening of haircuts
on outstanding repo funding, collateralization of clearing banks and depositories, drawdowns on loan commitments and loss of liquidity from
market losses on inventory.

In 2008, the Basel Committee published Principles for Sound Liquidity Risk Management and Supervision (�Sound Principles�). To complement
these principles, the Committee has further strengthened its liquidity framework by developing two minimum standards for funding liquidity.
These standards have been developed to achieve two separate but complementary objectives.

The first objective is to promote short-term resilience of a bank�s liquidity risk profile by ensuring that it has sufficient high-quality liquid assets
to survive a significant stress scenario lasting for one month. The Committee developed the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (�LCR�) to achieve this
objective.

The second objective is to promote resilience over a longer time horizon by creating additional incentives for banks to fund their activities with
more stable sources of funding on an ongoing basis. The Net Stable Funding Ratio (�NSFR�) has a time horizon of one year and has been
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These two standards are comprised mainly of specific parameters which are internationally �harmonised� with prescribed values. Certain
parameters, however, contain elements of national discretion to reflect jurisdiction-specific conditions.

After an observation period, the LCR, including any revisions, will be introduced on January 1, 2015. The NSFR, including any revisions, will
move to a minimum standard by January 1, 2018.

5.    Contingency Funding Plan

We have developed a detailed contingency funding plan to integrate liquidity risk control into our comprehensive risk management strategy and
to enhance the quantitative aspects of our liquidity risk control procedures. As a part of our Contingency Funding Plan (�CFP�), we have
developed an approach for analyzing and quantifying the impact of any liquidity crisis. This allows us to estimate the likely impact of both
Nomura-specific and market-wide events; and specifies the immediate action to be taken to mitigate any risk. The CFP lists details of key
internal and external parties to be contacted and the processes by which information is to be disseminated. This has been developed at a legal
entity level in order to capture specific cash requirements at the local level�it assumes that our parent company does not have access to cash that
may be trapped at a subsidiary level due to regulatory, legal or tax constraints. We periodically test the effectiveness of our funding plans for
different Nomura-specific and market-wide events. We also have access to central banks including but not exclusively the Bank of Japan, which
provide financing against various types of securities. These operations are accessed in the normal course of business and are an important tool in
mitigating contingent risk from market disruptions.

Cash Flows

Nomura�s cash flows are primarily generated from operating activities undertaken in connection with our client flows and trading and from
financing activities which are closely related to such activities. As a financial institution, growth in operations tends to result in cash outflows
from operating activities as well as investing activities, as was generally the case for a number of years through the fiscal year ended March 31,
2011. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, we recorded net cash inflows from operating activities and investing activities, and for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2013, we recorded net cash inflows from operating activities and net cash outflows from investing activities as discussed
in the comparative analysis below.
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The following is the summary information on our consolidated cash flows for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013:

Billions of yen
Year Ended March 31
2012 2013

Net cash provided by operating activities ¥ 290.9 ¥ 549.5
Net income 26.1 105.7
Trading assets and private equity investments 971.3 (1,448.5) 
Trading liabilities (1,058.4) 248.0
Securities purchased under agreements to resell, net of securities sold under agreements to repurchase 980.2 1,375.9
Securities borrowed, net of securities loaned (508.8) 863.5
Other, net (119.4) (595.2) 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 9.9 (160.5) 
Net cash used in financing activities (844.3) (701.6) 
Long-term borrowings, net (867.6) (400.2) 
Other, net 23.3 (301.5) 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (6.3) 47.2

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (549.8) (265.4) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,620.3 1,070.5

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ¥ 1,070.5 ¥ 805.1

See the consolidated statements of cash flows in our consolidated financial statements for more detailed information.

For the year ended March 31, 2013, our cash and cash equivalents decreased by ¥265.4 billion to ¥805.1 billion. Net cash of ¥701.6 billion was
used in financing activities due to cash outflows of ¥400.2 billion by net payments of Long-term borrowings. As part of trading activities, while
there were net cash outflows of ¥1,200.5 billion from cash inflows due to an increase in Trading liabilities in combination with cash outflows
due to an increase in Trading assets and Private equity investments, they were offset by ¥2,239.4 billion of net cash inflows from repo
transactions and securities borrowed and loaned transactions such as Securities purchased under agreements to resell, Securities sold under
agreements to repurchase, and Securities borrowed, net of Securities loaned. As a result, net cash of ¥549.5 billion was provided by operating
activities.

For the year ended March 31, 2012, our cash and cash equivalents decreased by ¥549.8 billion to ¥1,070.5 billion. Net cash of ¥844.3 billion
was used in financing activities due to cash outflows of ¥867.6 billion by net payments of Long-term borrowings. As part of trading activities,
while there were net cash outflows of ¥87.1 billion from cash inflows due to a decrease in Trading assets and Private equity investments in
combination with cash outflows due to a decrease in Trading liabilities, they were offset by ¥471.4 billion of net cash inflows from repo
transactions and securities borrowed and loaned transactions such as Securities purchased under agreements to resell, Securities sold under
agreements to repurchase, and Securities borrowed, net of Securities loaned. As a result, net cash of ¥290.9 billion was provided by operating
activities.

Balance Sheet and Financial Leverage

Total assets as of March 31, 2013, were ¥37,942.4 billion, a increase of ¥2,245.1 billion compared with ¥35,697.3 billion as of March 31, 2012,
reflecting increases in Securities purchased under agreements to resell and Trading assets. Total liabilities as of March 31, 2013, were
¥35,623.5 billion, a increase of ¥2,315.3 billion compared with ¥33,308.2 billion as of March 31, 2012, reflecting increases in Securities sold
under agreements
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to repurchase and Trading liabilities. NHI shareholders� equity as of March 31, 2013, was ¥2,294.4 billion, an increase of ¥187.2 billion
compared with ¥2,107.2 billion as of March 31, 2012, due to increases in Retained earnings and Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss).

We seek to maintain sufficient capital at all times to withstand losses due to extreme market movements. The EMB is responsible for
implementing and enforcing capital policies. This includes the determination of our balance sheet size and required capital levels. We
continuously review our equity capital base to ensure that it can support the economic risk inherent in our business. There are also regulatory
requirements for minimum capital of entities that operate in regulated securities or banking businesses.

As leverage ratios are commonly used by other financial institutions similar to us, we voluntarily provide a Leverage ratio and Adjusted leverage
ratio primarily for benchmarking purposes so that users of our annual report can compare our leverage against other financial institutions.
Adjusted leverage ratio is a non-GAAP financial measure that Nomura considers to be a useful supplemental measure of leverage. There are
currently no regulatory or statutory reporting requirements which require us to disclose leverage ratios.

The following table sets forth NHI shareholders� equity, total assets, adjusted assets and leverage ratios:

Billions of yen, except ratios
March 31

      2012            2013      
NHI shareholders� equity ¥ 2,107.2 ¥ 2,294.4
Total assets(1) 35,697.3 37,942.4
Adjusted assets(2) 21,954.7 23,827.1
Leverage ratio(3) 16.9x 16.5x
Adjusted leverage ratio(4) 10.4x 10.4x

(1) Reconciles to the total assets amount disclosed on the face of our consolidated balance sheets and therefore excludes the fair value of
securities transferred to counterparties under repo-to-maturity and certain Japanese securities lending transactions which are accounted for
as sales rather than collateralized financing arrangements. The fair value of securities derecognized under these agreements has not had a
significant impact on our reported Leverage and Adjusted leverage ratios as of March 2012. The fair value of securities derecognized
under these agreements as of March 2013 was ¥nil.

(2) Represents total assets less Securities purchased under agreements to resell and Securities borrowed. Adjusted assets is a non-GAAP
financial measure and is calculated as follows:

Billions of yen
March 31

      2012            2013      
Total assets ¥ 35,697.3 ¥ 37,942.4
Less:
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 7,662.7 8,295.4
Securities borrowed 6,079.9 5,819.9

Adjusted assets ¥ 21,954.7 ¥ 23,827.1

(3) Equals total assets divided by NHI shareholders� equity.
(4) Equals adjusted assets divided by NHI shareholders� equity.
Total assets increased by 6.3% reflecting primarily an increase in Trading assets. Total NHI shareholders� equity increased by 8.9%. As a result,
our leverage ratio fell from 16.9 times as of March 31, 2012 to 16.5 times as of March 31, 2013.
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Adjusted assets increased primarily due to an increase in Trading assets. As a result, our adjusted leverage ratio was 10.4 times as of March 31,
2012 and as of March 31, 2013.

Capital Management

Capital Management Policy

We seek to enhance shareholder value and to capture growing business opportunities by maintaining sufficient levels of capital. We review
levels of capital as appropriate, taking into consideration the economic risks inherent to operating our businesses, regulatory requirements, and
maintaining our credit ratings necessary to operate businesses globally.

Dividends

Nomura believes that pursuing a sustainable increase in shareholder value and paying dividends are essential to generating returns to our
shareholders. Nomura will strive to pay stable dividends using a consolidated payout ratio of 30 percent as a key indicator.

Dividend payments are determined by taking into account a comprehensive range of factors such as the tightening of Basel regulations and other
changes to the regulatory environment, as well as the Company�s consolidated financial performance.

Nomura paid a dividend of ¥2.0 per share for the first half and a dividend of ¥6.0 per share for the second half in line with its dividend policy for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.

With respect to retained earnings, in order to implement measures to adapt to regulatory changes and to increase shareholder value, we seek to
efficiently invest in business areas where high profitability and growth may reasonably be expected, including the development and expansion of
infrastructure.

The following table sets forth the amounts of dividends per share paid by us in respect of the periods indicated:

Fiscal year ended or ending March 31, First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total
2008 ¥ 8.50 ¥ 8.50 ¥ 8.50 ¥ 8.50 ¥ 34.00
2009 8.50 8.50 8.50 �  25.50
2010 �  4.00 �  4.00 8.00
2011 �  4.00 �  4.00 8.00
2012 �  4.00 �  2.00 6.00
2013 �  2.00 �  6.00 8.00
Stock Repurchases

We consider repurchase of treasury stock as an option in our financial strategy to respond quickly to changes in the business environment and to
increase shareholder value. We make announcements immediately after any decision to set up a share buyback program and conduct such
programs in accordance with internal guidelines.

Preferred Stock

Effective June 28, 2011, in order to respond to Basel III capital adequacy requirements, we have amended our Articles of Incorporation to enable
the issuance of each class of preferred stock with a provision for redemption upon the occurrence of certain events. (See �Preferred Stock� under
Item 10.B. of this annual report for further information.) We have no plans to issue preferred stock as of June 27, 2013. The amendment did not
result in any change to the total number of shares authorized to be issued.
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Consolidated Regulatory Capital Requirements

As discussed in Item 4.B. of this annual report, the FSA established the �Guideline for Financial Conglomerates Supervision� (�Financial
Conglomerates Guideline�) in June 2005 and set out the rules on consolidated regulatory capital. We started monitoring our consolidated capital
adequacy ratio in accordance with the Financial Conglomerates Guideline from April 2005.

From the end of March 2009, we elected to calculate the consolidated capital adequacy ratio according to the Bank Holding Companies Notice
as permitted under the Financial Instruments Business Operators Guidelines, although we continue to be monitored as a financial conglomerate
governed by the Financial Conglomerates Guideline.

The Company has been assigned as a Final Designated Parent Company who must calculate a consolidated capital adequacy ratio according to
the Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent Company in April 2011. Since then, we have been calculating our consolidated capital
adequacy ratio according to the Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent Company. Note that the Capital Adequacy Notice on Final
Designated Parent Company has been revised to be in line with Basel 2.5 Basel III, and, we have calculated Basel III-based consolidated capital
adequacy ratio from the end of March 2013, Basel 2.5 includes significant change in calculation method of market risk and Basel III includes
redefinition of capital items for the purpose of requiring higher quality of capital and expansion of the scope of credit risk-weighted assets
calculation.

In accordance with Article 2 of the Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent Company, our consolidated capital adequacy ratio is
currently calculated based on the amounts of common equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital (sum of common equity Tier 1 capital and additional
Tier 1 capital), total capital (sum of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital), credit risk-weighted assets, market risk and operational risk. As of
March 31 2013, our common equity Tier 1 capital ratio (common equity Tier 1 capital divided by risk-weighted assets) is 11.9%, Tier 1 capital
ratio (Tier 1 capital divided by risk-weighted assets) is 11.9% and consolidated capital adequacy ratio (total capital divided by risk-weighted
assets) is 13.9% and we were in compliance with the requirement for each ratio set out in the Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated
Parent Company (required level as of March 31, 2013 is 3.5% for common equity Tier 1 capital ratio, 4.5% for Tier 1 capital ratio and 8% for
consolidated capital adequacy ratio).

The following table presents the Company�s consolidated capital adequacy ratios as of March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013. Comparative
amounts as of March 31, 2012 are calculated based on the Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent Company in effect as of that
date (and therefore prior to the Basel III amendment).

Billions of yen, except ratios
March 31

        2012                2013        
Common equity Tier 1 capital ¥ �  ¥ 2,092.9
Tier 1 capital 2,090.2 2,092.9
Total capital 2,427.0 2,452.1
Risk-Weighted Assets
Credit risk-weighted assets 8,324.4 9,529.1
Market risk equivalent assets 3,924.6 5,846.1
Operational risk equivalent assets 2,432.0 2,171.4

Total risk-weighted assets ¥ 14,681.0 ¥ 17,546.7

Consolidated Capital Adequacy Ratios
Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio �  11.9% 
Tier 1 capital ratio 14.2% 11.9% 
Consolidated capital adequacy ratio 16.5% 13.9% 
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Common equity Tier 1 capital, additional Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital are calculated by deducting each regulatory adjustment from each
capital item, respectively. Each capital item and regulatory adjustment is defined in the Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent
Company and these new definitions of capital will come into effect gradually by transitional measures.

As of March 31, 2013, capital items for our common equity Tier 1 capital mainly consists of shareholder�s equity relating to the common stock
and all or part of subordinated debt which satisfies the requirements under Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent Company (such
as maturity) is included into capital items for Tier 2 capital. We have not issued any capital instruments which can be included into additional
Tier 1 capital.

Regulatory adjustment for our common equity Tier 1 capital mainly consists of a part of intangible assets and 50% of expected losses and
regulatory adjustment for our Tier 2 capital includes investments in additional Tier 1 capital instruments of other financial institutions and 50%
of expected losses. Regulatory adjustment for our additional Tier 1 capital will be included into regulatory adjustment for common equity Tier 1
capital, as we don�t have any outstanding additional Tier 1 capital instruments.

Market risk equivalent assets are calculated by using The Internal Models Approach for market risk. From the end of December, 2011, we are
required to calculate market risk equivalent assets under the Basel 2.5 rule, which is significantly larger than under the Basel II rule. Also, from
the end of March 2013, a part of securitization products is added to the scope of market risk calculation.

On the end of March, 2011, we started calculating credit risk-weighted assets and operational risk equivalent assets by using the foundation
Internal Ratings-Based Approach and The Standardized Approach, respectively, with the approval of the FSA. Furthermore, from the end of
December, 2012, upon approval from the FSA, we started using the Internal Model Method for credit risk exposure calculation of majority of
derivative and repurchase transactions instead of the Current Exposure Method or the Comprehensive Method. Since the end of March 2013, the
scope of credit risk-weighted assets calculation has been widened following the implementation of Basel III.

We provide consolidated capital adequacy ratios not only to demonstrate that we are in compliance with the requirements set out in the Capital
Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent Company but also for benchmarking purposes so that users of our report can compare our capital
position against those of other financial groups to which Basel III is applied. Management receives and reviews these capital ratios on a regular
basis.

The Basel Committee has issued a series of announcements regarding a broader program designed to strengthen the regulatory capital
framework in light of weaknesses revealed by the financial crises. The following is a summary of the proposals which are most relevant to us.

On July 13, 2009, the Basel Committee announced its approval of a package of measures designed to strengthen its rules governing trading book
capital and to enhance the three pillars of the Basel II framework, which was called �Basel 2.5�. This announcement stated that the Basel
Committee�s trading book rules, effective at the end of 2011, would introduce higher capital requirements to capture the credit risk of complex
trading activities, which became effective as the end of 2011. Such trading book rules also included a stressed VaR requirement.

On December 16, 2010, in an effort to promote a more resilient banking sector, the Basel Committee issued Basel III, that is, �International
framework for liquidity risk measurement, standards and monitoring� and �A global regulatory framework for more resilient banks and banking
systems�. The proposals include raising the quality, consistency and transparency of the capital base; strengthening the risk coverage of the
capital framework such as the implementation of a credit value adjustment (�CVA�) charge for over-the-counter derivative trades; introducing a
leverage ratio requirement as a supplemental measure to the risk-based framework; and introducing a series of measures to address concerns
over the �procyclicality� of the current
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framework. The proposals also introduce a minimum liquidity standard including a 30-day liquidity coverage ratio as well as a longer-term
structural liquidity ratio. Additional capital, liquidity or other supervisory measures to reduce the externalities created by systemically important
institutions are also under review. These standards will be phased in gradually from 2013. In addition, after two rounds of public consultation
and discussions with the Committee on Payment and Settlement Systems (�CPSS�) and the International Organization of Securities Commissions
(�IOSCO�), the Basel Committee has issued interim rules for the capitalization of bank exposures to central counterparties (�CCPs�) on July 25,
2012, which are intended to come into effect as of January 2013 as part of Basel III.

At the G-20 summit in November 2011, the Financial Stability Board (�FSB�) and the Basel Committee announced the list of global systemically
important banks (�G-SIBs�) and the additional requirements to the G-SIBs including the recovery and resolution plan. The FSB also announced
the group of G-SIBs will be updated annually and published by the FSB each November. In November 2012, the FSB and the Basel Committee
have updated the list of G-SIBs. We were not designated as a G-SIBs in November 2011 and November 2012. On the other hand, the FSB and
the Basel Committee were asked to work on extending the framework for G-SIBs to domestic systemically important financial institutions
(�D-SIBs�) and the Basel Committee developed and published a set of principles on the assessment methodology and the higher loss absorbency
requirement for D-SIBs.

The FSA introduced rules and notices such as the Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent Company on consolidated regulation and
supervision of securities companies on a consolidated basis on April 1, 2011 to improve the stability and transparency of Japan�s financial system
and ensure the protection of investors. It reviewed the Capital Adequacy Notice on Final Designated Parent Company according to Basel 2.5 and
Basel III framework and the revised notice in line with Basel 2.5 was implemented at the end of December 2011 and the revised notice in line
with Basel III was implemented at the end of March 2013. Following the implementation of the revised notice in line with Basel III, inclusion of
risk of fluctuations in CVA and exposures to CCPs into credit risk-weighted assets calculation became effective. It is expected that such
regulation and notice will be revised further to be in line with a series of rules and standards proposed by the Basel Committee.

Credit Ratings

The cost and availability of unsecured funding are generally dependent on credit ratings. Our long-term and short-term debt is rated by several
recognized credit rating agencies. We believe that our credit ratings include the credit ratings agencies� assessment of the general operating
environment, our positions in the markets in which we operate, reputation, earnings structure, trend and volatility of our earnings, risk
management framework, liquidity and capital management. An adverse change in any of these factors could result in a downgrade of our credit
ratings, and that could, in turn, increase our borrowing costs and limit our access to the capital markets or require us to post additional collateral
and permit counterparties to terminate transactions pursuant to certain contractual obligations. In addition, our credit ratings can have a
significant impact on certain of our trading revenues, particularly in those businesses where longer term counterparty performance is critical,
such as OTC derivative transactions.
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As of May 31, 2013, the credit ratings of the Company and NSC were as follows:

Nomura Holdings, Inc. Short-term Debt Long-term Debt
Standard & Poor�s A-2 BBB+
Moody�s Investors Service �  Baa3
Rating and Investment Information, Inc. a-1 A+
Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. �  AA-

Nomura Securities Co., Ltd. Short-term Debt Long-term Debt
Standard & Poor�s A-2 A-
Moody�s Investors Service P-2 Baa2
Rating and Investment Information, Inc. a-1 A+
Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. �  AA-
Both Rating and Investment Information, Inc. and Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. are credit rating agencies nationally recognized in Japan.
We rely on, or utilize, credit ratings on our long-term and short-term debt provided by these Japanese credit rating agencies, as well as
Standard & Poor�s and Moody�s Investors Service, for unsecured funding and other financing purposes and also for our trading and other business
activities. Within the rating classification system of Rating and Investment Information, Inc., �a-1� is the highest of five categories for short-term
debt and indicates �a strong degree of certainty regarding debt repayment�; and �A� is the third highest of nine categories for long-term debt and
indicates �a high degree of certainty regarding debt repayment with excellence in specific component factors�, with a plus (+) or minus (-) sign
added to a rating in that category to indicate its relative standing within that category. Within the rating classification system of Japan Credit
Rating Agency, Ltd., �AA� is the second highest of ten categories for long-term debt and indicates �a very high level of capacity to honor the
financial commitment on the obligation�, with a plus (+) or minus (-) sign added to a rating in that category to indicate its relative standing within
that category.

There has been no change to the ratings in the above table since the date indicated.

C. Research and Development, Patents and Licenses, etc.

Not applicable.

D. Trend Information.

The information required by this item is set forth in Item 5.A of this annual report.

E. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements.

Off-balance sheet entities

In the normal course of business, we engage in a variety of off-balance sheet arrangements with off-balance sheet entities which may have an
impact on Nomura�s future financial position and performance.

Off-balance sheet arrangements with off-balance sheet entities include the following where Nomura has:

� an obligation under a guarantee contract;

� a retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an off-balance sheet entity or similar arrangement that serves as credit,
liquidity or market risk support;
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� any obligation, including a contingent obligation, arising out of a variable interest in an off-balance sheet entity that is held by, and
material to, us, where such entity provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to, or engages in leasing, hedging or
research and development services with, us.

Off-balance sheet entities may take the form of a corporation, partnership, fund, trust or other legal vehicle which is designed to fulfill a limited,
specific purpose by its sponsor. We both create or sponsor these entities and also enter into arrangements with entities created or sponsored by
others.

Our involvement with these entities includes structuring, underwriting, distributing and selling debt instruments and beneficial interests issued
by these entities, subject to prevailing market conditions. In the normal course of business, we also act as a transferor of financial assets to these
entities, as well as, and underwriter, distributor and seller of asset-repackaged financial instruments issued by these entities, in connection with
our securitization and equity derivative activities. We retain, purchase and sell variable interests in SPEs in connection with our market-making,
investing and structuring activities. Our other types of off-balance sheet arrangements include guarantee agreements and derivative contracts.
Significant involvement is assessed based on all of our arrangements with these entities, even if the probability of loss, as assessed at the balance
sheet date, is remote.

For further information about transactions with VIEs, see Note 8 �Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities� in our consolidated financial
statements within this annual report.

Repurchase and securities lending transactions accounted for as sales

We enter into certain types of repurchase transactions and securities lending transactions which we account for as sales rather than collateralized
financings where the criteria for derecognition of the securities transferred under ASC 860 are met. These consist of repo-to-maturity
transactions and certain types of securities transactions.

We enter into repo-to-maturity transactions to take advantage of arbitrage opportunities between the cash security and repo markets. These
transactions involve the sourcing of specific securities in the market and contemporaneously entering into repurchase agreements with different
counterparties where the maturity of the agreement matches the maturity of the security transferred as collateral. We account for these
transactions as sales rather than collateralized financings where the criteria for derecognition of the securities transferred under ASC 860 are
met. The amounts of securities derecognized from our consolidated balance sheets under open repo-to-maturity transactions as of March 31,
2012 and 2013 were ¥39,797 million and ¥nil, respectively.

We engage in certain Japanese securities lending transactions for funding purposes under which we transfer long securities (such as Japanese
listed equities). The agreements supporting these transactions include varying margining requirements, but the amount of cash we borrow from
our counterparties is typically significantly less than the fair value of securities we lend. We account for these transactions as sales in our
consolidated financial statements where the criteria for derecognition of the transferred financial assets under ASC 860 are met. In particular, we
do not maintain effective control over the transferred financial assets as we are not able to be repurchase or redeem the transferred financial
assets on substantially agreed terms, even in the event of default by the transferee. Upon adoption of Accounting Standard Update (�ASU�)
No. 2011-03 �Reconsideration of Effective Control for Repurchase Agreements� as of January 1, 2012, Nomura has not derecognized such
transactions that started on and after the adoption date. The amounts of securities derecognized from our consolidated balance sheets under open
securities lending transactions as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 were ¥1,930 million and ¥nil, respectively.
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F. Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations.

As part of our business, we enter into a variety of contractual obligations and contingent commitments, which may require future payments.
These arrangements include:

Standby letters of credit and other guarantees:

� In the normal course of our banking / financing activities, we enter into various guarantee arrangements with counterparties in the
form of standby letters of credit and other guarantees, which generally have fixed expiration dates.

Long-term borrowings and contractual interest payments:

� In connection with our operating activities, we issue Japanese yen and non-Japanese yen denominated long-term borrowings which
incur variable and fixed interest payments in accordance with our funding policy.

Operating lease commitments:

� We lease our office space, certain employees� residential facilities and other facilities in Japan and overseas primarily under cancellable
lease agreements which are customarily renewed upon expiration;

� We lease certain equipment and facilities in Japan and overseas under non-cancellable operating lease agreements.
Capital lease commitments:

� We lease certain equipment and facilities in Japan and overseas under capital lease agreements.
Purchase obligations:

� We have purchase obligations for goods and services which include payments for construction, advertising, and computer and
telecommunications maintenance agreements.

Commitments to extend credit:

� In connection with our banking and financing activities, we enter into contractual commitments to extend credit, which generally have
fixed expiration dates;

� In connection with our investment banking activities, we enter into agreements with clients under which we commit to underwrite
securities that may be issued by clients.

Commitments to invest in partnerships:

�
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In connection with our merchant banking activities, we have commitments to invest in interests in various partnerships and other
entities and commitments to provide financing for investments related to those partnerships.

Commitments to purchase aircraft:

� In connection with our aircraft leasing business, we have commitments to purchase aircraft.
Note 10 �Lease� in our consolidated financial statements contains further detail on our operating lease and capital lease. Note 13 �Borrowings� in
our consolidated financial statements contains further detail on our short-term and long-term borrowing obligations and Note 22 �Commitments,
contingencies and guarantees� in our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report contains further detail on our other
commitments, contingencies and guarantees.
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The contractual amounts of commitments to extend credit represent the maximum amounts at risk should the contracts be fully drawn upon,
should the counterparties default, and assuming the value of any existing collateral becomes worthless. The total contractual amount of these
commitments may not represent future cash requirements since the commitments may expire without being drawn upon. The credit risk
associated with these commitments varies depending on the clients� creditworthiness and the value of collateral held. We evaluate each client�s
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by us upon extension of credit, is based on
management�s credit evaluation of the counterparty.

The following table presents information regarding amounts and timing of our future contractual obligations and contingent commitments as of
March 31, 2013:

Millions of yen

Total
contractual
amount

Years to maturity

Less than
1 year

1 to 3
years

3 to 5
years

More than
5 years

Standby letters of credit and other guarantees ¥ 9,084 ¥ 8 ¥ 319 ¥ 668 ¥ 8,089
Long-term borrowings(1) 7,414,978 701,517 2,460,980 1,499,218 2,753,263
Contractual interest payments(2) 1,170,022 158,257 216,650 151,005 644,110
Operating lease commitments 154,254 17,801 30,896 21,785 83,772
Capital lease commitments(3) 54,036 497 3,397 6,965 43,177
Purchase obligations(4) 26,228 24,569 1,659 �  �  
Commitments to extend credit 369,988 55,459 74,810 126,139 113,580
Commitments to invest in partnerships 29,974 375 17,702 1,503 10,394
Commitments to purchase aircraft 30,143 21,141 9,002 �  �  

Total ¥ 9,258,707 ¥ 979,624 ¥ 2,815,415 ¥ 1,807,283 ¥ 3,656,385

(1) The amounts disclosed within long-term borrowings exclude financial liabilities recognized within long-term borrowings as a result of
transfers of financial assets that are accounted for as financings rather than sales in accordance with ASC 860. These are not borrowings
issued for our own funding purposes and therefore do not represent actual contractual obligations by us to deliver cash.

(2) The amounts represent estimated future interest payments related to long-time borrowings based on the period through to their maturity
and applicable interest rates as of March 31, 2013.

(3) The total contractual amount of capital lease commitments is the total minimum lease payments before deducting interest.
(4) The minimum contractual obligations under enforceable and legally binding contracts that specify all significant terms. Amounts exclude

obligations that are already reflected on our consolidated balance sheets as liabilities or payables.
Excluded from the above table are obligations that are generally short-term in nature, including short-term borrowings, deposits received at
banks and other payables, collateralized agreements and financing transactions (such as resale and repurchase agreements), and trading
liabilities.

In addition to amounts presented above, we have commitments under resale and repurchase agreements including amounts in connection with
collateralized agreements, collateralized financing and Gensaki Repo transactions. These commitments amount to ¥4,103 billion for resale
agreements and ¥1,152 billion for repurchase agreements as of March 31, 2013.
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Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees

A. Directors and Senior Management.

Directors

The following table provides information about Directors of the Company as of June 27, 2013. With respect to the information under �Brief
Personal History� below, some of the Directors changed their titles upon our adoption of the holding company structure on October 1, 2001 and
the Committee System on June 26, 2003, as described in Item 6.C of this annual report.

Name

(Date of Birth)

Responsibilities and Status

in Nomura and Other Companies Brief Personal History
Nobuyuki Koga

(Aug. 22, 1950)

Director

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Chairman of the Compensation Committee

Director and Chairman of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Representative Director and President of Kanagawa
Kaihatsu Kanko Co., Ltd.

Apr. 1974 Joined the Company
Jun. 1995 Director of the Company
Apr. 1999 Managing Director of the Company
Jun. 2000 Director and Deputy President of the

Company
Oct. 2001 Director and Deputy President of the

Company

Director and Deputy President of
Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2003 Director and President of the
Company

Director and President of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Jun. 2003 Director, President & CEO of the
Company

Director and Executive Officer and
President of Nomura Securities Co.,
Ltd.

Apr. 2008 Director and Representative Executive
Officer of the Company

Director and Chairman of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Jun. 2008 Director and Chairman of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Jun. 2011 Director and Chairman of the
Company (Current)

Director and Chairman of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd. (Current)

Koji Nagai

(Jan. 25, 1959)

Director, Representative Executive Officer and Group
CEO

Apr. 1981 Joined the Company
Apr. 2003 Director of Nomura Securities Co.,

Ltd.
Director and President of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd. Jun. 2003 Senior Managing Director of Nomura

Securities Co., Ltd.
Apr. 2007 Executive Managing Director of

Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.
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Name

(Date of Birth)

Responsibilities and Status

in Nomura and Other Companies Brief Personal History
Oct. 2008 Senior Corporate Managing Director

of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.
Apr. 2009 Executive Managing Director and

Executive Vice President of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2011 Co-COO and Deputy President of
Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2012 Senior Managing Director of the
Company

Director and President of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Aug. 2012 Representative Executive Officer &
Group CEO of the Company

Director and President of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Jun. 2013 Director, Representative Executive
Officer & Group CEO of the Company
(Current)

Director and President of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd. (Current)

Atsushi Yoshikawa

(Apr. 7, 1954)

Director, Representative Executive Officer and Group COO Apr. 1978 Joined the Company
Jun. 2000 Director of the Company

Wholesale CEO Oct. 2001 Director of Nomura Securities Co.,
Ltd.

Jun. 2003 Senior Managing Director of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2004 Senior Managing Director of the
Company

Executive Managing Director of
Nomura Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2005 Senior Managing Director of the
Company

Executive Vice President of Nomura
Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2006 Executive Vice President of Nomura
Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2008 Director and President of Nomura
Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Oct. 2008 Executive Managing Director of the
Company

Director, President & CEO of Nomura
Asset Management Co., Ltd.
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Name

(Date of Birth)

Responsibilities and Status

in Nomura and Other Companies Brief Personal History
Jun. 2011 Executive Vice President of the

Company

CEO and President of Nomura
Holding America Inc.

Oct. 2011 Executive Vice President of the
Company

CEO and President of Nomura
Holding America Inc.

Chairman and CEO of Nomura
Securities International, Inc.

Aug. 2012 Representative Executive Officer &
Group COO of the Company

Jun. 2013 Director, Representative Executive
Officer & Group COO of the
Company (Current)

Hiroyuki Suzuki

(Feb. 3, 1959)

Director Apr. 1982 Joined the Company
Member of the Audit Committee

Outside Director of The Nomura Trust and Banking Co.,
Ltd.

Outside Director of Nomura Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2005 Senior Managing Director of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Oct. 2008 Senior Managing Director of the
Company

Dec. 2008 Senior Managing Director of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2009 Senior Corporate Managing Director
of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Jun. 2010 Senior Corporate Managing Director
of the Company

Executive Managing Director and
Senior Corporate Managing Director
of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2011 Senior Corporate Managing Director
of the Company

Executive Vice President of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2013

Jun. 2013

Advisor of the Company

Director of the Company (Current)

David Benson

(Feb. 9, 1951)

Director Feb. 1997 Joined Nomura International plc
Director of Nomura Europe Holdings, plc

Director of Nomura International plc

Jul. 1999 Head of Risk Management,
Nomura International plc

Mar. 2005 COO of Nomura International plc
Aug. 2007 Resigned from Nomura International

plc
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Name

(Date of Birth)

Responsibilities and Status

in Nomura and Other Companies Brief Personal History
Nov. 2008 Chief Risk Officer, Senior Managing

Director of the Company
Jan. 2011 Vice Chairman of the Company

(Senior Managing Director) Risk and
Regulatory Affairs

Apr. 2011 Vice Chairman of the Company
(Senior Managing Director)

Jun. 2011 Director of the Company (Current)

Masahiro Sakane

(Jan 7, 1941)

Outside Director

Member of the Nomination Committee

Member of the Compensation Committee

Apr. 1963 Joined Komatsu Ltd.
Jun. 2001 Representative Director and President

of Komatsu Ltd.

Councilor and Senior Adviser of Komatsu Ltd.

Outside Director of Tokyo Electron Limited

Outside Director of ASAHI GLASS Co., Ltd.

Outside Director of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Jun. 2003 Representative Director and President
& CEO of Komatsu Ltd.

Jun. 2007 Representative Director and Chairman
of Komatsu Ltd.

Jun. 2008 Outside Director of the Company
(Current)

Jun. 2010 Director and Chairman of Komatsu
Ltd.

Apr. 2013 Director and Councilor of Komatsu
Ltd.

Jun. 2013 Councilor and Senior Adviser of
Komatsu Ltd. (Current)

Toshinori Kanemoto

(Aug. 24, 1945)

Outside Director

Member of the Audit Committee

Of-Counsel of City-Yuwa Partners

Apr. 1968 Joined National Police Agency
Apr. 1992 Kumamoto Prefecture Police

Headquarters, Director-General

Outside Statutory Auditor of Kameda Seika Co., Ltd.

Outside Statutory Auditor of JX Holdings, Inc.

Aug. 1995 Director General of the International
Affairs Department, National Police
Agency

Outside Director of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd. Oct. 1996 President of ICPO-INTERPOL
Aug. 2000 President, National Police Academy
Apr. 2001 Director of Cabinet Intelligence,

Cabinet Secretariat, Government of
Japan

Jan. 2007 Registered as Attorney-at-Law
(Dai-ichi Tokyo Bar Association)

Feb. 2007 Of-Counsel of City-Yuwa Partners
(Current)

Jun. 2011 Outside Director of the Company
(Current)
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Name

(Date of Birth)

Responsibilities and Status

in Nomura and Other Companies Brief Personal History

Tsuguoki Fujinuma

(Nov. 21, 1944)

Outside Director

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Apr. 1969 Joined Horie Morita Accounting Firm

Outside Statutory Auditor of Sumitomo Corporation Jun. 1970 Joined Arthur & Young Accounting
Firm

Outside Statutory Auditor of Takeda Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Nov. 1974 Registered as a Certified Public
Accountant

Outside Director of Sumitomo Life Insurance Company May 1991 Managing Partner of Asahi Shinwa
Accounting Firm

Outside Statutory Auditor of Seven & i Holdings Co., Ltd.

Outside Director of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Jun. 1993 Managing Partner of Ota Showa & Co.
(Ernst & Young ShinNihon (currently,
Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC))

May 2000 President of the International
Federation of Accountants

Jul. 2004 Chairman and President of the
Japanese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

Jun. 2007 Retired from Ernst & Young
ShinNihon

Jul. 2007 Advisor of the Japanese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (Current)

Jun. 2008 Outside Director of the Company
(Current)

Takao Kusakari

(Mar. 13, 1940)

Outside Director

Member of the Nomination Committee

Apr. 1964 Joined Nippon Yusen Kabushiki
Kaisha (NYK Line)

Member of the Compensation Committee Aug. 1999 President of NYK Line
Corporate Advisor of NYK Line

Outside Director of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2002 President, Corporate Officer of NYK
Line

Apr. 2004 Chairman, Corporate Officer of NYK
Line

Apr. 2006 Chairman, Chairman Corporate
Officer of NYK Line

Apr. 2009 Director and Corporate Advisor of
NYK Line

Jun. 2010 Corporate Advisor of NYK Line
(Current)

Jun. 2011 Outside Director of the Company
(Current)

Dame Clara Furse

(Sep. 16, 1957)

Outside Director

Non-Executive Director of Amadeus IT Holding, S.A.

Non-Executive Director of UK Department for Work and
Pensions

Feb. 1983 Joined Phillips & Drew/UBS
Jun. 1990 Non-Executive Director of London

International Financial Futures
Exchange (�LIFFE�)

Jun. 1997 Deputy Chairman of LIFFE

External Member of the Bank of England�s Financial Policy
Committee

May 1998 Group Chief Executive of Credit
Lyonnais Rouse

Jan. 2001 Chief Executive of London Stock
Exchange Group
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Name

(Date of Birth)

Responsibilities and Status

in Nomura and Other Companies Brief Personal History
Jun. 2010 Outside Director of the Company

(Current)
Apr. 2013 External Member of the Bank of

England�s Financial Policy Committee
(Current)

Michael Lim Choo San
(Sep. 10, 1946)

Outside Director

Chairman of the Land Transport Authority of Singapore

Director of Nomura Asia Holding N.V.

Aug. 1972 Joined Price Waterhouse, Singapore
Jan. 1992 Managing Partner of Price

Waterhouse, Singapore

Non-Executive Chairman of Nomura Singapore Ltd. Oct. 1998 Member of the Singapore Public
Service Commission (Current)

Jul. 1999 Executive Chairman of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Singapore

Sep. 2002 Chairman of the Land Transport
Authority of Singapore (Current)

Nov. 2007 Member of the Legal Service
Commission, Singapore (Current)

Jun. 2011 Outside Director of the Company
(Current)

Oct. 2011 Chairman of the Singapore
Accountancy Commission (formerly
the Pro-Tem Singapore Accountancy
Council) (Current)

Nov. 2011 Chairman of the Accounting Standards
Council, Singapore (Current)

Among the above listed Directors, Masahiro Sakane, Toshinori Kanemoto, Tsuguoki Fujinuma, Takao Kusakari, Dame Clara Furse, and
Michael Lim Choo San satisfy the requirements for an �outside director� under the Companies Act. The Companies Act defines an outside director
of a company as a non-executive director (i) who has never assumed the position of executive director, executive officer, manager or employee
of the company or its subsidiaries and (ii) who does not currently assume the position of executive director, executive officer, manager or
employee of the Company or its subsidiaries.
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Executive Officers

The following table provides information about the Company�s Executive Officers as of June 27, 2013. With respect to the information under
�Brief Personal History� below, some of the Executive Officers changed their titles or positions upon our adoption of the holding company
structure on October 1, 2001 and the Committee System on June 26, 2003, as described in Item 6.C of this annual report.

Name

(Date of Birth)

Responsibilities and Status

in Nomura and Other Companies Brief Personal History

Koji Nagai

(Jan. 25, 1959)

See �Directors� under this Item 6.A. See �Directors� under this Item 6.A.

Atsushi Yoshikawa

(Apr. 7, 1954)

See �Directors� under this Item 6.A. See �Directors� under this Item 6.A.

Toshio Morita

(Apr. 17, 1961)

Executive Managing Director

Retail CEO

Apr. 1985 Joined the Company
Apr. 2008 Executive Managing Director of

Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.
Oct. 2008 Senior Managing Director of Nomura

Securities Co., Ltd.
Apr. 2010 Senior Corporate Managing Director

of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.
Apr. 2011 Senior Corporate Managing Director

of the Company
Aug. 2012 Executive Managing Director of the

Company (Current)

Retail CEO (Current)

Executive Vice President of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd. (Current)

Toshihiro Iwasaki

(May 10, 1957)

Executive Managing Director

Asset Management CEO

Director and Chairman, President & CEO of Nomura Asset
Management Co., Ltd.

Apr. 1981 Joined the Company
Apr. 2004 Senior Managing Director of Nomura

Securities Co., Ltd.
Apr. 2008 President & CEO of The Nomura

Trust and Banking Co., Ltd.
Apr. 2011 Deputy President of Nomura Asset

Management Co., Ltd.
Jun. 2011 Executive Managing Director of the

Company

Asset Management CEO
Director and Chairman & CEO of
Nomura Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Aug. 2012 Executive Managing Director of the
Company (Current)

Asset Management CEO (Current)

Director and Chairman, President &
CEO of Nomura Asset Management
Co., Ltd. (Current)
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Name

(Date of Birth)

Responsibilities and Status

in Nomura and Other Companies Brief Personal History

Shoichi Nagamatsu

(Jul. 6, 1958)

Executive Managing Director

Chief of Staff

Executive Managing Director and Executive Vice
President of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Outside Director of The Nomura Trust and Banking Co.,
Ltd.

Outside Director of Nomura Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Apr. 1982 Joined the Company
Apr. 2004 Senior Managing Director of Nomura

Securities Co., Ltd.
Oct. 2008 Executive Managing Director of the

Company

Senior Managing Director of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Jun. 2010 Senior Corporate Managing Director
of the Company

Senior Corporate Managing Director
of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2012 Senior Corporate Managing Director
of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Jun. 2012 Executive Managing Director and
Senior Corporate Managing Director
of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2013 Executive Managing Director and
Chief of Staff of the Company
(Current)

Executive Managing Director and
Executive Vice President of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd. (Current)

Shigesuke Kashiwagi

(Nov. 13, 1959)

Executive Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer

Executive Managing Director and Senior Corporate
Managing Director of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 1982 Joined the Company
Apr. 2004 Senior Managing Director of the

Company

Senior Managing Director of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Financial Officer of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd. Apr. 2006 Senior Managing Director of Nomura
Securities Co., Ltd.

Apr. 2007 Senior Managing Director (Executive
Officer) of the Company

Apr. 2008 Senior Managing Director of the
Company

Apr. 2013 Executive Managing Director of the
Company (Current)

Chief Financial Officer of the
Company (Current)

Executive Managing Director and
Senior Corporate Managing Director
of Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.
(Current)

Financial Officer of Nomura Securities
Co., Ltd. (Current)
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B. Compensation.

The overview of Nomura Group�s compensation framework is as follows:

(1) Compensation policy

We have developed our compensation policy for both executives and employees of Nomura Group to enable us to achieve sustainable growth,
realize a long-term increase in shareholder value, deliver client excellence, compete in a global market and enhance our reputation. Our
compensation policy is based around the following six key themes. It aims to:

1. align with Nomura values and strategies;

2. reflect firm, division and individual performance;

3. establish appropriate performance measurement with a focus on risk;

4. align employee and shareholder interests;

5. establish appropriate compensation structures; and

6. ensure robust governance and control processes.
(2) Compensation governance

The Compensation Committee of Nomura, which is a statutory committee, is responsible for approving our overall compensation policy and for
ensuring that Nomura Group�s compensation framework supports our business strategy.

The Company has delegated authority to the Human Resources Committee (�HRC�) to develop and to implement Nomura Group�s compensation
policy. The HRC�s responsibilities include:

� approving the compensation framework, while taking into account necessary factors to ensure that all staff, including members of
executive management, are provided with appropriate incentives to enhance their performance and are rewarded for their individual
contributions to the success of our business globally,

� approving the total bonus pool and its allocation to each business,

� reviewing the performance measures of senior executives to ensure that compensations reflect the performance of both individuals and
our business globally,

� continually reviewing the appropriateness and relevance of the compensation policy and
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� approving any major changes in employee benefits structures globally.
Current members include the Group CEO (as Chairman of the Committee), Group COO, CFO, Chief Risk Officer (CRO), Chief of Staff and
heads of Human Resources.
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(3) Nomura�s compensation framework

The outline of our compensation framework is as follows:

Compensation

Components Purposes Specific Elements
Fixed Compensation � Rewards individuals for their knowledge, skills,

competencies and experiences
� Base salary

� Reflects local labor market standards

� Reflects practices of local labor markets to deliver
allowances as a part of fixed compensation to individuals

�

�

Housing allowances

Overtime pay

Variable Compensation � Rewards team and individual performances, and their
contribution to results as well as strategic and future value

�

�

Cash bonuses

Deferred compensation
� Reflects appropriate internal and market-based

comparisons

� Reflects broad view on compensation, including individual
performances, approaches to risk, compliance and cross
divisional cooperation

Note:Benefits are driven by local market regulations and practices, and are not included in the above.
(4) Outline of variable compensations

Cash bonuses

A proportion of the variable compensation is delivered in the form of a cash payment following the end of the fiscal year. Individuals with
higher levels of compensation receive a lower proportion in cash. This is in line with regulatory guidance, and while the policy is global in
application, specific local regulatory requirements will be adhered to when deciding on proportions of cash bonuses.

Deferred compensation

Certain senior management and employees whose compensation is above a certain level receive a portion of their variable compensation in the
form of deferred compensation vehicles. By linking the economic value to Nomura�s stock price or imposing certain vesting periods in place,
such plans will:

� align employee interest with that of shareholders;
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� increase employee retention through providing opportunities to grow personal wealth over certain period from the grant to vesting;
and

� encourage cross-divisional and cross-regional collaboration by focusing individuals on a common goal of the long-term increase in
corporate value.

With these benefits, deferred compensation plans are also recommended by regulators of key jurisdictions in which we operate.

The deferral period for our deferred compensation plans is three or more years in principle. This is in line with the �Principles for Sound
Compensation Practices� issued by the FSB, which recommends, among others, a deferral period of three or more years.
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In addition, deferred compensation shall be reduced or forfeited in case of:

� voluntary resignation

� material restatement in financial statements

� material violation of policies of Nomura; and

� material detriment to the business or reputation of Nomura.
Also, deferred compensations for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 granted to senior management and employees who receive a certain level
of compensations shall be reduced or forfeited in case of a material downturn in performance of Nomura and/or a material failure of risk
management.

Nomura has 1. Core deferral plans, 2. Supplemental deferral plans and 3. Multi-Year Performance Deferral plan as its deferred compensation.

1. Core deferral plans

(a) Stock Acquisition Right (�SAR�) Plan

Nomura has issued the following two types of SARs.

� SAR Plan A
Options are awarded with an exercise price higher than Nomura�s stock price on the date of grant. There is a certain period set between the date
of grant and the date of vesting. They are qualified as SARs under Japanese taxation laws and therefore have been issued mainly to employees in
Japan.

� SAR Plan B
This plan is intended to offer a similar economic effect as restricted stock, as commonly used in the U.S. and Europe. Options are granted with
an exercise price of ¥1 per share. There is a certain period set between the date of grant and the date of vesting.

(b) Notional Stock Unit (�NSU�) Plan

This is a cash-settled plan that has been designed to replicate the key features of the SAR Plan B described above. This allows equity-linked
awards to be made in countries where SARs are less favorably treated from tax or other perspectives.

2. Supplemental deferral plans

We also introduced the following deferral plans for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011. These plans were offered to certain senior
management and employees in addition to the Core deferral plans. The plans reinforce our goals of retaining and motivating our key talent in the
competitive market place.

(a) Collared Notional Stock Unit (�CSU�) Plan

This plan is linked to the value of the Nomura�s stock price subject to a cap and a floor.
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(b) Notional Indexed Unit (�NIU�) Plan

This plan is linked to a world stock index quoted by Morgan Stanley Capital International. Other material terms, including deferral period and
vesting conditions, are the same as those for CSUs.
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3. Multi-Year Performance Deferral (�MYPD�) plan

We also introduced MYPD as a part of deferred compensation for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 to senior management and employees
with certain responsibilities. Number of units to be granted upon achieving a certain performance target is notified to applicable candidates in
advance. At the end of a 2 year performance period, number of units is adjusted, subject to a degree of achievement, and granted in the form of
Plan B SARs or NSUs. In case of performance below certain levels, no SARs or NSUs will be granted.

(5) Consistency with risk management and linkage to performance

In determining the aggregate compensation, Nomura considers the ratio of personnel expense against income (after a certain risk adjustment and
before deduction of tax and personnel expenses). Risk adjustment of income is done by deducting a certain proportion of economic capital from
each division�s revenue. Such economic capital comprehensively recognizes quantitatively assessed risks, and reflects various risks including
market, credit, liquidity, and operational risks.

Nomura recognizes that its aggregate compensation maintains consistency with the current financial soundness and future prospects of Nomura,
and that it does not have significant impact on capital adequacy in the future.

(6) Compensation for Directors and Executive Officers

Pursuant to the fundamental approach and framework of compensation as described above, and as a company which adopts the committee-based
corporate governance system, the Compensation Committee of Nomura determines compensation of its Directors and Executive Officers in
accordance with the applicable compensation policy.

1    Aggregate compensation

Millions of yen

Number of Directors or
Executive Officers(1)

Year ended March 31, 2013
Basic 

Compensation(2) Bonus Deferred Compensation(3) Total
Directors 12 ¥ 340 ¥ 13 ¥ 116 ¥ 469
(Outside Directors) (8) (157) (�) (�) (157) 
Executive Officers 8 353 29 274 656

Total 20 ¥ 693 ¥ 42 ¥ 390 ¥ 1,125

(1) Include 1 Director (including 1 Outside Director) and 3 Executive Officers who resigned in June and July 2012. There were 11 Directors
and 5 Executive Officers as of March 31, 2013. Compensation to Directors who were concurrently serving as Executive Officers is
included in that of Executive Officers.

(2) Basic compensation of ¥693 million includes other compensation (commuter pass allowance) of ¥1 million that has been provided.
(3) Deferred compensation (such as stock options) granted during the year ended March 31, 2013 and prior is recognized as expense in the

financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013.
(4) Subsidiaries of the Company paid ¥90 million to Outside Directors as compensation etc. for their directorship at those subsidiaries for the

year ended March 31, 2013.
(5) The Company abolished retirement bonuses to Directors in 2001.
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2.    Individual compensation of Directors and Executive Officers receiving ¥100 million or more

Millions of yen

Name Company Category

Fixed Remuneration
(Basic Compensation) Variable Compensation(1)

TotalBase Salary

Equity
Compensation

(SARs) Total
Cash
Bonus

Deferred
Compensation

(SARs,
etc.) Total

Nobuyuki Koga Nomura Director 82 � 82 �  74 74 156
Koji Nagai Nomura Director,

Representative
Executive
Officer

(Group CEO)

65 12 77 �  89 89 166

Atsushi Yoshikawa Nomura Director,

Representative
Executive
Officer

(Group COO)

62 10 72 1 87 88 160

Toshio Morita Nomura Executive
Officer

40 9 49 17 66 83 132

Toshihiro Iwasaki Nomura Executive
Officer

60 13 73 6 41 47 120

(1) Variable Compensation indicates the amount determined as remuneration based on the performance during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 (�this fiscal
year�).

Stock Acquisition Rights (�SARs�)

March 31, 2013

Series of SARs Allotment Date

Number of
Shares under

SARs
Exercise Period

of SARs

Exercise
Price per

Share under
SARs

Paid-in
Amount for

SARs
Stock Acquisition Rights No.9 April 24, 2006 35,100 From April 25, 2008

to April 24, 2013
¥ 1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.10 June 12, 2006 147,900 From June 13, 2008
to June 12, 2013

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.11 July 14, 2006 1,727,000 From July 7, 2008

to July 6, 2013

1,741 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.13 April 25, 2007 213,300 From April 26, 2009
to April 25, 2014

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.14 June 21, 2007 326,600 From June 22, 2009
to June 21, 2014

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.15 August 1, 2007 113,000 From August 2, 2009
to August 1, 2014

1,883 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.16 August 1, 2007 1,799,000 From August 2, 2009
to August 1, 2014

1,883 0
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Stock Acquisition Rights No.17 August 1, 2007 191,600 From August 2, 2009
to August 1, 2014

1 0
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March 31, 2013

Series of SARs Allotment Date

Number of
Shares under

SARs
Exercise Period

of SARs

Exercise
Price per

Share under
SARs

Paid-in
Amount for

SARs
Stock Acquisition Rights No.18 October 19, 2007 21,800 From October 20, 2009

to October 19, 2014
¥ 1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.19 April 23, 2008 511,400 From April 24, 2010
to April 23, 2015

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.20 June 23, 2008 31,300 From June 24, 2010
to June 23, 2015

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.21 June 23, 2008 286,800 From June 24, 2010
to June 23, 2015

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.22 August 5, 2008 110,000 From August 6, 2010
to August 5, 2015

1,298 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.23 August 5, 2008 1,874,000 From August 6, 2010
to August 5, 2015

1,298 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.24 August 5, 2008 3,000 From August 6, 2010
to August 5, 2015

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.26 November 10, 2008 5,200 From November 11, 2010
to November 10, 2015

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.27 November 10, 2008 5,200 From November 11, 2010
to November 10, 2015

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.28 April 30, 2009 473,300 From May 1, 2011
to April 30, 2016

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.29 June 16, 2009 229,400 From June 17, 2011
to June 16, 2016

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.30 June 16, 2009 381,400 From June 17, 2011
to June 16, 2016

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.31 August 5, 2009 176,000 From August 6, 2011
to August 5, 2016

737 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.32 August 5, 2009 2,288,000 From August 6, 2011

to August 5, 2016

737 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.34 May 18, 2010 1,346,200 From May 19, 2012
to May 18, 2017

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.35 May 18, 2010 2,330,700 From May 19, 2012
to May 18, 2017

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.36 May 18, 2010 2,211,800 From May 19, 2013
to May 18, 2017

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.37 July 28, 2010 4,437,700 From April 30, 2012
to April 29, 2017

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.38 July 28, 2010 9,015,400 From April 30, 2013
to April 29, 2018

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.39 November 16, 2010 2,793,700 From November 16, 2012
to November 15, 2017

478 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.40 June 7, 2011 4,878,100 From May 25, 2012
to May 24, 2018

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.41 June 7, 2011 18,879,800 From May 25, 2013
to May 24, 2018

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.42 June 7, 2011 18,843,400 From May 25, 2014
to May 24, 2018

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.43 November 16, 2011 2,817,000 From November 16, 2013
to November 15, 2018

299 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.44 June 5, 2012 13,031,700 From April 20, 2013
to April 19, 2018

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.45 June 5, 2012 13,003,400 From April 20, 2014
to April 19, 2019

1 0
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Stock Acquisition Rights No.46 June 5, 2012 12,894,300 From April 20, 2015
to April 19, 2020

1 0
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March 31, 2013

Series of SARs Allotment Date

Number of
Shares under

SARs
Exercise Period

of SARs

Exercise
Price per

Share under
SARs

Paid-in
Amount for

SARs
Stock Acquisition Rights No.47 June 5, 2012 5,034,500 From April 20, 2016

to April 19, 2021
¥ 1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.48 June 5, 2012 5,024,900 From April 20, 2017
to April 19, 2022

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.49 June 5, 2012 1,874,900 From October 20, 2015
to April 19, 2021

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.50 June 5, 2012 1,873,300 From October 20, 2016
to April 19, 2022

1 0

Stock Acquisition Rights No.51 November 13, 2012 2,847,800 From November 13, 2014
to November 12, 2019

298 0

(1) SARs (including those granted to Directors and Executive Officers of Nomura which are stated in the table below) are issued in
conjunction with deferred compensation plan.

(2) The number of shares issuable under SARs is subject to adjustments under certain circumstances including stock split.
SARs Held by Directors and Executive Officers of Nomura

March 31, 2013

Number
of

Shares under
SARs

Numbers of Holders

Series of SARs

Directors and
Executive Officers

(excluding
Outside 
Directors) Outside Directors

SARs No.10 10,300 1 �  
SARs No.11 43,000 8 1
SARs No.14 21,800 2 1
SARs No.15 15,000 2 1
SARs No.16 26,000 6 �  
SARs No.20 8,000 1 1
SARs No.21 26,700 3 �  
SARs No.22 9,000 1 3
SARs No.23 45,000 7 �  
SARs No.24 3,000 �  1
SARs No.28 162,700 1 �  
SARs No.29 45,000 2 3
SARs No.30 18,000 1 �  
SARs No.31 19,000 2 3
SARs No.32 40,000 6 �  
SARs No.34 13,400 1 �  
SARs No.35 274,700 6 �  
SARs No.36 48,500 1 �  
SARs No.40 213,800 7 �  
SARs No.41 271,200 9 �  
SARs No.42 271,000 9 �  
SARs No.44 76,400 6 �  
SARs No.45 76,000 6 �  
SARs No.46 75,800 6 �  
SARs No.47 32,300 6 �  
SARs No.48 32,200 6 �  
Pension, Retirement or Similar Benefits
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See Note 15 �Employee benefit plans� in our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report.
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C. Board Practices.

Information Concerning Directors

The Companies Act states that a company which adopts the committee-based corporate governance system (�Committee System�) must establish
three committees; a nomination committee, an audit committee and a compensation committee. The members of each committee are chosen
from the company�s directors, and the majority of the members of each committee must be outside directors. Under the Committee System, the
board of directors is entitled to establish the basic management policy for the company, has decision-making authority over certain prescribed
matters, and supervises the execution by the executive officers of their duties. Executive officers and representative executive officers appointed
by a resolution adopted by the board of directors manage the business affairs of the company, based on a delegation of authority by the board of
directors.

The Company adopted the Committee System by amending the Company�s Articles of Incorporation by way of a special resolution adopted at
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on June 26, 2003. Through the adoption of the Committee System, the Company aims to strengthen
management oversight, increase the transparency of the Company�s management and expedite the decision-making process within the Nomura
Group. An outline of the Company�s Board of Directors, Nomination Committee, Audit Committee and Compensation Committee is provided
below.

Board of Directors

The Company�s Board of Directors consists of Directors who are elected at a general meeting of shareholders and the Company�s Articles of
Incorporation provide that the number of Directors shall not exceed 20. The term of office of each Director expires upon the conclusion of the
ordinary general meeting of shareholders with respect to the last fiscal year ending within one year after their appointment. Directors may serve
any number of consecutive terms. From among its members, the Company�s Board of Directors elects the Chairman. The Company�s Board of
Directors met 11 times during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013. As a group, the Directors attended approximately 97% of the total number
of meetings of the Board of Directors during the year. The Board of Directors has the authority to determine the Company�s basic management
policy and supervise the execution by the Executive Officers of their duties. Although the Board of Directors also has the authority to make
decisions with regard to the Company�s business, most of this authority has been delegated to the Executive Officers by a resolution adopted by
the Board of Directors. There are no Directors� service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries providing for benefits upon
termination of employment.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, in accordance with the Company�s Regulations of the Nomination Committee, determines the details of any
proposals concerning the election and dismissal of Directors to be submitted to general meetings of shareholders by the Board of Directors. The
Nomination Committee met three times during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013. As a group, the member Directors attended 100% of the
total number of meetings of the Nomination Committee during the year. As of June 26, 2013, the members of the Nomination Committee are
Nobuyuki Koga, Masahiro Sakane and Takao Kusakari. Nobuyuki Koga is the Chairman of this committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, in accordance with the Company�s Regulations of the Audit Committee, (i) audits the execution by the Directors and the
Executive Officers of their duties and the preparation of audit reports and (ii) determines the details of proposals concerning the election,
dismissal or non-reappointment of the accounting auditor to be submitted to general meetings of shareholders by the Board of Directors. With
respect to financial reporting, the Audit Committee has the statutory duty to examine financial statements and business reports to be prepared by
Executive Officers designated by the Board of Directors and is authorized to report its opinion to the ordinary general meeting of shareholders.
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The Audit Committee met 22 times during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013. As a group, the member Directors attended 100% of the total
number of meetings of the Audit Committee during the year. As of June 26, 2013, the members of the Audit Committee are Tsuguoki Fujinuma,
Toshinori Kanemoto and Hiroyuki Suzuki. Tsuguoki Fujinuma is the Chairman of this Committee.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee, in accordance with the Company�s Regulations of the Compensation Committee, determines the Company�s
policy with respect to the determination of the details of each Director and Executive Officer�s compensation. The Compensation Committee also
determines the details of each Director and Executive Officer�s actual compensation. The Compensation Committee met five times during the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2013. As a group, the member Directors attended 93% of the total number of meetings of the Compensation
Committee during the year. As of June 26, 2013, the members of the Compensation Committee are Nobuyuki Koga, Masahiro Sakane and
Takao Kusakari. Nobuyuki Koga is the Chairman of this Committee.

Limitation of Liabilities of Outside Directors

The Company has entered into agreements to limit Companies Act Article 423 Paragraph 1 liability for damages (limitation of liability
agreements) with each of the following Outside Directors: Masahiro Sakane, Toshinori Kanemoto, Tsuguoki Fujinuma, Takao Kusakari, Dame
Clara Furse, and Michael Lim Choo San. Liability under each such agreement is limited to either ¥20 million or the amount prescribed by laws
and regulations, whichever is greater.

Information Concerning Executive Officers

Executive Officers of the Company are appointed by the Board of Directors, and the Company�s Articles of Incorporation provide that the
number of Executive Officers shall not exceed 45. The term of office of each Executive Officer expires upon the conclusion of the first meeting
of the Board of Directors convened after the ordinary general meeting of shareholders for the last fiscal year ending within one year after each
Executive Officer�s assumption of office. Executive Officers may serve any number of consecutive terms. Executive Officers have the authority
to determine matters delegated to them by resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors and to execute business activities.

D. Employees

The following table shows the number of our employees as of the dates indicated:

As of March 31
2011 2012 2013

Japan 14,918 21,609 16,030
Europe 4,353 4,014 3,618
Americas 2,348 2,420 2,271
Asia and Oceania 5,252 6,352 6,037

Total 26,871 34,395 27,956

As of March 31, 2013, we had 16,030 employees in Japan, including 9,489 in our Retail Division, 849 in our Asset Management Division and
1,632 in our Wholesale Division. Overseas, we had 11,926 employees, of which 3,618 were located in Europe, 2,271 in the Americas, and 6,037
in Asia and Oceania.
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During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 NLB one of NHI�s affiliated companies, sold shares of Nomura Real Estate Holdings, Inc. As a
result, Nomura Real Estate Holdings, Inc. is no longer a consolidated subsidiary of NHI, thus the number of employees decreased significantly
compared to the previous year.

As of March 2013, 7,735 of Nomura Securities� employees in Japan were members of Nomura�s employees� union, with which we have a labor
contract. Between the company and the labor union, we had been holding constant discussions to develop solutions on labor related matters.

We have not experienced any strikes or other labor disputes in Japan as well as overseas and consider our employee relations to be excellent.

E. Share Ownership.

The following table shows the number of shares owned by our Directors and Executive Officers as of May 31, 2013. As of that date, none of
them owned 1% or more of our issued and outstanding shares. None of the shares referred to below have different voting rights.

Directors

Name
Number of

Shareholdings
Nobuyuki Koga 158,463
Koji Nagai 95,500
Atsushi Yoshikawa 125,353
Hiroyuki Suzuki 74,892
David Benson �  
Masahiro Sakane 30,000
Toshinori Kanemoto �  
Tsuguoki Fujinuma 25,170
Takao Kusakari �  
Dame Clara Furse �  
Michael Lim Choo San �  

Total 509,378

Executive Officers

Name
Number of

Shareholdings
Koji Nagai See above
Atsushi Yoshikawa See above
Toshio Morita 106,481
Toshihiro Iwasaki 27,621
Shoichi Nagamatsu 52,932
Shigesuke Kashiwagi 34,200

Total 221,234

For information regarding stock options granted to our Directors and Executive Officers, see under Item 6.B of this annual report.
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Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions

A. Major Shareholders.

The Company understands that there is no major shareholder who owns more than 5% of our outstanding common stock on the register of
shareholders as of March 31, 2013.

To our knowledge, we are not directly or indirectly owned or controlled by another corporation, by any government or by any other natural or
legal person severally or jointly. We know of no arrangements the operation of which may at a later time result in a change of control of
Nomura. Also as of March 31, 2013, there were 271 Nomura shareholders of record with addresses in the U.S., and those U.S. holders held
391,052,735 shares of the Company�s common stock, representing 10.2% of Nomura�s then outstanding common stock. As of March 31, 2013,
there were 22,948,546 ADSs outstanding, representing 22,948,546 shares of the Company�s common stock or 0.6% of Nomura�s then outstanding
common stock. Our major shareholders above do not have different voting rights.

B. Related Party Transactions.

Nomura Research Institute, Ltd.

NRI develops and manages computer systems and provides research services and management consulting services. We are one of the major
clients of NRI.

We held 38.8% of NRI�s outstanding share capital as of March 31, 2013.

For the year ended March 31, 2013, we purchased ¥55,098 million worth of software and computer equipment, paid NRI ¥48,518 million for
other services, and received ¥4,272 million as rents from NRI.

Directors

There were no significant transactions.

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel.

Not applicable.

Item 8. Financial Information

A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Information.

Financial Statements

The information required by this item is set forth in our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report.

Legal Proceedings

For a discussion of our litigation and related matters, see Note 22 �Contingencies�Investigations, lawsuits and other legal proceedings� in the
consolidated financial statements included in this annual report.

Dividend Policy

For our dividend policy, see �Capital Management�Dividends� under Item 5.B of this annual report.
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B. Significant Changes.

Except as disclosed in this annual report, there have been no significant changes since March 31, 2013.

Item 9. The Offer and Listing

A. Offer and Listing Details.

Price History

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the reported high and low sale prices of our common stock on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange and the reported high and low share prices of our ADS on the New York Stock Exchange.

Tokyo Stock Exchange
Price Per Share of
Common Stock

New York Stock Exchange
Price Per Share of ADS

Year ended March 31,     High        Low        High        Low    
Annual highs and lows
2009 1,918 403 17.89 3.96
2010 934 498 9.50 5.35
2011 717 361 7.67 4.75
2012 436 223 5.21 2.91
2013 608 241 6.30 3.05
Quarterly highs and lows
2012
First Quarter 436 368 5.21 4.61
Second Quarter 410 273 5.04 3.51
Third Quarter 327 223 4.12 2.91
Fourth Quarter 417 238 4.93 3.01
2013
First Quarter 381 241 4.53 3.05
Second Quarter 311 245 3.91 3.13
Third Quarter 505 261 5.89 3.36
Fourth Quarter 608 463 6.30 5.24
Monthly highs and lows
2013 (calendar year)
January 533 463 6.14 5.24
February 564 507 5.99 5.42
March 608 533 6.30 5.86
April 799 535 8.27 5.76
May 980 765 9.64 7.68
June (through June 26) 786 687 8.06 7.01
B. Plan of Distribution.

Not applicable.

C. Markets.

The principal trading market for the Company�s Common Stock is the Tokyo Stock Exchange. The Company�s Common Stock has been listed on
the Tokyo Stock Exchange, the Osaka Securities Exchange and the Nagoya Stock Exchange, since 1961.

In December 2001, the Company listed its Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange in the form of ADSs evidenced by ADRs. Each
ADS represents one share of Common Stock. The Company�s Common Stock has been listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange since 1994.
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D. Selling Shareholders.

Not applicable.

E. Dilution.

Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue.

Not applicable.

Item 10. Additional Information

A. Share Capital.

Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Objects and Purposes in the Company�s Articles of Incorporation

Article 2 of the Company�s Articles of Incorporation, which is an exhibit to this annual report, states the Company�s purpose.

Provisions Regarding the Company�s Directors

Although there is no provision in the Company�s Articles of Incorporation as to a Director�s power to vote on a proposal or arrangement in which
the Director is materially interested, under the Companies Act and the Company�s Regulations of the Board of Directors, a Director must abstain
from voting on such matters at meetings of the Board of Directors.

As a company organized under the Committee System of corporate governance, the compensation of the Company�s Directors and Executive
Officers is determined by the Compensation Committee (see Item 6.C above). The Compensation Committee establishes the policy with respect
to the determination of the individual compensation (including variable compensation) of each of the Company�s Directors and Executive
Officers and makes determinations in accordance with that compensation policy.

With respect to borrowing powers, these as well as other powers relating to the management of the business (with the exception of certain
exclusions specified under the Companies Act) have been delegated to the Executive Officers by the Board of Directors as a company organized
under the Committee System.

There is no mandatory retirement age for the Company�s Directors under the Companies Act or the Company�s Articles of Incorporation.

There is no requirement concerning the number of shares an individual must hold in order to qualify him or her to serve as a Director of the
Company under the Companies Act or the Company�s Articles of Incorporation.

Pursuant to the Companies Act and the Company�s Articles of Incorporation, the Company may, by a resolution of the Company�s Board of
Directors, release the liabilities of any Directors or Executive Officers to the Company for damages suffered by the Company due to their acts
taken in good faith and without gross negligence, to the extent permitted by the Companies Act and the Company�s Articles of Incorporation. In
addition, the Company may execute with outside Directors agreements that limit their liabilities to the Company
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for damages suffered by the Company due to their acts in good faith and without gross negligence, to the extent permitted by the Companies Act
and the Company�s Articles of Incorporation. See �Limitation of Liabilities of Outside Directors� under Item 6.C above.

Holding of the Company�s Shares by Foreign Investors

Other than the Japanese unit share system that is described in �Common Stock�Japanese Unit Share System� below, no limitations on the rights of
non-residents or foreign shareholders to hold or exercise voting rights with respect to the Company�s shares are imposed by law, the Company�s
Articles of Incorporation or the Company�s other constituent documents.

Common Stock

The following describes material features of the shares of the Company�s common stock, and includes a brief overview of the material provisions
of the Company�s Articles of Incorporation and Share Handling Regulations, as currently in effect, and of the Companies Act and related
legislation. In this �Common Stock� section, unless the context otherwise requires, �shares� means shares of the Company�s common stock and
�shareholders� means holders of shares of the Company�s common stock.

General

Under the Company�s Articles of Incorporation, the Company is authorized to issue 6,000,000,000 shares, of which 3,822,562,601 shares were
issued as of March 31, 2013. All issued shares are fully-paid and non-assessable.

On January 5, 2009, a central clearing system for shares of Japanese listed companies was established pursuant to the Act on Book-Entry
Transfer of Company Bonds, Shares, Etc. (including regulations promulgated thereunder; the �Book-Entry Law�), and the shares of all Japanese
companies listed on any Japanese stock exchange, including the Company�s shares, became subject to this clearing system. On the same day, all
existing share certificates for such shares became null and void. At present, Japan Securities Depository Center, Inc. (�JASDEC�) is the only
institution that is designated by the relevant authorities as a clearing house which is permitted to engage in the clearing operations of shares of
Japanese listed companies under the Book-Entry Law. Under this clearing system, in order for any person to hold, sell or otherwise dispose of
shares of Japanese listed companies, they must have an account at an �account managing institution� unless such person has an account at
JASDEC. �Account managing institutions� are financial instruments traders (i.e., securities companies), banks, trust companies and certain other
financial institutions which meet the requirements prescribed by the Book-Entry Law, and only those financial institutions that meet further
stringent requirements of the Book-Entry Law can open accounts directly at JASDEC. For purposes of the description under this �Common Stock�
section, we assume that the relevant person has no account at JASDEC.

Under the Book-Entry Law, any transfer of shares is effected through book-entry, and title to the shares passes to the transferee at the time when
the transferred number of the shares is recorded in the transferee�s account by an account managing institution. The holder of an account at an
account managing institution is presumed to be the legal owner of the shares held in such account.

Under the Companies Act and the Book-Entry Law, except in limited circumstances, a shareholder must have his or her name and address
registered in the Company�s register of shareholders in order to assert shareholders� rights against the Company. Such registration is generally
made upon receipt by the Company of necessary information from JASDEC. See �Share Registrar� and �Record Date� below.

Non-resident shareholders are required to appoint a standing proxy in Japan or provide a mailing address in Japan. Each such shareholder must
give notice of such standing proxy or mailing address to the relevant account
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managing institution. Such notice will be forwarded to the Company through JASDEC. Japanese securities companies and commercial banks
customarily act as standing proxies and provide related services for standard fees. Notices from the Company to non-resident shareholders are
delivered to such standing proxies or mailing addresses.

The registered holder of deposited shares underlying the ADSs is the depositary for the ADSs. Accordingly, holders of ADSs will not be able to
directly assert shareholders� rights.

Dividends

Under the Companies Act, distributions of cash or other assets by joint stock corporations to their shareholders, so called �dividends,� are referred
to as �distributions of Surplus� (�Surplus� is defined in �Restriction on Distributions of Surplus� below). The Company may make distributions of
Surplus to the shareholders any number of times per fiscal year, subject to certain limitations described in �Restriction on Distributions of
Surplus.� As a company meeting the necessary requirements, the Companies Act allows for the Company�s Articles of Incorporation to authorize
the Company�s Board of Directors to make decisions regarding distributions of Surplus (with the exceptions of certain exclusions specified under
the Companies Act).

Under the Company�s Articles of Incorporation, dividends, if any, may be distributed to shareholders (or pledgees) appearing in the register of
shareholders as of June 30, September 30, December 31 or March 31 of each year, pursuant to a resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors.
In addition, under the Companies Act and the Company�s Articles of Incorporation, the Company may (but is not obligated to) make further
distributions of Surplus by a resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors. However, the Company equally may decide not to pay dividends
for any given period, regardless of the amount of Surplus the Company has.

Under the Company�s Articles of Incorporation, the Company is not obliged to pay any dividends in cash that are left unclaimed for a period of
three years after the date on which they first became payable.

Distributions of Surplus may be distributed in cash or in kind in proportion to the number of shares held by each shareholder. A resolution of the
Company�s Board of Directors authorizing a distribution of Surplus must specify the kind and aggregate book value of the assets to be
distributed, the manner of allocation of such assets to shareholders and the effective date of the distribution. If a distribution of Surplus is to be
made in kind, the Company may, pursuant to a resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors, grant to the Company�s shareholders the right to
require the Company to make such distribution in cash instead of in kind. If no such right is granted to shareholders, the relevant distribution of
Surplus must be approved by a special resolution of the Company�s general meeting of shareholders.

For information as to Japanese taxes on dividends, see �Japanese Taxation� under Item 10.E of this annual report.

Restriction on Distributions of Surplus

When the Company makes a distribution of Surplus, the Company must, until the aggregate amount of the Company�s additional paid-in capital
and legal reserve reaches one-quarter of the Company�s stated capital, set aside in the Company�s additional paid-in capital and/or legal reserve an
amount equal to one-tenth of the amount of Surplus so distributed in accordance with an ordinance of the Ministry of Justice of Japan.
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The amount of Surplus at any given time must be calculated in accordance with the following formula:

A + B + C + D - (E + F + G)

In the above formula:

�A� = the total amount of �other capital surplus� and �other retained earnings� each such amount being that appearing on the Company�s
non-consolidated balance sheets as of the end of the last fiscal year;

�B� = (if the Company has disposed of treasury stock after the end of the last fiscal year) the amount of the consideration for such
treasury stock received by the Company less the book value thereof;

�C� = (if the Company has reduced stated capital after the end of the last fiscal year) the amount of such reduction less the portion
thereof that has been transferred to additional paid-in capital or legal reserve (if any);

�D� = (if the Company has reduced additional paid-in capital or legal reserve after the end of the last fiscal year) the amount of such
reduction less the portion thereof that has been transferred to stated capital (if any);

�E� = (if the Company has cancelled treasury stock after the end of the last fiscal year) the book value of such treasury stock;

�F� = (if the Company has distributed Surplus to shareholders after the end of the last fiscal year) the total book value of Surplus so
distributed;

�G� = certain other amounts set forth in ordinances of the Ministry of Justice, including (if the Company has reduced Surplus and
increased stated capital, additional paid-in capital or legal reserve after the end of the last fiscal year) the amount of such
reduction and (if the Company has distributed Surplus to shareholders after the end of the last fiscal year) the amount set
aside in the Company�s additional paid-in capital or legal reserve (if any) as required by ordinances of the Ministry of Justice.

The aggregate book value of Surplus distributed by the Company may not exceed a prescribed distributable amount (the �Distributable Amount�),
as calculated on the effective date of such distribution. The Distributable Amount at any given time shall be equal to the amount of Surplus less
the aggregate of the following:

(a) the book value of the Company�s treasury stock;

(b) the amount of consideration for the Company�s treasury stock disposed of after the end of the last fiscal year; and

(c) certain other amounts set forth in ordinances of the Ministry of Justice, including (if the sum of one-half of goodwill and the deferred
assets exceeds the total of stated capital, additional paid-in capital and legal reserve, each such amount being that appearing on the
Company�s non-consolidated balance sheets as of the end of the last fiscal year) all or a certain part of such excess amount as
calculated in accordance with ordinances of the Ministry of Justice.

If the Company becomes, at the Company�s option, a company with respect to which consolidated balance sheets should also be taken into
consideration in the calculation of the Distributable Amount (renketsu haito kisei tekiyo kaisha), the Company will be further required to deduct
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from the amount of Surplus the excess amount, if any, of (x) the total amount of shareholders� equity appearing on the Company�s
non-consolidated balance sheets as of the end of the last fiscal year and certain other amounts set forth in ordinances of the Ministry of Justice
over (y) the total amount of shareholders� equity and certain other amounts set forth in ordinances of the Ministry of Justice appearing on the
Company�s consolidated balance sheets as of the end of the last fiscal year.

If the Company has prepared non-consolidated interim financial statements as described below, and if such interim financial statements have
been approved by the Board of Directors or (if so required by the Companies
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Act) by a resolution of a general meeting of shareholders, the Distributable Amount must be adjusted to take into account the amount of profit or
loss, and the amount of consideration for the Company�s treasury stock disposed of, during the period in respect of which such interim financial
statements have been prepared. The Company may prepare non-consolidated interim financial statements consisting of a balance sheet as of any
date subsequent to the end of the last fiscal year and an income statement for the period from the first day of the current fiscal year to the date of
such balance sheet. Interim financial statements so prepared by the Company must be approved by the Board of Directors and audited by the
Company�s Audit Committee and independent auditors, as required by ordinances of the Ministry of Justice.

Stock Splits

The Company may at any time split the issued shares into a greater number of shares by a resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors, and in
accordance with the Companies Act, the Company�s Board of Directors has adopted a resolution delegating powers to make such stock splits to
the Company�s executive management board (�EMB�).

In accordance with the Companies Act, the Company�s Board of Directors has adopted a resolution delegating to the Company�s EMB powers to
increase the number of authorized shares permitted to be issued up to the number reflecting the rate of stock splits and to amend the Company�s
Articles of Incorporation to this effect without approval by a resolution of a general meeting of shareholders. For example, if each share became
three shares by way of a stock split, the EMB may increase the number of authorized shares from the current 6,000,000,000 shares to
18,000,000,000 shares.

Japanese Unit Share System

The Company�s Articles of Incorporation provide that 100 shares constitute one �unit�. The Companies Act permits the Company, by a resolution
of the Company�s Board of Directors, to reduce the number of shares which constitutes one unit or abolish the unit share system, and amend the
Company�s Articles of Incorporation to this effect without approval by a resolution of a general meeting of shareholders.

Transferability of Shares Constituting Less Than One Unit. Under the clearing system, shares constituting less than one unit are transferable.
Under the rules of the Japanese stock exchanges, however, shares constituting less than one unit do not comprise a trading unit, except in limited
circumstances, and accordingly may not be sold on the Japanese stock exchanges.

Right of a Holder of Shares Constituting Less Than One Unit to Require the Company to Purchase Its Shares. A holder of shares constituting
less than one unit may at any time request the Company to purchase its shares. Under the clearing system, such request must be made through
the relevant account managing institution. These shares will be purchased at (a) the closing price of the Company�s shares reported by the Tokyo
Stock Exchange on the day when the request to purchase is received by the Company�s share registrar or (b) if no sale takes place on the Tokyo
Stock Exchange on that day, the price at which the sale of shares is effected on such stock exchange immediately thereafter. An amount equal to
the applicable handling fee will be deducted from the price so determined pursuant to the Company�s Share Handling Regulations.

Purchase of Shares up to a Whole Unit for a Holder of Shares Constituting Less than One Unit. The Company�s Articles of Incorporation
provide that a holder of shares constituting less than one unit may request the Company to sell shares the Company may have to such holder so
that the holder can raise the holder�s fractional ownership up to a whole unit. Under the clearing system, such request must be made through the
relevant account managing institution. These shares will be sold at (a) the closing price of the Company�s shares reported by the Tokyo Stock
Exchange on the day when the request to sell is received by the Company�s share registrar or (b) if no sale has taken place on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange on that day, the price at which sale of
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shares is effected on such stock exchange immediately thereafter. An amount equal to the applicable handling fee will be added to the price so
determined pursuant to the Company�s Share Handling Regulations.

Voting Rights of a Holder of Shares Constituting Less Than One Unit. A holder of shares constituting less than one unit cannot exercise any
voting rights pertaining to those shares. In calculating the quorum for various voting purposes, the aggregate number of shares constituting less
than one unit will be excluded from the number of outstanding shares. A holder of shares representing one or more whole units will have one
vote for each whole unit represented.

A holder of shares constituting less than one unit does not have any rights related to voting, such as the right to participate in a demand for the
dismissal of a Director, the right to participate in a demand for the convocation of a meeting of shareholders and the right to join with other
shareholders to propose an agenda item to be addressed at a meeting of shareholders. In addition, a holder of shares constituting less than one
unit does not have the right to institute a representative action by shareholders.

In accordance with the Companies Act, the Company�s Articles of Incorporation provide that a holder of shares constituting less than one unit
does not have any other rights of a shareholder in respect of those shares, other than those provided by the Company�s Articles of Incorporation
which includes the following rights:

� to receive dividends,

� to receive cash or other assets in case of consolidation or split of shares, exchange or transfer of shares, corporate split or merger,

� to be allotted rights to subscribe for free for new shares and stock acquisition rights when such rights are granted to shareholders, and

� to participate in any distribution of surplus assets upon liquidation.
Annual Meeting of Shareholders

The Company normally holds its ordinary general meeting of shareholders in June of each year. In addition, the Company may hold an
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders whenever necessary by giving at least two weeks� advance notice. Under the Companies Act,
notice of any general meeting of shareholders must be given to each shareholder having voting rights or, in the case of a non-resident
shareholder, to his standing proxy or mailing address in Japan in accordance with the Company�s Share Handling Regulations, at least two weeks
prior to the date of the meeting.

Voting Rights

A shareholder is generally entitled to one vote per one unit of shares as described in this paragraph and under the section entitled the �Japanese
Unit Share System� above. In general, under the Companies Act, a resolution can be adopted at a general meeting of shareholders by the holders
of a majority of the total number of voting rights represented at the meeting. However, if a corporate shareholder has one-quarter or more of its
total voting rights held by the Company or its subsidiary, or if the Company otherwise has actual control over such corporate shareholder, such
corporate shareholder is not entitled to exercise its voting rights. The Companies Act and the Company�s Articles of Incorporation require a
quorum for the election of Directors of not less than one-third of the total number of voting rights. The Company�s shareholders are not entitled
to cumulative voting in the election of Directors. Shareholders may exercise their voting rights through proxies, provided that those proxies are
also shareholders who have voting rights.
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The Companies Act provides that certain important matters shall be approved by a �special resolution� of a general meeting of shareholders. The
Company�s Articles of Incorporation provide that the quorum for a special resolution is one-third of the total number of voting rights and the
approval of at least two-thirds of the voting rights presented at the meeting is required for adopting a special resolution. Such important matters
include:

� a reduction of stated capital,

� amendment to the Articles of Incorporation (except amendments which the Board of Directors (or under the Committee System,
Executive Officers) are authorized to make under the Companies Act),

� establishment of a 100% parent-subsidiary relationship by way of share exchange or share transfer requiring shareholders� approval,

� a dissolution, merger or consolidation requiring shareholders� approval,

� a corporate split requiring shareholders� approval,

� the transfer of the whole or an important part of the Company�s business,

� the taking over of the whole of the business of any other corporation requiring shareholders� approval,

� any issuance of new shares or transfer of existing shares as treasury stock to persons other than the shareholders at a �specially
favorable� price,

� any issuance of stock acquisition rights (including those incorporated in bonds with stock acquisition rights) to persons other than the
shareholders under �specially favorable� conditions,

� purchase of shares by the Company from a specific shareholder other than the Company�s subsidiary,

� consolidation of shares, and

� release of part of directors�, independent auditor�s or executive officers� liabilities to their corporation.
The voting rights of holders of ADSs are exercised by the depositary based on instructions from those holders.

Subscription Rights

Holders of shares have no preemptive rights under the Company�s Articles of Incorporation when the Company issues new shares. Under the
Companies Act, the Company�s EMB, which has been delegated by the Company�s Board of Directors with the authority to issue new shares,
may, however, determine that shareholders be given subscription rights in connection with a particular issue of new shares. In this case, such
rights must be given on uniform terms to all shareholders as of a specified record date with at least two weeks� prior notice to shareholders of the
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Stock Acquisition Rights

The Company may issue stock acquisition rights (shinkabu yoyakuken). Holders of stock acquisition rights are entitled to acquire shares from the
Company, upon payment of the applicable exercise price, and subject to other terms and conditions thereof. The issuance of stock acquisition
rights and bonds with stock acquisition rights may be authorized by the Company�s EMB, which has been delegated by the Company�s Board of
Directors with the authority to issue stock acquisition rights, unless it is made under �specially favorable� conditions in which case a special
resolution of a general meeting of shareholders is required. In issuing stock acquisition rights, notice must be given at least two weeks prior to
the date for allotment in the form of individual notice or public notice. Under the Companies Act the Company will not be required to give such
notice if the Company makes a relevant securities filing or reporting under the FIEA at least two weeks prior to the date for allotment, subject to
the requirements provided by the ordinance of the Ministry of Justice.
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Liquidation Rights

In the event of liquidation, the assets remaining after payment of all debt securities and borrowings, liquidation expenses and taxes will be
distributed among shareholders in proportion to the number of shares they own.

Liability to Further Calls or Assessments

All of the Company�s currently outstanding shares, including shares represented by the ADSs, are fully paid and nonassessable.

Share Registrar

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation (�Mitsubishi UFJ Trust�) is the share registrar for the Company�s shares. Mitsubishi UFJ Trust�s
office is located at 4-5, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 100-8212 Japan. Mitsubishi UFJ Trust maintains the Company�s register of
shareholders and registers the names and addresses of the Company�s shareholders and other relevant information in the Company�s register of
shareholders upon notice thereof from JASDEC, as described in �Record Date� below.

Record Date

The close of business on June 30, September 30, December 31 and March 31 are the record dates for the Company�s distributions of Surplus
(dividends), if any. A holder of shares constituting one or more whole units, who is registered as a holder in the Company�s register of
shareholders at the close of business as of March 31, is also entitled to exercise shareholders� voting rights at the ordinary general meeting of
shareholders with respect to the fiscal year ended on March 31. In addition, the Company may set a record date for determining the shareholders
entitled to other rights and for other purposes by giving at least two weeks� public notice.

Under the Book-Entry Law, the Company is required to give notice of each record date to JASDEC at least two weeks prior to such record date.
JASDEC is required to promptly give the Company notice of the names and addresses of the Company�s shareholders, the numbers of shares
held by them and other relevant information as of such record date.

The shares are generally traded ex-dividend or ex-rights in the Japanese stock exchanges on the second business day prior to the record date (or
if the record date is not a business day, the third business day prior thereto), for the purpose of dividends or rights offerings.

Acquisition of Own Shares

The Company may acquire its own shares (i) by soliciting all of the Company�s shareholders to offer to sell the Company�s shares held by them
(pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors), (ii) from a specific shareholder other than any of the Company�s subsidiaries (pursuant to a
special resolution of a general meeting of shareholders), (iii) from any of the Company�s subsidiaries (pursuant to a resolution of the Board of
Directors), or (iv) by way of purchase on any Japanese stock exchange on which the Company�s shares are listed or by way of tender offer (in
either case pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors). In the case of (ii) above, any other shareholder may make a request to the
Company that such other shareholder be included as a seller in the proposed purchase, provided that no such right will be available if the
purchase price or any other consideration to be received by the relevant specific shareholder will not exceed the higher of (x) the last trading
price of the shares on the relevant stock exchange on the day immediately preceding the date on which the resolution mentioned in (ii) was
adopted (or, if there is no trading in the shares on the stock exchange or if the stock exchange is not open on such day, the price at which the
shares are first traded on such stock exchange
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thereafter) and (y) if the shares are subject to a tender offer on the day immediately preceding the date on which the resolution mentioned in
(ii) above was adopted, the price of the shares under the agreement with respect to such tender offer on such day. This acquisition is subject to
the condition that the aggregate amount of the purchase price must not exceed the Distributable Amount as described in �Restriction on
Distributions of Surplus� above.

The Company may hold its shares acquired in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, and may generally dispose of or cancel
such shares by a resolution of the Board of Directors.

In addition, the Company may acquire its shares by means of repurchase of any number of shares constituting less than one unit upon the request
of the holder of those shares, as described under �Japanese Unit Share System� above.

Preferred Stock

The following is a description of material features of the Company�s preferred stock. The basic characteristics of the Company�s preferred stock
are set forth in the Company�s Articles of Incorporation, and detailed terms and conditions of the Company�s preferred stock are to be determined
prior to the issuance thereof by a resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors or by Executive Officer(s) under authorities delegated by a
resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors.

General

The Company�s Articles of Incorporation include the possibility of issuing preferred stock. The Company has not yet issued, and currently has no
specific plan to issue, any preferred stock; however the Company provides, as follows, certain information on the characteristics of the types of
preferred stock set forth in the Company�s Articles of Incorporation.

Under the Company�s Articles of Incorporation, the Company is authorized to issue 200,000,000 shares of Class 1 preferred stock, 200,000,000
shares of Class 2 preferred stock, 200,000,000 shares of Class 3 preferred stock and 200,000,000 shares of Class 4 preferred stock. Of these,
Class 3 and Class 4 preferred stock are convertible into common stock, while Class 1 and Class 2 preferred stock are not convertible into
common stock. See �Right of Shareholders of Preferred Stock to Demand Acquisition thereof (Conversion)� below.

Preferred Dividends

Under the Company�s Articles of Incorporation, preferred dividends may be paid to shareholders of preferred stock on record as of March 31
every year. In addition, interim preferred dividends may be paid to shareholders of the Company�s preferred stock on record as of
June 30, September 30 or December 31 of any year. Dividends on preferred stock are to be paid always in priority to dividends on common
stock. The detailed terms and conditions of each class of preferred stock, including the amount of preferred dividends or preferred interim
dividends, are to be determined by a resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors or by Executive Officer(s) under authorities delegated by a
resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors prior to the time of issuance thereof, provided that the annual dividend rate applicable to Class 1
and Class 2 preferred stock may not exceed 15%, and the annual dividend rate applicable to Class 3 and Class 4 preferred stock may not exceed
10%.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Company�s Articles of Incorporation, no payment of any dividend on preferred stock may be made unless
the Company has sufficient Surplus to pay such dividend, and each payment of a dividend on a preferred stock must be approved by the
Company�s Board of Directors.

Dividends on the Company�s preferred stock are non-cumulative. In the event that preferred dividends were paid, and the amount actually paid
by the Company in respect of any fiscal year was less than the amount thereof payable in respect of such fiscal year, preferred shareholders
would have no right to seek payment of the deficient amount as a cumulative preferred dividend in any subsequent fiscal year.
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Shareholders of the Company�s preferred stock will not be entitled to any further dividends or other participation in or distribution of Surplus.

Voting Rights

Any voting rights attached to the Company�s preferred stock are limited to the extent specifically provided under the Companies Act, any other
applicable laws and the Company�s Articles of Incorporation. Subject to the conditions stated therein, the voting rights of the Company�s
preferred stock as provided in the Company�s Articles of Incorporation are as follows:

� If no resolution to pay a preferred dividend has been adopted by the Board of Directors prior to the dispatch of the convocation notice
for the ordinary general meeting of shareholders in respect of any fiscal year, and if no proposal to pay such preferred dividend was
submitted to the relevant ordinary general meeting of shareholders, then the shareholders of the relevant preferred stock will be
entitled to vote at such meeting and all subsequent general meetings of shareholders up to the time when the Board of Directors or
general meeting of shareholders adopts a resolution to pay such preferred dividend; and

� If a resolution to pay a preferred dividend has not been adopted at any ordinary general meeting of shareholders, the shareholders of
the relevant preferred stock will be entitled to vote at all subsequent general meetings of shareholders up to the time when the Board of
Directors or general meeting of shareholders adopts a resolution to pay such preferred dividend.

Liquidation Rights

In the event of the Company�s voluntary or involuntary liquidation, shareholders of the Company�s preferred stock would be entitled, in
preference over shareholders of common stock, to receive such amounts of the Company�s residual assets as may be determined by a resolution
of the Company�s Board of Directors or by Executive Officer(s) under authorities delegated by a resolution of the Board of Directors taking into
consideration the amounts of subscription moneys paid for the respective preferred stock.

Except as described above, shareholders of the Company�s preferred stock would not be entitled to receive a distribution of residual assets upon
liquidation of the Company.

Right of Shareholders of Preferred Stock to Demand Acquisition thereof (Conversion)

Class 3 preferred stock and Class 4 preferred stock are attached with the right to demand that the Company acquire such shares of preferred
stock during a certain period. In the event of the exercise of such right, the Company shall be required to deliver to the relevant shareholder a
certain number of shares of the Company�s common stock in exchange for the shares of the preferred stock acquired by the Company from such
shareholder. Specific terms of such right, including the period during which the preferred stock would be acquired (a �conversion period�) and the
initial acquisition price (a �conversion price�), would be determined by a resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors or by Executive
Officer(s) under authorities delegated by a resolution of the Board of Directors.

The Company�s Right and Obligation to Acquire Preferred Stock

Upon the occurrence of such event or on such date as may be determined by a resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors or by Executive
Officer(s) under authorities delegated by a resolution of the Board of Directors prior to the issuance of any of Class 1 preferred stock, Class 2
preferred stock and/or Class 4 preferred stock, the Company shall have the right to acquire all or any part of the relevant shares of preferred
stock. In the event the Company exercises such right, the Company would deliver to the relevant shareholder a certain amount of cash in
exchange for the shares of the preferred stock acquired by the Company from such shareholder. The
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initial acquisition price at which the relevant preferred stock would be acquired by the Company would be determined prior to the time of
issuance thereof by a resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors or by Executive Officer(s) under authorities delegated by a resolution of the
Board of Directors taking into consideration the amount of subscription moneys paid for the relevant preferred stock.

With respect to Class 3 preferred stock and Class 4 preferred stock, the Company has the obligation to acquire all shares of such preferred stock
outstanding on the day immediately following the last day of the relevant conversion period. In such an event, the Company would deliver to the
relevant shareholders a certain number of shares of the Company�s common stock in exchange for the shares of the preferred stock acquired by
the Company from them. The number of shares of the Company�s common stock to be delivered to a shareholder of the relevant preferred stock
would be calculated by multiplying the number of shares of the preferred stock held by such shareholder by the amount of the subscription
money per share paid for such preferred stock and dividing the resulting amount by the market price of a share of the Company�s common stock
at the time.

Pursuant to amendments to the Company�s Articles of Incorporation approved at the Company�s annual meeting of shareholders held on June 28,
2011, the following feature has been added to the preferred stock described in the Company�s Articles of Incorporation: The Company must
acquire all or any part of shares of Class 1 preferred stock, Class 2 preferred stock, Class 3 preferred stock and/or Class 4 preferred stock upon
the occurrence of certain events determined by a resolution of the Company�s Board of Directors or by Executive Officer(s) under authorities
delegated by a resolution of the Board of Directors (including the event that the Company�s capital adequacy ratio or other measure of regulatory
capital falls below a pre-determined threshold, and/or the event that a supervisory agency (or an equivalent body) determines that a write-down,
capital injection by a public institution or other equivalent action is necessary for the Company) prior to the time of issuance of the relevant
preferred stock. In such an event, the Company will deliver to the relevant shareholders a certain number of shares of the Company�s common
stock in exchange for the shares of the preferred stock acquired by the Company from them. The number of the Company�s common stock to be
delivered to a shareholder of the relevant preferred stock would be determined prior to the issuance of such preferred shares by a resolution of
the Company�s Board of Directors or by Executive Officer(s) considering the subscription price of the preferred shares, the market value of the
Company�s common stock and market conditions. An upper limit for the common stock to be delivered in exchange for the relevant preferred
shares may also be set pursuant to such resolution or determination.

Order of Priority

Class 1 through Class 4 preferred stock shall have the same order of priority in respect of the payment of preferred dividends and preferred
interim dividends and the distribution of residual assets. All classes of preferred stock will be in priority to the Company�s common stock in
respect of the payments of dividends and interim dividends and the distribution of residual assets.

Report of Substantial Shareholdings

The FIEA requires any person who has become, beneficially and solely or jointly, a holder of more than 5% of the total issued shares of a
company listed on any Japanese stock exchange to file with the relevant Local Finance Bureau, within five business days, a report concerning
those shareholdings. With certain exceptions, a similar report must also be filed to reflect any change of 1% or more in the above shareholding
or any change in material matters set out in any previously filed reports. Copies of any reports must also be furnished to the Company. For this
purpose, shares issuable to a person upon exercise of stock acquisition rights are taken into account in determining both the number of shares
held by that holder and the Company�s total issued share capital.
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Daily Price Fluctuation Limits under Japanese Stock Exchange Rules

Stock prices on Japanese stock exchanges are determined on a real-time basis by the equilibrium between bids and offers. These exchanges are
order-driven markets without specialists or market makers to guide price formation. To prevent excessive volatility, these exchange set daily
upward and downward price fluctuation limits for each stock, based on the previous day�s closing price. Although transactions may continue at
the upward or downward limit price if the limit price is reached on a particular trading day, no transactions may take place outside these limits.
Consequently, an investor wishing to sell at a price above or below the relevant daily limit may not be able to sell the shares at such price on a
particular trading day, or at all.

On June 26, 2013, the closing price of the Company�s shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange was ¥698 per share. The following table shows the
daily price limit for a stock on the Tokyo Stock Exchange. Other daily price limits would apply if the per share price of shares of the Company
moved to other ranges.

Selected Daily Price Limits

Previous Day�s Closing Price or Special Quote Maximum Daily Price Movement
Equal to or greater than ¥ 100 Less than ¥ 200 ¥ 50
Equal to or greater than 200 Less than 500 80
Equal to or greater than 500 Less than 700    100
Equal to or greater than 700 Less than 1,000 150
Equal to or greater than 1,000 Less than 1,500 300
For a history of the trading price of shares of the Company on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, see Item 9.A of this annual report.

Rights of ADR Holders

The rights of ADR holders, including their rights to corporate governance practices, are governed by the Deposit Agreement which is an exhibit
to this annual report. For a description of the rights of holders of ADSs, see �Rights of Holders of ADSs� under Item 10.B of our Registration
Statement on Form 20-F (File No. 1-15270), which we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 13, 2001. The
information contained in that part of the Registration Statement is incorporated in Item 10.B of this annual report by reference. For fees and
charges that a holder of ADSs may have to pay, see �Description of Securities Other Than Equity Securities� under Item 12 of this annual report.

C. Material Contracts.

For the two years immediately preceding the date of this annual report, we have not been a party to any material agreement other than in the
ordinary course of business, except as disclosed in Item 6.C of this annual report.

D. Exchange Controls.

Acquisition of Shares

The Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade Law of Japan and its related cabinet orders and ministerial ordinances (�Foreign Exchange
Regulations�) governs certain aspects relating to the acquisition and holding of securities by �non-residents of Japan� and �foreign investors�, as
defined below.

In general, acquisition of shares of stock of a Japanese company listed on any Japanese stock exchange by a non-resident of Japan from a
resident of Japan is not subject to any prior notification requirement, but subject to a post reporting requirement by the resident.

If a foreign investor acquires shares of a Japanese company listed on a Japanese stock exchange and as a result of this acquisition directly or
indirectly holds 10% or more of the issued shares of such company, together
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with its existing holdings and those of other parties who have a special relationship with that foreign investor, the foreign investor is, in general,
required to report the acquisition to the Minister of Finance and any other competent ministers via the Bank of Japan by the 15th day of the
immediately following month in which the date of acquisition falls. In exceptional cases, a prior notification is required in respect of the
acquisition.

�Non-residents of Japan� are generally defined as individuals who are not resident in Japan and corporations whose principal offices are located
outside Japan. Branches and other offices of Japanese corporations located outside Japan are considered as non-residents of Japan, and branches
and other offices located within Japan of non-resident corporations are considered as residents of Japan.

�Foreign investors� are generally defined as (i) individuals who are not resident in Japan, (ii) corporations which are organized under the laws of
foreign countries or whose principal offices are located outside Japan, and (iii) corporations of which (a) 50% or more of the voting rights are
held directly or indirectly by (i) and/or (ii) above, (b) a majority of officers consists of non-residents of Japan or (c) a majority of officers having
the power of representation consists of non-residents of Japan.

Dividends and Proceeds of Sale

Under the Foreign Exchange Regulations, dividends paid on, and the proceeds of sales in Japan of, shares held by non-residents of Japan may in
general be converted into any foreign currency and repatriated abroad. Under the terms of the deposit agreement pursuant to which ADSs of the
Company will be issued, the depositary is required, to the extent that in its judgment it can convert yen on a reasonable basis into dollars and
transfer the resulting dollars to the U.S., to convert all cash dividends that it receives in respect of deposited shares into dollars and to distribute
the amount received (after deduction of applicable withholding taxes) to the holders of ADSs.

E. Taxation.

U.S. Federal Income Taxation

This section describes the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of owning shares or ADSs. It applies to you only if you are a U.S.
holder (as defined below), you acquire your shares or ADSs in an offering and you hold your shares or ADSs as capital assets for tax purposes.
This section does not apply to you if you are a member of a special class of holders subject to special rules, including:

� a dealer in securities,

� a trader in securities that elects to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for your securities holdings,

� a tax-exempt organization,

� a life insurance company,

� a person liable for alternative minimum tax,

� a person that actually or constructively owns 10% or more of our voting stock,

� a person that holds shares or ADSs as part of a straddle or a hedging, conversion, integrated or constructive sale transaction,
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� a person whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar.
This section is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, its legislative history, existing and proposed regulations, published
rulings and court decisions, all as currently in effect, as well as on the Income
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Tax Convention Between the U.S. and Japan (�Japan-U.S. Tax Treaty�). These laws are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis. In
addition, this section is based in part upon the representations of The Bank of New York Mellon and the assumption that each obligation in the
deposit agreement and any related agreement will be performed in accordance with its terms.

If a partnership holds the shares or ADSs, the U.S. federal income tax treatment of a partner will generally depend on the status of the partner
and the tax treatment of the partnership. A partner in a partnership holding the shares or ADSs should consult its tax advisor with regard to the
U.S. federal income tax treatment of an investment in the shares or ADSs.

You are a U.S. holder if you are a beneficial owner of shares or ADSs and you are:

� a citizen or resident of the U.S.,

� a corporation created or organized in or under the laws of the U.S. or any political subdivision thereof,

� an estate whose income is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source, or

� a trust if a U.S. court can exercise primary supervision over the trust�s administration and one or more U.S. persons are authorized to
control all substantial decisions of the trust.

You should consult your own tax advisor regarding the U.S. federal, state, local and other tax consequences of owning and disposing of shares
and ADSs in your particular circumstances.

This discussion addresses only U.S. federal income taxation.

In general, and taking into account the earlier assumptions, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, if you hold ADRs evidencing ADSs, you will
be treated as the owner of the shares represented by those ADSs. Exchanges of shares for ADRs, and ADRs for shares, generally will not be
subject to U.S. federal income tax.

Taxation of Dividends

Under the U.S. federal income tax laws, and subject to the passive foreign investment company (�PFIC�) rules discussed below, the gross amount
of any dividend we pay out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits (as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes) is subject to
U.S. federal income taxation. If you are a non-corporate U.S. holder, dividends that constitute qualified dividend income will be taxable to you
at the preferential rates applicable to long-term capital gains provided that you hold the shares or ADSs for more than 60 days during the
121-day period beginning 60 days before the ex-dividend date and meet other holding period requirements. Dividends we pay with respect to the
shares or ADSs generally will be qualified dividend income. You must include any Japanese tax withheld from the dividend payment in this
gross amount even though you do not in fact receive it.

The dividend is taxable when you, in the case of shares, or the depositary, in the case of ADSs, receive the dividend, actually or constructively.
The dividend will not be eligible for the �dividends-received deduction� generally allowed to U.S. corporations in respect of dividends received
from other U.S. corporations. The amount of the dividend distribution that you must include in your income as a U.S. holder will be the U.S.
dollar value of the Japanese yen payments made, determined at the spot Japanese yen/U.S. dollar rate on the date the dividend distribution is
includible in your income, regardless of whether the payment is in fact converted into U.S. dollars. Generally, any gain or loss resulting from
currency exchange fluctuations during the period from the date you include the dividend payment in income to the date you convert the payment
into U.S. dollars will be treated as ordinary income or loss and will not be eligible for the special tax rate applicable to qualified dividend
income. The gain or loss generally will be income or loss from sources within the U.S. for foreign tax credit limitation purposes. Distributions in
excess of current and accumulated earnings and profits, as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes, will be treated as a non-taxable
return of capital to the extent of your basis in the shares or ADSs and thereafter as capital gain. However, we do not expect to calculate earnings
and profits in accordance with United States federal income tax principles. Accordingly, you should expect generally to treat distributions we
make as dividends.
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Subject to certain limitations, the Japanese tax withheld in accordance with the Japan-U.S. Tax Treaty and paid over to Japan will be creditable
against your U.S. federal income tax liability. Special rules apply in determining the foreign tax credit limitation with respect to dividends that
are subject to the preferential tax rates. To the extent a refund of the tax withheld is available under Japanese law or the Japan-U.S. Tax Treaty,
the amount of tax withheld that is refundable will not be eligible for credit against your U.S. federal income tax liability.

For foreign tax credit purposes, dividends will generally be income from sources outside the U.S., and, depending on your circumstances, will
generally be �passive income� or �general income� for purposes of computing the foreign tax credit allowable to you.

Taxation of Capital Gains

Subject to the PFIC rules discussed below, if you are a U.S. holder and you sell or otherwise dispose of your shares or ADSs, you will recognize
capital gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes equal to the difference between the U.S. dollar value of the amount that you realize and
your tax basis, determined in U.S. dollars, in your shares or ADSs. Capital gain of a noncorporate U.S. holder is generally taxed at preferential
rates where the property is held for more than one year. The gain or loss will generally be income or loss from sources within the U.S. for
foreign tax credit limitation purposes.

PFIC Rules

We do not expect our shares and ADSs to be treated as stock of a PFIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes, but this conclusion is a factual
determination that is made annually and thus may be subject to change. Moreover, the application of the PFIC rules to a corporation, such as
Nomura, that is primarily engaged in an active business as a securities dealer is not entirely clear.

In general, if you are a U.S. holder, we will be a PFIC with respect to you if for any taxable year in which you held our ADSs or shares:

� at least 75% of our gross income for the taxable year is passive income, or

� at least 50% of the value, determined on the basis of a quarterly average, of our assets is attributable to assets that produce or are held
for the production of passive income.

Passive income generally includes dividends, interest, royalties, rents (other than certain rents and royalties derived in the active conduct of a
trade or business), annuities and gains from assets that produce passive income. If a foreign corporation owns at least 25% by value of the stock
of another corporation, the foreign corporation is treated for purposes of the PFIC tests as owning its proportionate share of the assets of the
other corporation, and as receiving directly its proportionate share of the other corporation�s income.

If we are treated as a PFIC, and you are a U.S. holder that did not make a mark-to-market election, as described below, you will be subject to
special rules with respect to:

� any gain you realize on the sale or other disposition of your shares or ADSs, and

� any excess distribution that we make to you (generally, any distributions to you during a single taxable year that are greater than 125%
of the average annual distributions received by you in respect of the shares or ADSs during the three preceding taxable years or, if
shorter, your holding period for the shares or ADSs).

Under these rules:

� the gain or excess distribution will be allocated ratably over your holding period for the shares or ADSs,
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� the amount allocated to each previous year, with certain exceptions, will be taxed at the highest tax rate in effect for that year, and

� the interest charge generally applicable to underpayments of tax will be imposed in respect of the tax attributable to each such year.
Special rules apply for calculating the amount of the foreign tax credit with respect to excess distributions by a PFIC.

If you own shares or ADSs in a PFIC that are regularly traded on a qualified exchange, they will be treated as marketable stock, and you may
elect to mark your shares or ADSs to market. If you make this election, you will not be subject to the PFIC rules described above. Instead, in
general, you will include as ordinary income each year the excess, if any, of the fair market value of your shares or ADSs at the end of the
taxable year over your adjusted basis in your shares or ADSs. These amounts of ordinary income will not be eligible for the favorable tax rates
applicable to qualified dividend income or long-term capital gains. You will also be allowed to take an ordinary loss in respect of the excess, if
any, of the adjusted basis of your shares or ADSs over their fair market value at the end of the taxable year (but only to the extent of the net
amount of previously included income as a result of the mark-to-market election). Your basis in the shares or ADSs will be adjusted to reflect
any such income or loss amounts. We urge you to speak to your tax advisor regarding the availability and advisability of this election.

Your shares or ADSs will be treated as stock in a PFIC if we were a PFIC at any time during your holding period in your shares or ADSs, even
if we are not currently a PFIC. For purposes of this rule, if you make a mark-to-market election with respect to your shares or ADSs, you will be
treated as having a new holding period in your shares or ADSs beginning on the first day of the first taxable year beginning after the last taxable
year for which the mark-to-market election applies.

In addition, notwithstanding any election you make with regard to the shares or ADSs, dividends that you receive from us will not constitute
qualified dividend income to you if we are a PFIC either in the taxable year of the distribution or the preceding taxable year. Dividends that you
receive that do not constitute qualified dividend income are not eligible for taxation at the 15% maximum rate applicable to qualified dividend
income. Instead, you must include the gross amount of any such dividend paid by us out of our accumulated earnings and profits (as determined
for U.S. federal income tax purposes) in your gross income, and it will be subject to tax at rates applicable to ordinary income.

If you own shares or ADSs during any year that we are a PFIC with respect to you, you are generally required to file Internal Revenue Service
Form 8621.

Japanese Taxation

The following is a summary of the principal Japanese tax consequences to owners of shares of the Company who are non-resident individuals or
non-Japanese corporations (�non-resident shareholder�) without a permanent establishment in Japan to which the relevant income is attributable.
As tax laws are frequently revised, the tax treatments described in this summary are also subject to changes in the applicable Japanese laws
and/or double taxation conventions occurring in the future, if any. This summary is not exhaustive of all possible tax considerations which may
apply to specific investors under particular circumstances. Potential investors should satisfy themselves as to

� the overall tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of shares or ADSs, including specifically the tax
consequences under Japanese law,

� the laws of the jurisdiction of which they are resident, and

� any tax treaty between Japan and their country of residence, by consulting with their own tax advisers.
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Generally, a non-resident shareholder is subject to Japanese withholding tax on dividends on the shares paid by the Company. A stock split is
not subject to Japanese income or corporation tax, as it is characterized merely as an increase of number of shares (as opposed to an increase of
value of shares) from Japanese tax perspectives. Conversion of retained earnings or legal reserve (but other than additional paid-in capital, in
general) into stated capital on a non-consolidated basis is not characterized as a deemed dividend for Japanese tax purposes, and therefore such a
conversion does not trigger Japanese withholding taxation (Article 2(16) of the Japanese Corporation Tax Law and Article 8(1)(xiii) of the
Japanese Corporation Tax Law Enforcement Order).

Unless an applicable tax treaty, convention or agreement reducing the maximum rate of withholding tax applies, the rate of Japanese
withholding tax applicable to dividends on listed shares such as those paid by the Company to non-resident shareholders is currently 7%. This
rate is applicable for dividends due and payable on or before December 31, 2013, and on or after January 1, 2014, a 15% rate will apply, except
for dividends paid to any individual shareholder who holds 3% or more of the issued shares for which the applicable rate is 20% (please refer to
Article 170 and Article 213(1)(i) of the Japanese Income Tax Law and Article 9-3(1)(i) of the Japanese Special Tax Measures Law including its
relevant temporary provision for these withholding rates).

On December 2, 2011, the �Special measures act to secure the financial resources required to implement policy on restoration after the East Japan
Earthquake� (Act No. 117 of 2011) was promulgated and special surtax measures on income tax were introduced to fund the restoration effort
from the earthquake. Income tax and withholding tax payers will need to pay a surtax, calculated by multiplying the base income tax with 2.1%
for 25 years starting from January 1, 2013. As a result, the fractional tax rate increase in the withholding tax on dividends will be made from
January 1, 2013, such as 7.147% applicable from January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 and 15.315% applicable thereafter until December 31,
2037, respectively. If a non-resident taxpayer is a resident of a country that Japan has tax treaty with, as described below, such non-residents will
not be subject to the surtax to the extent that the applicable rate agreed in the tax treaty is lower than the aggregate domestic rate.

Japan has income tax treaties, conventions or agreements whereby the above-mentioned withholding tax rate is reduced, generally to 15% for
portfolio investors, with, among others, Belgium, Canada, Denmark, Finland, Germany, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, New Zealand, Norway,
Singapore, Spain and Sweden. Under the Japan-U.S. Tax Treaty, the withholding tax rate on dividends is 10% for portfolio investors, provided
that they do not have a permanent establishment in Japan, or if there is a permanent establishment, the shares with respect to which such
dividends are paid are not effectively connected with such permanent establishment, and that they are qualified U.S. residents eligible to enjoy
treaty benefits. It shall be noted that, under the Japan-U.S. Tax Treaty, withholding tax on dividends to be paid is exempt from Japanese taxation
by way of withholding or otherwise for pension funds which are qualified U.S. residents eligible to enjoy treaty benefits unless such dividends
are derived from the carrying on of a business, directly or indirectly, by such pension funds (please refer to Article 10(3)(b) of the Japan-U.S.
Tax Treaty). In addition to the Japan-U.S. Tax Treaty, Japan currently has income tax treaties, whereby the withholding tax rate on dividends is
also reduced from 15% to 10% for portfolio investors, with, among others, the U.K., France, Australia, the Netherlands and Switzerland due to
the treaty renewals.

Non-resident shareholders who are entitled to a reduced treaty rate of Japanese withholding tax on payment of dividends on the shares by the
Company are required to submit an Application Form for Income Tax Convention regarding Relief from Japanese Income Tax on Dividends in
advance through the Company, which is the case for ADS holders, or (in cases where the relevant withholding taxpayer for the dividend
payment is not the Company but a financial institution in Japan) through the financial institution, to the relevant tax authority before payment of
dividends. Non-resident shareholders who do not submit an application in advance will be entitled to claim the refund of withholding taxes
withheld in excess of the rate of an applicable tax treaty from the relevant Japanese tax authority. For Japanese tax purpose, the treaty rate
normally applies superseding the tax rate under the domestic law. However, due to the so-called �preservation doctrine� under Article 3-2 of the
Special Measures Law for the Income Tax Law, Corporation Tax Law and Local Taxes Law with respect to the Implementation of Tax Treaties,
if the tax rate under the domestic tax law is lower than that promulgated under the applicable income tax treaty, then the domestic tax rate is still
applicable. Consequently, if the domestic tax rate still applies, no treaty application is required to be filed.
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Gains derived from the sale of shares outside Japan by a non-resident shareholder without a permanent establishment in Japan as a portfolio
investor, are, in general, not subject to Japanese income or corporation taxes.

Japanese inheritance and gift taxes at progressive rates may be payable by an individual who has acquired shares as a legatee, heir or donee,
even if the individual is not a Japanese resident.

You should consult your own tax advisors regarding the Japanese tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of the shares
and ADSs in your particular circumstances.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents.

Not applicable.

G. Statement by Experts.

Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display.

The Company is subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and, in accordance therewith, the Company
will file with the Securities and Exchange Commission annual reports on Form 20-F within four months of the Company�s fiscal year-end and
other reports and information on Form 6-K. These reports and other information can be inspected at the public reference room at the Securities
and Exchange Commission at 100 F Street, NE., Washington, D.C. 20549. You can also obtain copies of such material by mail from the public
reference room of the Securities and Exchange Commission at prescribed fees. You may obtain information on the operation of the Securities
and Exchange Commission public reference room by calling the Securities and Exchange Commission in the U.S. at 1-800-SEC-0330. You can
also access the documents filed via the Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval system on the SEC�s website (http://www.sec.gov).

I. Subsidiary Information.

Not applicable.

Item 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Risk Management

The business activities of the Nomura Group are exposed to various risks such as market risk, credit risk, operational risk and other risks caused
by external factors. We have established a risk management framework to provide comprehensive controls, monitoring and reporting of these
risks in order to maintain financial soundness and the Company�s corporate values.

Global Risk Management Structure

Governance

The Board of Directors has established the �Structure for Ensuring Appropriate Business of Nomura Holdings, Inc.� as the Company�s basic
principle and set up a framework for the management of risk of loss based on this. In addition, they are continuously making efforts to improve,
strengthen and build up our risk management capabilities under this framework. Besides this, the Group Integrated Risk Management
Committee (�GIRMC�), upon delegation of the EMB, has established the Integrated Risk Management Policy, describing the overall risk
management framework including the fundamental principles concerning risk management and organization and this is under continuous
improvement.
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Basic Principles of Risk Management

The Nomura Group defines risks as i.) potential erosion of the Nomura Group�s capital base due to unexpected losses from business operations,
ii.) potential lack of access to funds due to deterioration of the Nomura Group�s creditworthiness or deterioration in market conditions, or iii.)
potential failure of revenues to cover expenses due to deterioration of earnings environment or deterioration of efficiency or effectiveness of
business operations.

It is a fundamental principle that all Directors, Executive Managing Directors, Senior Managing Directors, Corporate Auditors and employees of
the Nomura Group shall regard themselves as principals of risk management and appropriately manage risks arising in the course of day-to-day
business operations. At the same time, the Nomura Group practices prudent risk management at an individual entity level within the group and
also identifies, evaluates and appropriately manages risks within the business units, risk management and internal audit, respectively.

Fundamental Policy of Risk Management

Our fundamental policy concerning risk management is to control risks arising in the course of business operations to the confines of the
Company�s risk appetite, which is clearly established based on risk tolerance in line with group-wide business strategy, business targets,
management strength and capital base. We endeavor to embed this appetite into actual business operations.

Our risk appetite consists of quantitative and qualitative factors. Targets are set for quantitative factors such as capital adequacy, liquidity and
profitability. Targets also set for qualitative factors such as Zero Tolerance Risk, which is the risk that Nomura shall tolerate to no extent
whatsoever, and for Minimum Tolerance Risk, which is the risk that we may tolerate to a limited extent in consideration of profit potential, risk
mitigation methods, monitoring capability and other factors, respectively.

We endeavor to measure risks using quantitative methods to the greatest extent possible and to continually improve our risk measurement
methods. We use economic capital, for the risks measured by quantitative methods collectively and use this as the principal reference for
assessment of capital adequacy, capital allocation and risk management. When evaluating risks by quantitative methods, we conduct stress
testing as a complementary measure to analyze and evaluate the potential impact of each type of risk on our capital base.
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Risk Management Organizations

The organizational structure and core bodies tasked with risk management in the Nomura Group are shown in the following chart.

(1) Other includes other risks such as Country Risk, System Risk, Liquidity Risk and Business Risk. Prudent risk controls involve identifying,
evaluating and appropriately managing risks in each business unit, risk management departments and internal audit departments within the
Nomura Group. Any issues that could potentially cause a significant impact on the management of the Nomura Group will be reported to
senior management and the GIRMC by the relevant risk management departments in charge of monitoring the relevant risk.

Executive Management Board

The EMB deliberates on and determines management strategy, allocation of management resources and important management matters of the
Nomura Group by promoting the effective use of management resources and execution of business with the unified intent of contributing to the
increase in shareholders� value. Key responsibilities of the EMB are as follows:

� Resource Allocation�At the beginning of each financial year, the EMB determines the allocation of management resources and
financial resources such as economic capital and unsecured funding to the business units and establishes usage limits which are
monitored on a daily basis;

� Business Plan�At the beginning of each financial year, the EMB approves the business plan and budget of the Nomura Group.
Introduction of significant new businesses, changes to business plans, the budget and the allocation of management resources during
the year are also discussed by the EMB; and

� Reporting�The EMB reports to the Board of Directors on the status of discussions at the EMB on a quarterly basis.
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Group Integrated Risk Management Committee

Upon delegation by the EMB, the GIRMC deliberates on and determines important matters concerning integrated risk management of the
Nomura to ensure the sound and effective management of the business. The GIRMC is a core organization for group-wide risk management and
establishes the risk appetite of the Nomura Group and the framework of integrated risk management in accordance with our risk appetite. The
key responsibilities of the GIRMC are as follows:

� Risk Appetite�The GIRMC establishes the risk appetite of the Nomura Group and provides a framework for integrated risk
management in accordance with this risk appetite;

� Oversight�The GIRMC supervises risk management in the Nomura Group by establishing and operating group wide risk control
processes. These processes consist of identification of specific risks, evaluation and monitoring of these risks and implementation of
appropriate risk management measures and reporting; and

� Reporting�The GIRMC reports the status of key risk management issues to the Board of Directors and the EMB on a quarterly basis.
Chief Risk Officer

The Chief Risk Officer (�CRO�) is responsible for supervising the Risk Management Department and maintaining the effectiveness of the risk
management framework independently from the business units within the Nomura Group. The CRO not only regularly reports on the status of
the Nomura Group�s risk management to the GIRMC, but also reports to and seeks the approval of the GIRMC on measures required for risk
management.

Chief Financial Officer

The CFO has operational authority and responsibility over our liquidity management. Our liquidity risk management policy is based on risk
appetite which the GIRMC formulates. Our primary objective for liquidity risk management is to ensure continuous liquidity across market
cycles and periods of stress, and to ensure that all funding requirements and unsecured debt obligations that fall due within one year can be met
without additional unsecured funding or forced liquidation of trading assets.

Risk Management Departments

Our Risk Management Departments are defined collectively as the Group Risk Management Department and departments or units in charge of
risk management established independently from business units within the Nomura Group. The Risk Management Departments are responsible
for establishing and operating of risk management processes, establishing and enforcing risk management policies and regulations, verifying the
effectiveness of risk management methods, gathering reports from Nomura Group entities, reporting to Executive/Senior Managing Directors
and the GIRMC and others and also reporting to regulatory bodies and handling of regulatory applications concerning risk management methods
and other items. Important risk management issues are closely communicated between members of the Risk Management Departments and the
CRO. The CRO or Deputy CRO regularly attend the EMB and GIRMC meetings to report specific risk issues.
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Classification and Definition of Risk

The Nomura Group classifies and defines risks as follows and has established departments or units to manage each risk type.

Risk Category Summary Description
Market Risk Risk of losses arising from fluctuations in values of financial assets and debts (including off-balance sheet items)

due to fluctuations in market risk factors (interest rates, foreign exchange rates, prices of securities and others).

Credit Risk Risk of losses arising from decrease or disappearance of asset values (including off-balance sheet items) due to
deterioration in creditworthiness or default of an obligor or counterparty.

Country Risk Risk brought about by a country�s political, economic, legal, conventional, religious or other characteristics
inherent to the country or risk of losses arising from changes in a country�s situation due to a change of regime, fall
in predictability of governmental measures, economic downturn or social turmoil.

Operational Risk Risk of losses arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or external events.

System Risk Within Operational Risk, risk of losses due to system defects including, without limitation, computer crash or
malfunction, or risk of losses due to unauthorized use of computers.

Liquidity Risk Risk of losses arising from difficulty in securing the necessary funding or from a significantly higher cost of
funding than normal levels due to deterioration of the Nomura Group�s creditworthiness or deterioration in market
conditions.

Business Risk Risk of failure of revenues to cover costs due to deterioration of the earnings environment or deterioration of the
efficiency or effectiveness of business operations.

Market Risk

Market risk refers to the potential loss from fluctuations in the value of assets and liabilities due to fluctuations in market factors, e.g. interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, credit spreads, indices, volatilities, correlations or other market factors. This type of risk primarily
impacts our trading activities. Effective management of this risk requires the ability to analyze a complex and constantly changing global market
environment, identify problematic trends and ensure that appropriate action is taken in a timely manner.

Nomura uses a variety of complementary tools to measure, model and aggregate market risk. Our principal statistical measurement tool to assess
and monitor market risk on an ongoing basis is Value at Risk (�VaR�). Limits on VaR are set in line with the Nomura Group�s risk appetite as
expressed through economic capital. In addition to VaR, we use stress testing and sensitivity analysis to measure and analyze our market risk.
Sensitivities are measures used to show the potential changes to a portfolio due to standard moves in market risk factors.They are specific to
each asset class and cannot usually be aggregated across risk factors. Market risk is monitored against a set of approved limits, with daily reports
and other management information provided to the business units and senior management.

Value at Risk

VaR is a measure of the potential loss in the value of our trading positions due to adverse movements in markets over a defined time horizon
with a specified confidence level. Market risks that are incorporated in the VaR model include equity prices, interest rates, credit, foreign
exchange rates, and commodities with associated volatilities and correlations.
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VaR Methodology Assumptions

Nomura uses a single VaR model which has been implemented globally in order to determine the total trading VaR for the Nomura Group.

Nomura�s VaR methodology uses historical simulation to estimate potential profit or loss. Historical market moves are repeatedly applied to our
current exposure, forming a distribution of simulated portfolio returns. From this distribution the required potential losses can be estimated at
required confidence levels or probabilities.

Nomura uses the same VaR model for both internal risk management purposes and for regulatory reporting of our consolidated VaR to the
Financial Services Agency of Japan. For internal risk management purposes, VaR is calculated across the Nomura Group at a 99% confidence
level and using a 1-day time horizon. For regulatory reporting purposes, we use the same confidence level but a 10-day time horizon, calculated
using actual 10-day historical market moves.

For internal information purposes, Nomura also calculates a �1% VaR� which represents the potential profits from the same distribution.
Differences between 99% and 1% measures can be used to demonstrate that markets do not always follow a simple statistical probability model.
Additionally, Nomura calculates other measures used to complement VaR under regulation known as �Basel 2.5�. One of these, Stressed-VaR
(�SVAR�) is calibrated on a one-year window from a period of financial stress. All VaR and SVaR numbers are calculated within the same system
using equivalent assumptions.

The VaR model uses a default historical time window of two years (520 business days). For risk management and backtesting (see below),
Nomura uses a weighted VaR. For the calculation of VaR, the probability weight assigned to each P&L in the historical simulation scenarios
depends on when it occurred. The older the observation, the lower the weight. An exponential weighting scheme is used with the attenuation
coefficient set to 0.995. This choice of parameter implies a weighted average of the data set is 159 business days (just over 7 months).

The SVaR calculation uses one year of market data from a period of financial stress. The one-year window is calibrated to be the one with the
largest SVaR, given our current portfolio. The historical data used for SVaR is not exponentially weighted.

Given a set of historical market moves, Nomura�s VaR model calculates revenues impacts for current portfolio using a combination of
sensitivities (�greeks�) revaluation, full and partial revaluation. Material basis risks are captured either by using different time series (e.g., stock vs.
ADR) or by using sensitivities and basis time series (e.g., Bond / Credit Default Swap (�CDS�) credit spread basis).

Nomura�s VaR model uses time series for each individual underlying, whenever available. Approximately 25,000 time series are currently
maintained in the Nomura Group�s market database. Time series are generally available for all assets but where a complete time series (i.e., 520
business days) cannot be found for a specific underlying, the VaR model will follow a �proxy logic� to map the exposure to an appropriate time
series (for example, this would be the case for an option on a recently issued stock). The level of proxying taking place in the VaR model is
carefully monitored through internal risk management processes and there is a continual effort to source new time series to use in the VaR
calculation.

Changes in VaR Models and Assumptions

Nomura is committed to continuous improvement of our risk modeling and to maintaining risk modeling that is in line with best practices in our
industry.

We have documented policies in place approved by the GIRMC which define the process and validation procedures required in order to
implement changes to our VaR and other risk models. The Global Risk
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Methodology Group (�GRMG�) within our Risk Management Division has primary responsibility for the ongoing refinement and improvement of
our risk models and methodologies. All model changes are communicated by the GRMG to the Global Model Validation Group (�MVG�) and any
significant changes are initially independently reviewed and validated by MVG before being implemented.

The nature of the processes required to be performed by GRMG to support a model change and the level of validation required by MVG depends
on the significance of the model change. For certain significant changes, backtesting of the new model, parallel running of both models and
stress-testing of the new model are required prior to implementation.

Under delegated authority from the Global Risk Management Committee (�GRMC�) that is delegation by GIRMC for the purpose of deliberating
on or determining important matters concerning market, credit risk or reputational risk management of the Nomura Group and assuring the
sound and effective management of the businesses, model changes are also formally approved by the Global Risk Analytics Committee (�GRAC�)
if certain materiality thresholds defined by the Nomura Group are met. The GRAC is formed of senior risk managers within Nomura including
the CRO and the CFO and has delegated authority from the GRMC to approve such changes.

Details of all significant model changes are reported to the GRMC on a quarterly basis or more frequently, if required.

We are required to formally report significant changes in our VaR and other models to the FSA. A significant change is defined internally as any
change resulting in a change of more than 10% of Nomura�s consolidated group regulatory capital. Insignificant changes are also informally
communicated to the FSA on a regular basis.

VaR Backtesting

The performance of Nomura�s VaR model is constantly monitored to ensure that it remains fit for purpose. The main approach for validating
VaR is to compare 1-day P&L with the corresponding VaR estimate. With a 99% VaR measure, one expects 2-3 exceptions (i.e. loss is larger
than VaR) a year. We backtest the VaR model at the Nomura Group level as well as at a number of lower levels, and the backtesting results are
reviewed on a monthly basis by the Nomura�s risk management function.

No backtesting exceptions were experienced at the Nomura Group level for the year ending March 31, 2013.

Limitations and Advantages of VaR

The main advantage of VaR as a risk measure is that it is able to aggregate risk from different asset classes (in contrast with other risk measures
sensitivities that cannot be easily aggregated directly). The risk from different divisions of the Group can therefore easily be compared and
aggregated using VaR.

As a risk measure, however, VaR has well documented limitations. One of the main disadvantages with VaR is that it is a backward looking risk
measure. Using historical market moves to infer future P&L for a firm, means that we assume that only events that have actually happened are
relevant to analyse the risk of a portfolio.

Moreover, VaR only gives an estimate of the loss at a stated (99th) percentile (i.e. in one out of 100 days the loss will be greater than 1-day
VaR), but not what magnitude of loss that can take place whenever the loss does exceed VaR.

VaR as a risk measure is most appropriate for liquid markets and may understate the financial impact of severe events for which there is no
historical precedent on where market liquidity may not be reliable. In particular, historical correlations can break down in extreme markets
leading to unexpected relative market moves. This may make positions that off-set each other in VaR modeling move in the same direction thus
increase losses.
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We are aware of the limitations of the Nomura Group�s VaR model and use VaR only as one component of a diverse risk management process.
Other metrics to supplement VaR include stress testing and sensitivity analysis.

The following tables show our VaR as of each of the dates indicated for substantially all of our trading positions:

Billions of yen
Mar. 30,
2012

Apr. 30,
2012

May 31,
2012

Jun. 29,
2012

Jul. 31,
2012

Aug. 31,
2012

Sep. 28,
2012

Oct. 31,
2012

Nov. 30,
2012

Dec. 31,
2012

Jan. 31,
2013

Feb. 28,
2013

Mar. 29,
2013

Equity ¥ 1.37 ¥ 1.31 ¥ 1.06 ¥ 1.20 ¥ 1.06 ¥ 5.12 ¥ 0.99 ¥ 1.07 ¥ 1.46 ¥ 2.43 ¥ 1.80 ¥ 1.63 ¥ 1.26
Interest Rate 6.53 4.45 5.38 5.70 5.64 5.97 6.59 6.11 6.97 6.41 6.26 5.28 5.00
Foreign Exchange 2.52 2.84 2.40 1.70 1.85 2.05 1.88 2.34 3.40 2.14 1.69 1.96 1.87

Subtotal 10.42 8.59 8.84 8.60 8.54 13.14 9.45 9.51 11.82 10.98 9.75 8.86 8.14
Less:
Diversification Benefit (3.20) (3.10) (3.66) (3.20) (3.16) (7.64) (2.30) (2.81) (4.85) (3.81) (3.44) (2.84) (3.05) 

VaR ¥ 7.22 ¥ 5.49 ¥ 5.18 ¥ 5.40 ¥ 5.38 ¥ 5.50 ¥ 7.15 ¥ 6.70 ¥ 6.97 ¥ 7.16 ¥ 6.31 ¥ 6.03 ¥ 5.09

VaR
(maximum) ¥ 8.66 : October 17, 2012
(average) 6.11 : Average for the period from April 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013
(minimum) 4.33 : May 4, 2012

Billions of yen
Mar. 31,
2011

Apr. 29,
2011

May 31,
2011

Jun. 30,
2011

Jul. 29,
2011

Aug. 31,
2011

Sep. 30,
2011

Oct. 31,
2011

Nov. 30,
2011

Dec. 30,
2011

Jan. 31,
2012

Feb. 29,
2012

Mar. 30,
2012

Equity ¥ 1.78 ¥ 1.88 ¥ 1.64 ¥ 1.59 ¥ 1.68 ¥ 2.06 ¥ 1.88 ¥ 2.39 ¥ 1.86 ¥ 1.46 ¥ 1.80 ¥ 1.90 ¥ 1.37
Interest Rate 4.08 4.41 5.13 4.31 5.18 3.37 4.03 6.29 5.28 5.03 4.28 4.83 6.53
Foreign Exchange 4.53 3.93 4.13 3.83 3.68 3.15 2.84 3.18 3.14 3.54 4.06 3.13 2.52

Subtotal 10.40 10.21 10.91 9.72 10.54 8.58 8.75 11.86 10.29 10.03 10.15 9.86 10.42
Less:
Diversification Benefit (4.12) (4.13) (3.80) (3.72) (3.69) (3.60) (3.59) (3.71) (3.68) (3.63) (3.73) (2.50) (3.20) 

VaR ¥ 6.28 ¥ 6.08 ¥ 7.11 ¥ 6.01 ¥ 6.85 ¥ 4.99 ¥ 5.16 ¥ 8.15 ¥ 6.60 ¥ 6.40 ¥ 6.42 ¥ 7.35 ¥ 7.22

VaR
(maximum) ¥ 9.72 : October 26, 2011
(average) 6.54 : Average for the period from April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2012
(minimum) 4.92 : September 15, 2011
Overall VaR has decreased since March 30, 2012. VaR relating to interest rate risk decreased from ¥6.53 billion at the end of March 2012 to
¥5.00 billion at the end of March 2013 due to lower outright interest rate risk being taken within the Nomura Group. VaR relating to foreign
exchange risk decreased from ¥2.52 billion at the end of March 2012 to ¥1.87 billion at the end of March 2013 mainly due to lower levels of FX
risk being taken. VaR relating to equity risk decreased slightly from ¥1.37 billion at the end of March 2012 to ¥1.26 billion at the end of March
2013.

During the year ended March 31, 2012, VaR relating to equity risk decreased from ¥1.78 billion at the end of March 2011 to ¥1.37 billion at the
end of March 2012 mainly due to reductions in equity related volatility. VaR relating to interest rate risk decreased from ¥4.08 billion at the end
of March 2011 to ¥6.53 billion at the end of March 2012 mainly due to increased interest rate risk volatility. VaR relating to foreign exchange
risk decreased from ¥4.53 billion at the end of March 2011 to ¥2.52 billion at the end of March 2011 mainly due to reductions in foreign
exchange volatility.
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Other Controls

In some business units or portfolios we use additional controls to control or limit risk taking activity. This may include the requirement for
business units to fulfill additional conditions and/or seek additional approvals from senior management committees before the execution of
certain types of transactions.

Stress Testing

The Nomura Group conducts market risk stress testing since VaR and sensitivity analysis have limited ability to capture all portfolio risks or tail
risks, including non-linear behaviors. Stress testing for market risk is conducted daily and weekly, using various scenarios based upon features
of trading strategies. We conduct stress testing not only at each desk level, but also at the Nomura Group level with a set of common global
scenarios in order to capture the impact on the whole Group of market fluctuations.

Model Reviews

Models are used within the Nomura Group for valuation and risk management of trading positions, financial reporting, and regulatory and
internal capital calculations. The Global Model Validation Group (�MVG�) validates the appropriateness and consistency of these models,
functioning independently to those who design and build models. As part of this process, the MVG analyzes a number of factors to assess a
model�s suitability and to quantify model risk through model reserves and capital adjustments.

Non-Trading Risk

A major market risk in our non-trading portfolio relates to equity investments held for operating purposes which we hold on a long-term basis.
Our non-trading portfolio is exposed mainly to volatility in the Japanese stock market. One method that can estimate the market risk in the
portfolio is to analyze market sensitivity based on changes in the TOPIX, which is a leading index of prices of stocks on the First Section of the
Tokyo Stock Exchange.

We use regression analysis covering the previous 90 days which tracks and compares fluctuations in the TOPIX and the market value of our
equity investments held for operating purposes. Our simulation indicates that for each 10% change in the TOPIX, the market value of our
operating equity investments held for operating purposes can be expected to change by ¥11,951 million at the end of March 2012 and
¥15,327 million at the end of March 2013. The TOPIX closed at 854.35 points at the end of March 2012 and at 1,034.71 points at the end of
March 2013. This simulation analyzes data for our entire portfolio of equity investments held for operating purposes. Therefore, it is very
important to note that the actual results differ from our expectations because of price fluctuations of individual equities.

Credit Risk

The Nomura Group defines credit risk as risk of losses arising from decrease or disappearance of asset values (including off-balance sheet items)
due to deterioration in creditworthiness or default of an obligor.

For controlling credit risk appropriately, the Nomura Group has set out basic principles in its Credit Risk Management Policy, a basic policy
concerning credit risk management, which are important to meet the various needs of our clients whilst taking appropriate risks and ensuring
sufficient returns to improve our corporate values. Under these basic principles, we have established a robust and comprehensive credit risk
management framework.

The Nomura Group has been applying the Foundation Internal Rating Based Approach in calculating Credit Risk Weighted Asset for regulatory
capital calculation since the end of March 2011. However, the Standardized Approach is applied to certain business units or asset types, which
are considered immaterial to the calculation of credit risk weighted assets.
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Credit Risk Management Framework

Under the credit risk management framework, the GIRMC, upon delegation by the EMB, deliberates on and determines important matters
concerning integrated risk management of the Nomura Group and accordingly has established important principles concerning credit risk
management as described in the Credit Risk Management Policy and other documents. Also, GRMC deliberates on and determines important
matters concerning credit risk management of the Nomura Group based on strategic risk allocation and risk appetite of the Nomura Group as
determined by the GIRMC. Subject matters for the GRMC include discussion of significant transactions that require consideration for its risk
management framework.

The Nomura Group has established an organizational structure with an appropriate system of check-and-balances under the CRO. The Credit
Planning Unit is responsible for planning or implementation of amending, revising or abolishing Internal Rating Systems, including
development, oversight and continuous revising of the Internal Rating Model.

The Credit Department, which is independent from the business units, conducts credit analysis, internal rating assignment, monitoring of credit
risk profiles including credit concentration risk and others. Also, the Credit Risk Control Unit (�CRCU�), also independent from the business units
and Credit Department, is responsible for monitoring operations, validation and others items for the Internal Rating System. Additionally, the
Internal Audit Department audits the adequacy of credit risk management independently from these departments.

Method of Credit Risk Management

Internal Rating System

The Nomura Group has established an Internal Rating System to be a unified, exhaustive and objective framework to evaluate credit risk with
reasonable manner. Internal Ratings consist of Obligor Ratings, which represent an assessment of an Obligor�s creditworthiness, Facility Ratings,
which represent an assessment of potential unrecoverable loss for a facility in default and Specialised Lending (�SL�) Rating, which represents the
assessment of probability of default of a given SL Transactions. Internal Ratings are classified into 20 grades, which consist of 17 non-default
grades and 3 default grades based on creditworthiness.

Obligor Ratings are assigned in principle to obligors which fall into the scope of the credit risk-weighted assets calculation. In order to
appropriately reflect the creditworthiness of obligors, Obligor Ratings are not only reviewed periodically at least once a year, but also are
reviewed as soon as any significant change in the creditworthiness of the Obligor is identified. The Credit Department, which is functionally
independent from the business units, is responsible for assigning Internal Ratings in order to ensure the sound process of rating assignment.

SL Ratings are assigned to each SL transaction and mapped to Slotting Criteria. Frequency and process of SL ratings reviews are conducted in
almost the same manner with Obligor Ratings.

The CRCU, functionally independent from business units and the Credit Department, is responsible for validating the appropriateness of the
Internal Rating System at least once a year. In addition, the Internal Audit, independent from all the divisions and business units mentioned
above, is responsible for auditing the appropriateness of the overall Internal Rating System, as part of their review of credit risk management.

Management of Individual Credit Exposures

The Nomura Group�s main type of credit risk assets are credit exposure arising in derivatives transactions or securities financing transactions
(�derivatives� in this section) with counterparties.
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Credit exposures against counterparties are managed by means of setting Credit Limits based upon credit analysis of individual obligors. For
ongoing risk monitoring, Credit Limits are managed through the daily calculation of potential credit exposures up to maturity, as well as
monitoring the actual creditworthiness of obligors with adequate frequency, based upon which Obligor Ratings and Credit Limits are updated.

The exposure calculation model used for counterparty credit risk management, i.e., credit limit monitoring, has also been used for the IMM
based exposure calculation for regulatory capital reporting purposes since the end of December 2012.

Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques

Nomura enters into International Swap and Derivatives Association, Inc. (�ISDA�) master agreements or equivalent agreements (called �Master
Netting Agreements�) with many of its derivatives counterparties. Master Netting Agreements provide protection to reduce losses potentially
incurred by a counterparty default.

In addition, to reduce losses potentially incurred by a counterparty default, Nomura requires collateral to mitigate exposure, principally cash or
highly liquid bonds, including U.S. and Japanese government securities, when necessary.

Scope of Credit Risk Management

The scope of credit risk management includes counterparty trading and various debt or equity instruments including loans, private equity
investments, fund investments, investment securities and any other as deemed necessary from a credit risk management perspective.

Integrated Management

We evaluate credit risk not only by obligor, but also by obligor group where it is appropriate that their credit risk should be evaluated
collectively.

We evaluate credit risk by �obligor groups� (i.e., by counterparty groups) when significant legal or economic relationships exist between
counterparties which mitigate or increase our credit risk when compared to these individual counterparties if considered separately. Such
relationships may exist through one counterparty owning a controlling financial interest in another, significant financing relationships existing
between or among counterparties or if there are other indicators of significant financial interdependence between counterparties.

Credit Risk Reporting

The global risk management unit is responsible for monitoring, evaluating and analyzing credit risk and for reporting the status of credit risk to
the CRO and other Senior Managing Director(s) in charge of risk management and the GIRMC with appropriate frequency.

Credit Risk Measurement

Credit risk is quantitatively-measured by a globally unified methodology. Credit risk is properly measured to reflect the effect of collateral or a
guarantee.

Credit Risk to Counterparties in Derivatives Transactions

We measure our credit risk to counterparties in derivatives transactions as the sum of actual current exposure evaluated daily at its fair value,
plus potential exposure until maturity of such transactions. All derivative credit limits are controlled through the risk management departments.
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As we mentioned previously, we enter into Master Netting Agreements with many of our derivative counterparties. Master Netting Agreements
provide protection to reduce our risks of counterparty default and, in some cases, offset our consolidated balance sheet exposure with the same
counterparty and provide a more meaningful presentation of our balance sheet credit exposure. In addition, to reduce default risk, we require
collateral, principally cash or highly liquid bonds, including U.S. and Japanese government securities when necessary.

The credit exposures in our trading-related derivatives as of March 31, 2013 are summarized in the table below, showing as the fair value by
counterparty credit rating and by remaining contract. The credit ratings are internally determined by our Credit Department.

Billions of yen
Years to Maturity Cross-

Maturity
Netting(1)

Total
Fair Value

Collateral
Obtained

Replacement
CostCredit Rating

Less than
1 Year

1 to 3
Years

3 to 5
Years

5 to 7
Years

More than
7 Years

(a) (b) (a)-(b)
AAA ¥ 15 ¥ 20 ¥ 31 ¥ 15 ¥ 78 ¥ (102) ¥ 57 ¥ 18 ¥ 39
AA 137 193 230 153 364 (948) 129 44 85
A 423 574 488 375 1,446 (2,661) 645 108 537
BBB 89 105 127 78 315 (522) 192 113 79
BB and lower 69 54 63 25 431 (451) 191 274 (83) 
Other(2) 63 69 110 214 220 (442) 234 20 214

Sub-total 796 1,015 1,049 860 2,854 (5,126) 1,448 577 871
Listed 447 224 12 2 �  (242) 443 6 437

Total ¥ 1,243 ¥ 1,239 ¥ 1,061 ¥ 862 ¥ 2,854 ¥ (5,368) ¥ 1,891 ¥ 583 ¥ 1,308

(1) This item represents netting of payable balances with receivable balances for the same counterparty across maturity band categories.
Receivable and payable balances with the same counterparty in the same maturity category, however, are net within the maturity category.
Cash collateral netting against net derivatives in accordance with ASC 210-20 �Balance Sheet�Offsetting� is also included.

(2) �Other� comprises unrated counterparties and certain portfolio level valuation adjustments not allocated to specific counterparties.
Exposure to certain European peripheral countries

During 2012 and continuing into 2013, the creditworthiness of several peripheral countries within the Eurozone such as Greece, Italy, Ireland,
Portugal and Spain (�GIIPS� countries) has declined due to economic and fiscal weaknesses.

The worsening of financial, economic and structural issues in the GIIPS countries have adversely influenced major global financial markets. A
sustained market/economic downturn can adversely affect our business and can result in substantial losses.
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The table below presents information regarding this exposure as at March 31, 2013 as measured in accordance with our internal risk
management policies. Country risk exposure under these policies is reported based on the location of the counterparty, issuer or underlier�s
assets.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2013

Net inventory exposures Net counterparty exposures

Total
gross
funded
exposure

Unfunded
exposure(7)

Total
gross

exposure
Less:

Hedges(8)

Total
net

exposure
Debt

securities(1)
Equity

securities(2)

Equity and
credit

derivatives
referencing
GIIPS

underlyings(3)Loans(4)

Derivative
contracts
with
GIIPS

counterparties(5)

Securities
financing

transactions(6)
Greece ¥ 2 ¥ 0 ¥ 0 ¥ �  ¥ 9 ¥ 0 ¥ 11 ¥ �  ¥ 11 ¥ 0 ¥ 11
Sovereign 2 �  �  �  7 �  9 �  9 �  9
Non-sovereign(9) 0 0 0 �  2 0 3 �  3 0 2

Ireland 25 (0) (3) �  1 0 23 �  23 0 23
Sovereign 13 �  (1) �  1 �  13 �  13 0 13
Non-sovereign(9) 12 (0) (3) �  0 0 10 �  10 0 10

Italy 113 4 (115) �  56 1 59 �  59 64 (6) 
Sovereign 98 �  (110) �  25 0 13 �  13 63 (50) 
Non-sovereign(9) 15 4 (5) �  31 1 46 �  46 1 44

Portugal 7 (7) (2) �  0 0 (3) �  (3) 4 (6) 
Sovereign 6 �  (13) �  �  �  (6) �  (6) 2 (8) 
Non-sovereign(9) 0 (7) 11 �  0 0 4 �  4 2 2

Spain 74 28 (57) 3 13 6 67 2 68 3 65
Sovereign 74 �  (17) �  6 �  62 �  62 1 61
Non-sovereign(9) 0 28 (40) 3 8 6 4 2 6 1 4

Total ¥ 220 ¥ 24 ¥ (177) ¥ 3 ¥ 80 ¥ 7 ¥ 157 ¥ 2 ¥ 158 ¥ 71 ¥ 88
Sovereign 192 �  (141) �  39 0 91 �  91 66 25
Non-sovereign(9) 28 24 (36) 3 41 7 66 2 68 5 63
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(1) Fair value amounts of long and short debt securities by GIIPS issuers and also includes GIIPS collateral with a fair value of ¥ nil billion
used in open repo-to-maturity transactions.

(2) Fair value amounts of long and short equity securities by GIIPS issuers.
(3) Net derivatives entered into for market-making and trading purposes which reference GIIPS underlyings and includes both single-name

credit default swaps (�CDS�) and other credit derivatives referencing baskets of reference assets, indices or other multiple underlyings.
Amounts disclosed are calculated based on notional amounts of the derivatives assuming zero recovery as adjusted for fair value
movements.

Where derivative contracts cover multiple underlyings, including one or more GIIPS countries or both sovereign and non-sovereign underlyings
in these countries, the relevant derivatives are disaggregated into their constituent single names for reporting in the table. Exposure for each
single name is calculated as the change in mark to market of the product, based on an internally developed model, given the instantaneous
default of the relevant reference credit and assuming zero recovery. No specific assumptions are made regarding the order of defaults or
collateral coverage. This methodology results in an accurate measure of exposure for each relevant single name but has certain limitations when
amounts are aggregated across numerous reference credits for tranched products. For junior tranches, this approach may result in disclosure of
aggregate exposure amounts in excess of the maximum possible impact to Nomura under the relevant derivative contract. Conversely, for more
senior tranches, our actual exposure may be higher than the aggregate amounts disclosed in the table in the event of a large number of
simultaneous defaults.

(4) Fair value amounts of loans to GIIPS counterparties.
(5) Derivatives with GIIPS counterparties which are shown net by counterparty and after deduction of cash collateral received of ¥365.2

billion.
(6) Fair value amounts of repurchase agreements and securities borrowing and lending transactions when are shown net by counterparty and

after deduction of securities collateral and cash margin received of ¥689.6 billion.
(7) Notional amount of unfunded loan commitments with GIIPS borrowers. These commitments are generally extended either for relationship

purposes or as part of our leverage and acquisition finance activities and will expire by June 1, 2016. The borrowers are typically not
permitted to draw down on the facilities if a default event such as insolvency or failure to pay occurs or if material misrepresentations have
been made to Nomura.

(8) Hedges consist primarily of single-name CDS contracts where Nomura has purchased net protection against GIIPS net counterparty credit
exposures. Amounts disclosed are calculated based on notional amounts of the contracts assuming zero recovery as adjusted for fair value
movements. The counterparties to these transactions are non-GIIPS counterparties which are rated as investment grade using Nomura�s
internal credit rating methodology. Nomura will attempt to match the reference assets and maturity of the CDS hedges to the underlying
exposure against which they are hedging. In certain situations, however, hedges of equivalent duration may not be available in the market
and therefore a maturity mismatch may exist. These mismatches are actively monitored and managed by Nomura.

(9) Non-sovereign counterparties are primarily financial institutions located in these countries.
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Amounts reported in net inventory exposures and hedges include single-name CDS contracts where Nomura has either purchased or sold credit
protection on a single name GIIPS underlying. The following table presents the gross notional value and fair value of these contracts by relevant
GIIPS country and by type of underlying.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2013

Purchased
protection Sold protection

Notional
value

Fair
value

Notional
value

Fair
value

Greece
Sovereign ¥ �  ¥ �  ¥ �  ¥ �  
Non-sovereign 71 3 73 (3) 

71 3 73 (3) 

Ireland
Sovereign 205 3 211 (3) 
Non-sovereign 84 (8) 82 9

289 (5) 293 5

Italy
Sovereign 1,930 180 1,913 (185) 
Non-sovereign 523 20 548 (20) 

2,452 200 2,461 (205) 

Portugal
Sovereign 210 15 196 (15) 
Non-sovereign 224 (0) 230 2

434 15 426 (13) 

Spain
Sovereign 801 54 977 (70) 
Non-sovereign 424 3 419 (3) 

1,225 57 1,396 (74) 

Total
Sovereign 3,145 252 3,297 (273) 
Non-sovereign 1,326 18 1,352 (16) 

¥ 4,471 ¥ 270 ¥ 4,649 ¥ (289) 

These notional and fair value amounts are not representative of Nomura�s overall exposure as they exclude the impact of master netting
agreements and collateralization arrangements in place with the counterparties to these transactions. See Note 3 �Derivative instruments and
hedging activities� in our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report for more information around the nature of Nomura�s
credit derivative activities, including the nature of payout or trigger events under these contracts.

In addition to the above direct exposures to these countries, Nomura also has indirect exposures to these countries as follows:
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� We have exposure to other European sovereign and non-sovereign counterparties such as entities in France, Germany and the UK who
themselves may have significant exposures to these countries. We consider this indirect exposure to GIIPS as part of our usual credit
risk management monitoring procedures for these exposures;
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� We have exposure to redenomination risk if the Euro is no longer used as the currency unit in one or more GIIPS or other Eurozone
countries. Redenomination risk arises when obligations of that country are redenominated from Euro into a local currency, the local
currency devalues against the Euro and other major global currencies which impacts upon other securities, contracts we have and the
wider markets. Nomura monitors and manages redenomination risk through scenario analyses which quantify the potential impact on
our GIIPS exposures; and

� We have additional exposure to replacement risk arising from financial instruments entered into with GIIPS counterparties.
Replacement risk arises if a GIIPS counterparty defaults and we are required to replace the transaction at additional cost to Nomura.
Such replacement costs may arise if exposures to hedge are large or on illiquid financial instruments. We manage and mitigate
replacement risk relating to GIIPS counterparties by monitoring exposures on selected counterparties that we believe represent the
greatest risk, identifying any significant concentration of risks in order to reduce exposures when possible and being prepared to put in
place a pre-emptive plan of action if such an event occurs.

Operational Risk Management

Overview of Operational Risk Management

In our Operational Risk Management Policy, we define operational risk as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, and systems or from external events. It excludes strategic risk (the risk of loss as a result of poor strategic business decisions), but
includes the risk of breach of legal and regulatory requirements, and the risk of damage to our reputation if caused by an Operational Risk. As
defined by the �Regulations for System Risk Management�, System Risk is considered to be a component of Operational Risk as defined above.

Operational Risk Principles

The Nomura Group adopts the industry standard �Three Lines of Defence� for the management of operational risk, comprising the following
elements:

1) 1st Line of Defence: The business units which owns and manages its risks

2) 2nd Line of Defence: The Operational Risk Management (�ORM�) function, which defines and co-ordinates the operational risk
strategy and framework

3) 3rd Line of Defence: Internal and External Audit, who provide independent assurance
The Governing body: The GIRMC, with delegated authority from the Board of Directors, which provides formal oversight.

This ensures appropriate oversight and independent review and challenge of operational risk management throughout the Company.

Operational Risk Management Framework

We have established an Operational Risk Management Framework in order to allow us to identify, assess, manage, monitor and report on
Operational Risk. Operational Risk Appetite is defined through a mixture of qualitative appetite statements and quantitative measures utilising
key components of the Operational Risk Management Framework.

This framework is set out below:

Infrastructure of the framework

� Policy framework: Sets minimum standards for operational risk and details how to monitor adherence to these standards
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� Training and awareness: Action taken by ORM to improve business understanding of ORM
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Products and Services

� Scenario analysis: Process to identify high impact, low probability �tail events�

� Event reporting: Process to obtain information on and learn from actual events impacting on the Company and relevant external events

� Key Risk Indicators (�KRI�): Metrics which allow monitoring of certain key operational risks

� Risk and Control Self Assessment (�RCSA�): Risk and Control Self Assessment process to identify key risks, controls and action plans
Outputs

� Analysis and reporting: Key aspect of ORM role to analyze and report on ORM information and work with business units to develop
actions

� Operational risk capital calculation: Calculate operational risk capital under Basel II provisions and allocate to business units to
improve the efficiency on profit vs risks

Operational Risk Classification

The Nomura Group uses the standard Basel II event type as operational risk classifications (namely, Internal Fraud, External Fraud, Employee
Practices and Workplace Safety, Clients, Products & Business Practices, Damage to Physical Assets, Business Disruption and System Failures
and Execution, Delivery & Process Management).

Basel II regulatory capital calculation for operational risk

The Nomura Group uses The Standardized Approach (�TSA�) for calculating regulatory capital for operational risk. This involves using a 3 year
average of gross income, allocated to business lines and multiplied by a fixed percentage determined by the FSA, to establish the amount of
required operational risk capital.

The Nomura Group uses consolidated net revenue as gross income, however as for a part of the consolidated subsidiaries, gross operating profit
is used as gross income. Gross income allocation is performed by mapping the net revenue of each given segment from management accounting
data to each business line in accordance with the categories:

Business Line Description Beta Factor
Retail Banking Retail deposit and loan-related services 12% 
Commercial Banking Deposit and loan-related services except for Retail Banking business 15% 
Payment and Settlement Payment and settlement services for clients� transactions 18% 
Retail Brokerage Securities-related services mainly for individuals 12% 
Trading and Sales Market-related business 18% 
Corporate Finance M&A, underwriting, secondary and private offerings, and other funding services for

clients 18% 
Agency Services Agency services for clients such as custody 15% 
Asset Management Fund management services for clients 12% 
Calculation Process of Basel II regulatory capital calculation for operational risk
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� The Nomura Group then calculates capital for every business line by multiplying respectively allocated annual gross income by the
corresponding factors set out above. Any unallocable gross income is multiplied by a fixed percentage of 18%.
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� Total operational risk capital is calculated as the three-year average of the simple summation of the amounts across each of the
business lines and unallocable value in each year. However, where the aggregated amount within a given year is negative, then the
input to the numerator for that year shall be zero.

� In any given year, negative numbers in any business line shall offset positive numbers in other business lines. However, negative
numbers in unallocable value shall not offset positive numbers in other business lines and shall be treated as zero.

� Operational risk capital is calculated twice a year; reference dates for the calculation are the end of March and the end of September.
Item 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equity Securities

A. Debt Securities

Not applicable.

B. Warrants and Rights

Not applicable.

C. Other Securities

Not applicable.
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D. American Depositary Shares

Fees payable by ADR Holders

The following table shows the fees and charges that a holder of the Company�s ADR may have to pay, either directly or indirectly:

Type of Services: Amount of Fee (U.S. Dollars)
Taxes and other governmental charges As applicable. The depositary may offset any taxes or governmental

charges it is obligated to withhold, if applicable, against the
proceeds from sale of the property received.

Transfers of the Company�s shares to or from the name of the depositary
(or its nominee) or the Custodian (or its nominee) in connection with
deposits or withdrawals

Such registration fees as may be in effect for the registration of
transfers of the Company�s shares on the Company�s share register
(or any entity that presently carries out the duties of registrar)

Cable, telex and facsimile transmission expenses As applicable

Expenses incurred by the depositary in the conversion of foreign currency As applicable

Execution and delivery of Receipts in connection with deposits, stock
splits or exercise of subscription rights

$5.00 or less per 100 ADSs (or portion thereof)

Surrender of Receipts in connection with a withdrawal or termination of
the Deposit Agreement

$5.00 or less per 100 ADSs (or portion thereof)

Any cash distribution pursuant to the Deposit Agreement, including, but
not limited to, cash distribution(s) made in connection with: cash
dividends; distributions in securities, property or subscription rights; and
stock splits.

$.02 or less per ADS (or portion thereof). Only the cash amounts
net of this fee, if applicable, are distributed

Distribution by the depositary of securities (other than common shares of
the Company) that accrued on the underlying shares to owners of the
Receipts

Treating for the purpose of this fee all such securities as if they
were common shares of the Company, $5.00 or less per 100 ADSs
(or portion thereof)

General depositary services $.02 or less per ADS (or portion thereof), accruing on the last day
of each calendar year, except where the fee for cash distribution
described above was assessed during that calendar year

Any other charge payable by the depositary, any of the depositary�s
agents, including the Custodian, or the agents of the depositary�s agents in
connection with the servicing of the Company�s shares or other deposited
securities

As applicable

Fees paid to Nomura by the depositary

The Bank of New York Mellon, as depositary, has agreed to pay all its standard out-of-pocket administration and maintenance expenses for
providing services to the registered shareholders and up to 100,000 non-registered shareholders of ADRs. From April 1, 2012 to March 31,
2013, the Bank of New York Mellon has waived a total of $160,054.72 in fees (including $27,719.90 in connection with the expenses related to
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders) associated with the administration of the ADR program and administrative fees for routine
corporate actions and for providing investor relations information services.
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PART II

Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquencies

None.

Item 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Holders and Use of Proceeds

None.

Item 15. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Our Disclosure Committee is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of our disclosure controls and procedures. As of March 31,
2013, an evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Group Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, and the Disclosure Committee, of the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Based on that evaluation, our Group Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of March 31, 2013, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management�s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Our management, with the participation of our Group Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting using the criteria set forth in the Internal
Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this
evaluation, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of March 31, 2013. Our independent
registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting, which appears on page F-3 of this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

Our management also carried out an evaluation, with the participation of our Group Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of
changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the year ended March 31, 2013. Based upon that evaluation, there was no change
in our internal control over financial reporting during the year ended March  31, 2013 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Company�s Board of Directors has determined that Tsuguoki Fujinuma, a member of the Audit Committee, is an �audit committee financial
expert� as such term is defined by the General Instructions for Item 16A of Form 20-F. Additionally, Mr. Fujinuma meets the independence
requirements applicable to him under Section 303A.06 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual. For a description of his business experience, see
Item 6.A of this annual report.

Item 16B. Code of Ethics

On March 5, 2004, the Company adopted the �Code of Ethics of Nomura Group� which includes the �Code of Ethics for Financial Professionals�
applicable to our financial professionals including the Company�s principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting
officer and persons performing similar functions.
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Item 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC has been our principal accountants for SEC reporting purposes for the last eleven fiscal years. The table set forth
below contains the aggregate fees billed for each of the last two fiscal years by our principal accountants in each of the following categories:
(i) Audit Fees, which are fees for professional services for the audit of our annual financial statements or services that are normally provided by
the accountant in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for those fiscal years, (ii) Audit-Related Fees, which are fees
for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and are not
reported as Audit Fees, (iii) Tax Fees, which are fees for professional services rendered for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning, and
(iv) All Other Fees, which are fees for products and services other than Audit Fees, Audit-Related Fees and Tax-Fees, such as advisory work for
risk management and regulatory matters.

Millions of yen
Year ended March 31
2012 2013

Audit Fees ¥ 3,002 ¥ 2,901
Audit-Related Fees 217 64
Tax Fees 128 57
All Other Fees 120 777

Total ¥ 3,467 ¥ 3,799

Audit-Related Fees included fees for services relating to consultations on accounting issues relating to our business such as securitization. Tax
Fees included fees for services relating to tax planning and compliance. All Other Fees included fees for services relating to advice with respect
to regulations and disclosures under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act in connection with our underwriting business.

In accordance with the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission issued pursuant to Sections 202 and 208 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, our Audit Committee has adopted a pre-approval policy regarding the engagements of our principal accountants. Under the
pre-approval policy, there are two types of pre-approval procedures, �General Pre-Approval� and �Specific Pre-Approval.�

Under the pre-approval procedure for �General Pre-Approval,� our CFO in conjunction with our principal accountants must make a proposal to
our Audit Committee for the types of services and estimated fee levels of each category of services to be generally pre-approved. Such proposal
must be made no less frequently than annually. The Audit Committee will discuss the proposal and if necessary consult with outside
professionals as to whether the proposed services would impair the independence of our principal accountants. If such proposal is accepted, our
Audit Committee will inform our CFO and principal accountants of the services that have generally been pre-approved and included in a
�General Pre-Approved List.� Our Audit Committee is informed of each such service that is provided.

Under the pre-approval procedure for �Specific Pre-Approval,� if any proposed services are not on the General Pre-Approved List, our CFO must
submit an application to our Audit Committee for such services. After reviewing the details and estimated fee levels for each engagement and if
necessary consulting with outside professionals as to whether the proposed services would impair the independence of our principal accountants,
our Audit Committee may make a specific pre-approval decision on these services. Also, if any approved services in the General Pre-Approved
List exceed the fee levels prescribed on the List, our CFO must submit an application to our Audit Committee for new fee levels for such
services. Our Audit Committee may make a pre-approval decision after reviewing the details of the services and the estimated fee levels for each
engagement.

None of the services described in the first paragraph under this Item 16C were waived from the pre-approval requirement pursuant to Rule
2-01(c)(7)(i)(C) of Regulation S-X.
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Item 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards for Audit Committees

The Company does not avail itself of any exemption from the independence requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934.

Item 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, we acquired 19,209 shares of our common stock by means of repurchase of shares constituting less
than one unit upon the request of the holders of those shares. For an explanation of the right of our shareholders to demand such repurchases by
us, see �Common Stock� under Item 10.B of this annual report. As of March 31, 2013, we had 3,710,960,252 outstanding shares excluding
111,602,349 shares as treasury stock.

We had not established share buyback programs nor purchased our common stock utilizing the programs during the year ended March 31, 2013.

On April 26, 2013, we announced a resolution of the Board of Directors to establish a share buyback program in accordance with Article 459-1
of the Companies Act. The period of repurchase under the program was from May 8, 2013 to May 31, 2013, and we were authorized to purchase
up to 40,000,000 shares of our common stock or to a maximum of ¥35,000,000,000. On May 10, 2013, we announced that the aggregate number
of shares repurchased through this buyback program was 40,000,000 shares and the aggregate value of shares repurchased was ¥32,470,386,300.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our purchases of shares of our common stock during the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2013.

Month

Total
Number of
Shares

Purchased

Average Price
Paid per
Share
(in yen)

Total
Number of
Shares

Purchased
as Part of
Publicly

Announced
Program

Maximum
Number of
Shares that
May Yet Be
Purchased
Under

the Program
April 1 to 30, 2012 889 352 �  �  
May 1 to 31, 2012 956 303 �  �  
June 1 to 30, 2012 1,043 271 �  �  
July 1 to 31, 2012 1,736 277 �  �  
August 1 to 31, 2012 1,856 278 �  �  
September 1 to 30, 2012 1,008 283 �  �  
October 1 to 31, 2012 1,471 276 �  �  
November 1 to 30, 2012 1,182 305 �  �  
December 1 to 31, 2012 2,213 373 �  �  
January 1 to 31, 2013 1,859 498 �  �  
February 1 to 28, 2013 2,918 529 �  �  
March 1 to 31, 2013 2,078 566 �  �  

Total 19,209 386 �  �  

Nomura recognizes the need to set out flexible financial strategies that allow the Board of Directors to respond quickly to any changes in the
business environment and is looking into implementing further share buybacks. Details will be announced when finalized.

As of May 31, 2013, 3,695,023,003 shares of Nomura Holdings were outstanding, excluding 127,539,598 shares held as treasury stock.
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Item 16F. Change in Registrant�s Certifying Accountant

Not applicable.

Item 16G. Corporate Governance

Companies listed on the NYSE must comply with certain standards regarding corporate governance under Section 303A of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual. However, listed companies that are foreign private issuers, such as the Company, are permitted to follow home country
practice in lieu of certain provisions of Section 303A.

The following table shows the significant differences between the corporate governance practices followed by U.S. listed companies under
Section 303A of the NYSE Listed Company Manual and those followed by the Company. The information set forth below is current as of the
date of this annual report.

Corporate Governance Practices Followed

by NYSE-listed U.S. Companies Corporate Governance Practices Followed by the Company
A NYSE-listed U.S. company must have a majority of Directors meeting
the independence requirements under Section 303A of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual.

Under the Companies Act, a company which adopts the Committee
System is not required to have a majority of outside directors, but is
required to have a majority of outside directors on each of the audit,
nomination and compensation committees. An outside director is
defined under the Companies Act as a non-executive director who
does not currently assume, and has never assumed, the position of
executive director, executive officer, manager or employee of the
company or its subsidiaries.

The Company, while meeting the requirements of the Companies
Act, has six outside directors among its eleven Directors.

The non-management directors of a NYSE-listed U.S. company must
meet at regularly scheduled executive sessions without management.

Under the Companies Act, the Company is not required to hold
such executive sessions for its outside directors.

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must have an audit committee that satisfies
the requirements under Section 303A of the NYSE Listed Company
Manual, including those imposed by Rule 10A-3 under the U.S.
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The audit committee must be composed
entirely of independent directors and have at least three members.

The Company has an Audit Committee consisting of three
Directors, all of whom are independent directors under Rule 10A-3
under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Audit
Committee is in charge of monitoring the performance of the
Directors and Executive Officers of the Company and to propose
the appointment or dismissal of its independent auditors and
accounting firm. The Audit Committee satisfies the requirements of
Rule 10A-3 under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must have a nominating/corporate
governance committee with responsibilities described under
Section 303A of the NYSE Listed Company Manual. The
nominating/corporate governance committee must be composed entirely
of independent directors.

The Company has a Nomination Committee consisting of three
Directors, two of whom are outside directors. The Nomination
Committee is in charge of proposing to the meeting of shareholders
the election or dismissal of Directors of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Practices Followed

by NYSE-listed U.S. Companies Corporate Governance Practices Followed by the Company

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must have a compensation committee with
responsibilities described under Section 303A of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual. The compensation committee must be composed
entirely of independent directors.

The Company has a Compensation Committee consisting of three
Directors, two of whom are outside directors. The Compensation
Committee is in charge of determining the compensation of each
Director and Executive Officer of the Company.

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must generally obtain shareholder approval
with respect to any equity compensation plan.

The Compensation Committee establishes the policy with respect to
the determination of the individual compensation of each of the
Company�s Directors and Executive Officers (including stock
options in the form of stock acquisition rights as equity
compensation) and makes determinations in accordance with that
compensation policy. Under the Companies Act, stock options are
deemed to be compensation for the services performed by the
Company�s Directors and Executive Officers.

Item 16H. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable.
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PART III

Item 17. Financial Statements

In lieu of responding to this item, we have responded to Item 18 of this annual report.

Item 18. Financial Statements

The information required by this item is set forth in our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report.
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Item 19. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Description
  1.1 Articles of Incorporation of the registrant (English translation) (filed on June 30, 2011 as an exhibit to the Annual Report on

Form 20-F (File No. 001-15270) and incorporated herein by reference)

  1.2 Share Handling Regulations of the registrant (English translation) (filed on April 7, 2010 as an exhibit to the Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-165925) and incorporated herein by reference)

  1.3 Regulations of the Board of Directors of the registrant (English translation) (filed on June 30, 2011 as an exhibit to the Annual
Report on Form 20-F (File No. 001-15270) and incorporated herein by reference)

  1.4 Regulations of the Nomination Committee (English translation) (filed on June 30, 2009 as an exhibit to the Annual Report on
Form 20-F (File No. 001-15270) and incorporated herein by reference)

  1.5 Regulations of the Audit Committee (English translation) (filed on June 30, 2009 as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form
20-F (File No. 001-15270) and incorporated herein by reference)

  1.6 Regulations of the Compensation Committee (English translation) (filed on June 27, 2012 as an exhibit to the Annual Report on
Form 20-F (File No. 001-15270) and incorporated herein by reference)

  2.1 Form of Deposit Agreement among the registrant, The Bank of New York Mellon as depositary and all owners and holders from
time to time of American Depositary Receipts, including the form of American Depositary Receipt (filed on April 28, 2010 as an
exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form F-6 (File No. 333-166346) and incorporated herein by reference)

  4.1 Limitation of Liability Agreement (English translation) (filed on June 30, 2011 as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 20-F
(File No. 001-15270) and incorporated herein by reference)(1)

  4.2 Limitation of Liability Agreement (filed on June 30, 2011 as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 20-F (File No.
001-15270) and incorporated herein by reference)(2)

  8.1 Subsidiaries of the registrant�See �Item 4.C. Information on the Company�Organizational Structure.�

11.1 Code of Ethics of Nomura Group (English translation) (filed on June 27, 2012 as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 20-F
(File No. 001-15270) and incorporated herein by reference)

12.1 Certification of the principal executive officer required by 17 C.F.R. 240. 13a-14(a)

12.2 Certification of the principal financial officer required by 17 C.F.R. 240. 13a-14(a)

13.1 Certification of the chief executive officer required by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

13.2 Certification of the chief financial officer required by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

15.1 Consent of Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC with respect to its report on the audit of the financial statements included in this
annual report

15.2 Consent of Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC with respect to its report on the audit of the financial statements included in this
annual report

    101.INS  XBRL Instance Document

    101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

    101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

    101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

    101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

    101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

(1) The Company and each of Masahiro Sakane, Toshinori Kanemoto, Tsuguoki Fujinuma and Takao Kusakari entered into a Limitation of
Liability Agreement substantially in the form of this exhibit.

(2) The Company and each of Dame Clara Furse and Michael Lim Choo San entered into a Limitation of Liability Agreement substantially in
the form of this exhibit.

The Company has not included as exhibits certain instruments with respect to our long-term debt. The amount of debt authorized under each
such debt instrument does not exceed 10% or our total assets. We will furnish a copy of any such instrument to the SEC upon request.
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NOMURA HOLDINGS, INC.

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Consolidated Financial Statements of Nomura Holdings, Inc.:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-2

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 F-4

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 F-7

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 F-8

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 F-9

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 F-11

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements F-13

Consolidated Financial Statements of Nomura Research Institute, Ltd. A-1
Pursuant to Regulation S-X, Rule 3-09, this annual report contains the consolidated financial statements of Nomura Research Institute, Ltd.
(�NRI�), an equity method affiliate of Nomura Holdings, Inc. (�Company�). The consolidated financial statements of NRI contained herein, which
are as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 and for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Japan. The equity of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries in the income before income taxes of NRI
exceeded 20%, but did not exceed 30%, of such income of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2012,
while such percentages for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2013 did not exceed 20%. The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries�
investments in and advances to NRI did not exceed 20% of the total assets of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31,
2011, 2012 or 2013. Accordingly, pursuant to Regulation S-X, Rule 3-09 as well as Item 17 of Form 20-F, of the consolidated financial
statements of NRI contained herein, only those as of and for the year ended March 31, 2012 have been audited in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Nomura Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Nomura Holdings, Inc. (the �Company�) as of March 31, 2012 and 2013, and
the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended March 31, 2013. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Nomura
Holdings, Inc. at March 31, 2012 and 2013, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended March 31, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Nomura Holdings,
Inc.�s internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated June 27, 2013 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC

Tokyo, Japan

June 27, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Nomura Holdings, Inc.

We have audited Nomura Holdings, Inc.�s internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal
Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Nomura
Holdings, Inc.�s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management�s Annual Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company�s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Nomura Holdings, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 31,
2013, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Nomura Holdings, Inc. as of March 31, 2012 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2013 and our report dated June 27, 2013
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC

Tokyo, Japan

June 27, 2013
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NOMURA HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Millions of yen
March 31

2012 2013
ASSETS

Cash and cash deposits:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 1,070,520 ¥ 805,087
Time deposits 653,462 577,921
Deposits with stock exchanges and other segregated cash 229,695 269,744

Total cash and cash deposits 1,953,677 1,652,752

Loans and receivables:
Loans receivable (including ¥458,352 million and ¥524,049 million measured at fair value by applying the
fair value option in 2012 and 2013, respectively) 1,293,372 1,575,494
Receivables from customers 58,310 63,792
Receivables from other than customers 864,629 992,847
Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,888) (2,258) 

Total loans and receivables 2,211,423 2,629,875

Collateralized agreements:
Securities purchased under agreements to resell (including ¥752,407 million and ¥997,788 million
measured at fair value by applying the fair value option in 2012 and 2013, respectively) 7,662,748 8,295,372
Securities borrowed 6,079,898 5,819,885

Total collateralized agreements 13,742,646 14,115,257

Trading assets and private equity investments:
Trading assets (including securities pledged as collateral of ¥4,732,118 million and ¥7,707,813 million in
2012 and 2013, respectively; including ¥16,548 million and ¥19,970 million measured at fair value by
applying the fair value option in 2012 and 2013, respectively) 13,921,639 17,037,191
Private equity investments (including ¥53,635 million and ¥44,134 million measured at fair value by
applying the fair value option in 2012 and 2013, respectively) 201,955 87,158

Total trading assets and private equity investments 14,123,594 17,124,349

Other assets:
Office buildings, land, equipment and facilities (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of
¥355,804 million and ¥355,831 million in 2012 and 2013, respectively) 1,045,950 428,241
Non-trading debt securities 862,758 920,611
Investments in equity securities 88,187 123,490
Investments in and advances to affiliated companies 193,954 345,705
Other (including ¥1,627 million and ¥1,632 million measured at fair value by applying the fair value
option in 2012 and 2013, respectively) 1,475,123 602,159

Total other assets 3,665,972 2,420,206

Total assets ¥ 35,697,312 ¥ 37,942,439
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOMURA HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS�(Continued)

Millions of yen
March 31

2012 2013
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Short-term borrowings (including ¥153,497 million and ¥77,036 million measured at fair value by
applying the fair value option in 2012 and 2013, respectively) ¥ 1,185,613 ¥ 738,445
Payables and deposits:
Payables to customers 764,857 476,705
Payables to other than customers 767,860 864,962
Deposits received at banks 904,653 1,072,134

Total payables and deposits 2,437,370 2,413,801

Collateralized financing:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (including ¥307,083 million and ¥264,767 million
measured at fair value by applying the fair value option in 2012 and 2013, respectively) 9,928,293 12,444,317
Securities loaned 1,700,029 2,158,559
Other secured borrowings 890,952 806,507

Total collateralized financing 12,519,274 15,409,383

Trading liabilities 7,495,177 8,491,296
Other liabilities (including ¥4,246 million and ¥2,360 million measured at fair value by applying the fair
value option in 2012 and 2013, respectively) 1,165,901 978,163
Long-term borrowings (including ¥1,925,421 million and ¥1,664,536 million measured at fair value by
applying the fair value option in 2012 and 2013, respectively) 8,504,840 7,592,368

Total liabilities 33,308,175 35,623,456

Commitments and contingencies (Note 22)
Equity:
Nomura Holdings, Inc. (�NHI�) shareholders� equity:
Common stock
No par value shares;

Authorized�6,000,000,000 shares in 2012 and 2013

Issued�3,822,562,601 shares in 2012 and 2013

Outstanding�3,663,483,895 shares in 2012 and 3,710,960,252 shares in 2013 594,493 594,493
Additional paid-in capital 698,771 691,264
Retained earnings 1,058,945 1,136,523
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (145,149) (57,395) 

Total NHI shareholder�s equity before treasury stock 2,207,060 2,364,885
Common stock held in treasury, at cost�159,078,706 shares in 2012 and 111,602,349 shares in 2013 (99,819) (70,514) 

Total NHI shareholders� equity 2,107,241 2,294,371

Edgar Filing: FINOCCHIO ROBERT J - Form 4/A

Table of Contents 123



Noncontrolling interests 281,896 24,612
Total equity 2,389,137 2,318,983

Total liabilities and equity ¥ 35,697,312 ¥ 37,942,439

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The following table presents the classification of consolidated variable interest entities� (�VIEs�) assets and liabilities. The assets of a consolidated
VIE may only be used to settle obligations of that VIE. Creditors do not have any recourse to Nomura beyond the assets held in the VIEs. See
Note 8 �Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities� for further information.

Billions of yen
March 31

2012 2013
Cash and cash deposits ¥ 52 ¥ 13
Trading assets and private equity investments 999 695
Other assets 555 93

Total assets ¥ 1,606 ¥ 801

Trading liabilities ¥ 42 ¥ 21
Other liabilities 35 11
Borrowings 992 458

Total liabilities ¥ 1,069 ¥ 490

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOMURA HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Millions of yen
Year ended March 31

2011 2012 2013
Revenue:
Commissions ¥ 405,463 ¥ 347,135 ¥ 359,069
Fees from investment banking 107,005 59,638 62,353
Asset management and portfolio service fees 143,939 144,251 141,029
Net gain on trading 336,503 272,557 367,979
Gain on private equity investments 19,292 25,098 8,053
Interest and dividends 346,103 435,890 394,007
Gain (loss) on investments in equity securities (16,677) 4,005 38,686
Other 43,864 563,186 708,767

Total revenue 1,385,492 1,851,760 2,079,943
Interest expense 254,794 315,901 266,312

Net revenue 1,130,698 1,535,859 1,813,631

Non-interest expenses:
Compensation and benefits 518,993 534,648 547,591
Commissions and floor brokerage 92,088 93,500 91,388
Information processing and communications 182,918 177,148 179,904
Occupancy and related depreciation 87,843 100,891 91,545
Business development expenses 30,153 48,488 49,010
Other 125,448 496,227 616,463

Total non-interest expenses 1,037,443 1,450,902 1,575,901

Income before income taxes 93,255 84,957 237,730

Income tax expense 61,330 58,903 132,039

Net income ¥ 31,925 ¥ 26,054 ¥ 105,691

Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 3,264 14,471 (1,543) 

Net income attributable to NHI shareholders ¥ 28,661 ¥ 11,583 ¥ 107,234

Yen
Per share of common stock:
Basic�
Net income attributable to NHI shareholders per share ¥ 7.90 ¥ 3.18 ¥ 29.04

Diluted�
Net income attributable to NHI shareholders per share ¥ 7.86 ¥ 3.14 ¥ 28.37

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOMURA HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Millions of yen
Year ended March 31

2011 2012 2013
Net income ¥ 31,925 ¥ 26,054 ¥ 105,691
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Change in cumulative translation adjustments, net of tax (24,151) (13,801) 74,301
Defined benefit pension plans:
Pension liability adjustment 4,074 (4,203) 8,702
Deferred income taxes (1,542) 1,548 (3,007) 

Total 2,532 (2,655) 5,695

Non-trading securities:
Net unrealized gain on non-trading securities �  1,339 17,283
Deferred income taxes �  (498) (4,650) 

Total �  841 12,633

Total other comprehensive income (loss) (21,619) (15,615) 92,629

Comprehensive income 10,306 10,439 198,320
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 2,209 14,309 3,332

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to NHI shareholders ¥ 8,097 ¥ (3,870) ¥ 194,988

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOMURA HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Millions of yen
Year ended March 31

2011 2012 2013
Common stock
Balance at beginning of year ¥ 594,493 ¥ 594,493 ¥ 594,493

Balance at end of year 594,493 594,493 594,493

Additional paid-in capital
Balance at beginning of year 635,828 646,315 698,771
Issuance of common stock �  30,356 �  
Gain (loss) on sales of treasury stock 3,191 719 (1,798) 
Issuance and exercise of common stock options 7,296 19,466 (5,700) 
Purchase / sale of subsidiary shares, net �  1,915 (9) 

Balance at end of year 646,315 698,771 691,264

Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of year 1,074,213 1,069,334 1,058,945
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle(1) (4,734) �  �  
Net income attributable to NHI shareholders 28,661 11,583 107,234
Cash dividends (28,806) (21,972) (29,656) 

Balance at end of year 1,069,334 1,058,945 1,136,523

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Cumulative translation adjustments
Balance at beginning of year (74,330) (97,426) (110,652) 
Net change during the year (23,096) (13,226) 71,777

Balance at end of year (97,426) (110,652) (38,875) 

Defined benefit pension plans
Balance at beginning of year (34,802) (32,270) (35,132) 
Pension liability adjustment 2,532 (2,862) 6,614

Balance at end of year (32,270) (35,132) (28,518) 

Non-trading securities
Balance at beginning of year �  �  635
Net unrealized gain on non-trading securities �  635 9,363

Balance at end of year �  635 9,998

Balance at end of year (129,696) (145,149) (57,395) 
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NOMURA HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY�(Continued)

Millions of yen
Year ended March 31

2011 2012 2013
Common stock held in treasury
Balance at beginning of year (68,473) (97,692) (99,819) 
Repurchases of common stock (37,378) (8,944) (7) 
Sales of common stock 4 1 1
Common stock issued to employees 8,155 6,693 29,507
Other net change in treasury stock �  123 (196) 

Balance at end of year (97,692) (99,819) (70,514) 

Total NHI shareholders� equity
Balance at end of year 2,082,754 2,107,241 2,294,371

Noncontrolling interests
Balance at beginning of year 6,085 8,882 281,896
Cash dividends (100) (2,760) (3,422) 
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 3,264 14,471 (1,543) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests
Cumulative translation adjustments (1,055) (575) 2,524
Net unrealized gain on non-trading securities �  206 3,270
Pension liability adjustment �  207 (919) 
Purchase / sale of subsidiary shares, net 0 271,515 (247,782) 
Other net change in noncontrolling interests 688 (10,050) (9,412) 

Balance at end of year 8,882 281,896 24,612

Total equity
Balance at end of year ¥ 2,091,636 ¥ 2,389,137 ¥ 2,318,983

(1) Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for the year ended March 31, 2011 is an adjustment to initially apply Accounting
Standards Update (�ASU�) No. 2009-17 �Consolidation (Topic 810): Improvements to Financial Reporting by Enterprises Involved with
Variable Interest Entities� (�ASU 2009-17�).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOMURA HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Millions of yen
Year ended March 31

2011 2012 2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income ¥ 31,925 ¥ 26,054 ¥ 105,691
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 75,587 100,572 91,493
Stock option expenses 18,638 26,869 21,955
(Gain) loss on investments in equity securities 16,677 (4,005) (38,686) 
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net of dividends received (6,800) (969) (13,003) 
Loss on disposal of office buildings, land, equipment and facilities 6,348 5,351 17,641
Deferred income taxes 55,199 37,772 53,957
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Time deposits (155,251) (318,104) 137,526
Deposits with stock exchanges and other segregated cash (67,738) (39,225) (9,461) 
Trading assets and private equity investments (1,481,908) 971,327 (1,448,489) 
Trading liabilities 1,206,394 (1,058,445) 248,019
Securities purchased under agreements to resell, net of securities sold under agreements to repurchase 327,668 980,156 1,375,929
Securities borrowed, net of securities loaned (446,152) (508,844) 863,511
Other secured borrowings (160,031) (271,498) (84,444) 
Loans and receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts (354,691) 28,933 (238,318) 
Payables 319,506 218,915 (305,672) 
Bonus accrual (8,802) (13,356) 31,415
Accrued income taxes, net (26,174) 5,055 50,019
Other, net 414,515 104,305 (309,582) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (235,090) 290,863 549,501

Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for purchases of office buildings, land, equipment and facilities (186,350) (182,568) (271,975) 
Proceeds from sales of office buildings, land, equipment and facilities 109,888 120,435 147,653
Payments for purchases of investments in equity securities (221) (138) (319) 
Proceeds from sales of investments in equity securities 3,247 5,485 3,741
(Increase) decrease in loans receivable at banks, net (60,350) 30,591 22,189
Increase in non-trading debt securities, net (286,013) (968) (54,237) 
Business combinations or disposals, net 5,570 35,597 (5,919) 
Decrease (increase) in investments in affiliated companies, net (8,936) 2,146 (1,391) 
Other, net (49) (638) (228) 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (423,214) 9,942 (160,486) 

Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in long-term borrowings 2,267,658 2,015,446 1,930,357
Decrease in long-term borrowings (1,188,034) (2,883,078) (2,330,509) 
Decrease in short-term borrowings, net (97,282) (56,383) (416,174) 
Increase in deposits received at banks, net 368,354 117,047 129,384
Proceeds from sales of common stock held in treasury 8 10 56
Payments for repurchases of common stock held in treasury (37,378) (8,287) (7) 
Payments for cash dividends (29,083) (29,066) (14,730) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,284,243 (844,311) (701,623) 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (26,246) (6,314) 47,175

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 599,693 (549,820) (265,433) 
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Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,020,647 1,620,340 1,070,520

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ¥ 1,620,340 ¥ 1,070,520 ¥ 805,087

Supplemental information:
Cash paid during the year for�
Interest ¥ 259,679 ¥ 338,802 ¥ 296,643

Income tax payments, net ¥ 32,305 ¥ 16,076 ¥ 28,063
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Non cash activities�

Business acquisitions:

Assets acquired, excluding cash and cash equivalents, and debt assumed were ¥2,132,740 million and ¥1,784,621 million, respectively, for the
year ended March 31, 2012.

Business dispositions:

Assets sold, excluding cash and cash equivalents, and debt assumed by the purchaser were ¥1,488,853 million and ¥1,166,556 million,
respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2013.

Other:

During the year ended March 31, 2011, as a result of adoption of ASU 2009-17, assets excluding cash and cash equivalent increased by
¥275,464 million and liabilities increased by ¥289,757 million.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of accounting policies:

Description of business�

Nomura Holdings, Inc. (the �Company�) and its broker-dealer, banking and other financial services subsidiaries provide investment, financing and
related services to individual, institutional and government clients on a global basis. The Company and other entities in which it has a controlling
financial interest are collectively referred to as �Nomura� within these consolidated financial statements.

Nomura operates its business through various divisions based upon the nature of specific products and services, its main client base and its
management structure. Nomura reports operating results through three business segments: Retail, Asset Management and Wholesale.

In its Retail segment, Nomura provides investment consultation services mainly to individual clients in Japan. In its Asset Management segment,
Nomura develops and manages investment trusts, and provides investment advisory services. In its Wholesale segment, Nomura is engaged in
the sales and trading of debt and equity securities and currencies on a global basis to various institutions, provides investment banking services
such as the underwriting of debt and equity securities as well as mergers and acquisitions and financial advice and invests in private equity
businesses and seeks to maximize returns on these investments by increasing the corporate value of investee companies.

Basis of presentation�

The accounting and financial reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (�U.S.
GAAP�) as applicable to broker-dealers.

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and other entities in which it has a controlling financial interest.
The Company initially determines whether it has a controlling financial interest in an entity by evaluating whether the entity is a variable interest
entity (�VIE�) under Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) Accounting Standard Codification (�ASC�) 810 �Consolidation� (�ASC 810�).
VIEs are entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or which do not have sufficient
equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support. The Company consolidates VIEs where
Nomura is the primary beneficiary, which is where Nomura holds variable interests that provide power over the most significant activities of the
VIE and the right to receive benefits or the obligation to absorb losses meeting a significance test, provided that Nomura is not acting as a
fiduciary for other interest holders. For certain VIE that qualify as investment companies under ASC 946 �Financial Services�Investment
Companies� (�ASC 946�) or for which it is industry practice to apply guidance consistent with the measurement principles in ASC 946, Nomura is
the primary beneficiary when it holds an interest that will absorb a majority of the expected losses or a majority of the expected residual returns
of the entity, or both.

For entities other than VIEs, Nomura is generally determined to have a controlling financial interest in an entity when it owns a majority of the
voting interests.

Equity investments in entities in which Nomura has significant influence over operating and financial decisions (generally defined as 20 to 50
percent of the voting stock of a corporate entity, or at least 3 percent of a limited partnership) are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting (�equity method investments�) and reported within Other assets�Investments in and advances to affiliated companies or at fair value by
electing the fair value option permitted by ASC 825 �Financial Instruments� (�ASC 825�) and reported within Trading assets or Private equity
investments or Other assets�Other. Investments undertaken by Nomura�s merchant banking business are reported within Private equity
investments and Other assets�Other. Other investments are
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

reported within Trading assets. Equity investments in which Nomura has neither control nor significant influence are carried at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognized through the consolidated statements of income or the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Certain entities in which Nomura has a financial interest are investment companies under ASC 946. These entities, including subsidiaries such as
Nomura Principal Finance Co., Ltd. (�NPF�), carry all of their investments at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized through the
consolidated statements of income.

The Company�s principal subsidiaries include Nomura Securities Co., Ltd. (�NSC�), Nomura Securities International, Inc. (�NSI�) and Nomura
International plc (�NIP�).

All material intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation. Certain reclassifications of previously reported
amounts have been made to conform to the current year presentation.

Use of estimates�

In presenting these consolidated financial statements, management makes estimates regarding the valuation of certain financial instruments and
investments, the outcome of litigation and tax examinations, the recovery of the carrying value of goodwill, the allowance for doubtful accounts,
the realization of deferred tax assets and other matters that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as well as the disclosures in these
consolidated financial statements. Estimates, by their nature, are based on judgment and available information. Therefore, actual results may
differ from estimates which could have a material impact on these consolidated financial statements, and it is possible that such adjustments
could occur in the near term.

Fair value of financial instruments�

A significant amount of Nomura�s financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized through
the consolidated statements of income or the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Use of fair value is either specifically required
under U.S. GAAP or Nomura makes an election to use fair value for certain eligible items under the fair value option.

Other financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, where the primary measurement basis is not fair
value. Fair value is only used in specific circumstances after initial recognition, such as to measure impairment.

In all cases, fair value is determined in accordance with ASC 820 �Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures� (�ASC 820�) which defines fair value
as the amount that would be exchanged to sell a financial asset or transfer a financial liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. It assumes that the transaction occurs in Nomura�s principal market, or in the absence of a principal market,
the most advantageous market for the relevant financial asset or financial liability. See Note 2 �Fair value measurements� for further information
regarding how Nomura estimates fair value for specific types of financial instruments used in the ordinary course of business.

Private equity business�

Private equity investments are generally carried at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized through the consolidated statements of
income. See Note 4 �Private equity business� for further information.
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Transfers of financial assets�

Nomura accounts for the transfer of a financial asset as a sale when Nomura relinquishes control over the asset by meeting the following
conditions: (a) the asset has been isolated from the transferor (even in bankruptcy or other receivership), (b) the transferee has the right to pledge
or exchange the asset received, or if the transferee is an entity whose sole purpose is to engage in securitization or asset-backed financing
activities, if, the holders of its beneficial interests have the right to pledge or exchange the beneficial interests held and (c) the transferor has not
maintained effective control over the transferred asset.

In connection with its securitization activities, Nomura utilizes special purpose entities (�SPEs�) to securitize commercial and residential mortgage
loans, government and corporate securities and other types of financial assets. Nomura�s involvement with SPEs includes structuring and
underwriting, distributing and selling debt instruments and beneficial interests issued by SPEs to investors. Nomura derecognizes financial assets
transferred in securitizations provided that Nomura has relinquished control over such assets and does not consolidate the SPE. Nomura may
obtain or retain an interest in the financial assets, including residual interests in the SPEs dependent upon prevailing market conditions. Any
such interests are accounted for at fair value and reported within Trading assets in the consolidated balance sheets with the change in fair value
reported within Revenue�Net gain on trading in the consolidated statements of income.

Foreign currency translation�

The financial statements of the Company�s subsidiaries are measured using their functional currency which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates. All assets and liabilities of subsidiaries which have a functional currency other than
Japanese yen are translated into Japanese yen at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date; all revenue and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the respective years and the resulting translation adjustments are accumulated and reported within Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) in NHI shareholders� equity.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and the resulting translation gains or
losses are credited or charged to the consolidated statements of income.

Fee revenue�

Revenue�Commissions includes amounts charged for executing brokerage transactions accrued on a trade date basis and are included in current
period earnings. Revenue�Fees from investment banking includes securities underwriting fees and other corporate financing services fees.
Underwriting fees are recorded when services for underwriting are completed. All other fees are recognized when related services are
performed. Revenue�Asset management and portfolio service fees are accrued over the period that the related services are provided or when
specified performance requirements are met.

Trading assets and trading liabilities�

Trading assets and Trading liabilities primarily comprise debt and equity securities, derivatives and loans which are generally recognized on the
consolidated balance sheets on a trade date basis and carried at fair value with changes in fair value reported within Revenue�Net gain on trading
in the consolidated statements of income.
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Collateralized agreements and collateralized financing�

Collateralized agreements consist of resale agreements and securities borrowed. Collateralized financing consists of repurchase agreements,
securities loaned and other secured borrowings.

Resale and repurchase agreements (�repo transactions�) principally involve the buying or selling of government and government agency securities
under agreements with clients to resell or repurchase these securities to or from those clients. Repo transactions are generally accounted for as
collateralized agreements or collateralized financing transactions and are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at the amount at which the
securities were originally acquired or sold with applicable accrued interest, as appropriate. Certain repo transactions are carried at fair value
through election of the fair value option. No allowance for credit losses is generally recorded on repurchase agreements due to the strict
collateralization requirements.

Repo transactions where the maturity of the security transferred as collateral matches the maturity of the repo transaction (�repo-to-maturity
transactions�) are accounted for as sales rather than collateralized financings where the criteria for derecognition of the securities transferred
under ASC 860 �Transfers and Servicing� (�ASC 860�) are met. The amounts of securities derecognized from the consolidated balance sheets under
repo-to-maturity transactions as of March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013 were ¥39,797 million and ¥nil, respectively.

Nomura also enters into Gensaki Repo transactions which are the standard type of repurchase transaction used in the Japanese financial market.
Gensaki Repo transactions contain margin requirements, rights of security substitution, and certain restrictions on the client�s right to sell or
repledge the transferred securities. Gensaki Repo transactions are accounted for as collateralized agreements or collateralized financing
transactions and are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at the amount that the securities were originally acquired or sold with applicable
accrued interest, as appropriate.

Repo transactions (including Gensaki Repo transactions) are presented in the consolidated balance sheets net-by-counterparty, where offsetting
is consistent with ASC 210-20 �Balance Sheet�Offsetting� (�ASC 210-20�).

Securities borrowed and securities loaned are generally accounted for as collateralized agreements and collateralized financing transactions,
respectively. Securities borrowed and securities loaned are generally cash collateralized and are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at
the amount of cash collateral advanced or received. No allowance for credit losses is generally recorded on securities borrowing transactions due
to the strict collateralization requirements.

Nomura adopted Accounting Standard Update (�ASU�) No. 2011-03 �Reconsideration of Effective Control for Repurchase Agreements�
(�ASU 2011-03�) from January 1, 2012 and certain Japanese securities lending transactions undertaken after adoption date were accounted for as
secured borrowings rather than sales in these consolidated financial statements as the criteria for derecognition of the transferred financial assets
under ASC 860 were no longer be met. The agreements governing these transactions included varying margining requirements, but the amount
of cash Nomura borrows from its counterparties was typically less than the fair value of securities Nomura lends. The amount of the �haircut� was
set by percentages agreed between the two parties. Following adoption of ASU 2011-03, the levels of cash collateral, haircuts and ongoing
margining received by Nomura in these transactions are now irrelevant in determining whether these should be accounted for as sales or secured
borrowings.

However, since the amendments were to be applied prospectively, any outstanding transactions as of adoption date continued to be reported as
sales through until maturity.
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The amounts of securities derecognized from the consolidated balance sheets under this type of securities lending transaction as of March 31,
2012 and March 31, 2013 were ¥1,930 million and ¥nil, respectively.

Other secured borrowings consist primarily of secured borrowings from financial institutions and central banks in the inter-bank money market,
and are recorded at contractual amounts due.

Trading balances of secured borrowings consist of liabilities related to transfers of financial assets that are accounted for as secured financing
transactions rather than sales and are reported in the consolidated balance sheets within Long-term borrowings. The fair value option is generally
elected for these transactions, which are carried at fair value on a recurring basis. See Note 8 �Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities� and
Note 13 �Borrowings� for further information regarding these transactions.

All Nomura-owned securities pledged to counterparties where the counterparty has the right to sell or repledge the securities, including Gensaki
Repo transactions, are reported parenthetically within Trading assets as Securities pledged as collateral in the consolidated balance sheets.

Derivatives�

Nomura uses a variety of derivative financial instruments, including futures, forwards, swaps and options, for both trading and non-trading
purposes. All freestanding derivatives are carried at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets and reported within Trading assets or Trading
liabilities depending on whether fair value is positive or negative, respectively. Certain derivatives embedded in hybrid financial instruments
such as structured notes and certificates of deposit are bifurcated from the host contract and are also carried at fair value in the consolidated
balance sheets and reported within Short-term borrowings or Long-term borrowings depending on the maturity of the underlying host contract.

Changes in fair value are recognized either through the consolidated statements of income or the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income depending on the purpose for which the derivatives are used.

Derivative assets and liabilities are presented in the consolidated balance sheets on a net-by-counterparty basis where offsetting is consistent
with ASC 210-20. In addition, fair value amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral (a receivable) and the obligation to return
cash collateral (a payable) are also offset against net derivative liabilities and net derivative assets, respectively.

Trading

Derivative financial instruments used for trading purposes, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value reported in the consolidated statements of income within Revenue�Net gain on trading.

Non-trading

In addition to its trading activities, Nomura uses derivative financial instruments for other than trading purposes such as to manage risk
exposures arising from recognized assets and liabilities, forecasted transactions and firm commitments. Certain derivatives used for non-trading
purposes are formally designated as fair value and net investment accounting hedges under ASC 815 �Derivatives and Hedging� (�ASC 815�).

Nomura designates derivative financial instruments as fair value hedges of interest rate risk arising from specific financial liabilities. These
derivatives are effective in reducing the risk associated with the exposure
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being hedged and they are highly correlated with changes in the fair value of the underlying hedged item, both at inception and throughout the
life of the hedge contract. Changes in fair value of the hedging derivatives are reported together with those of the hedged liabilities through the
consolidated statements of income within Interest expense.

Derivative financial instruments designated as hedges of the net investment in foreign operations are linked to specific subsidiaries with
non-Japanese yen functional currencies. When determining the effectiveness of net investment hedges, the effective portion of the change in fair
value of the hedging derivative is determined by changes in spot exchange rates and is reported through NHI shareholders� equity within
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). The change in fair value of the hedging derivatives attributable to changes in the difference
between the forward rate and spot rate is excluded from the measure of hedge effectiveness and is reported in the consolidated statements of
income within Revenue�Other.

See Note 3 �Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities� for further information.

Loans receivable�

Loans receivable are loans which management intends to hold for the foreseeable future. Loans receivable are either carried at fair value or at
amortized cost. Interest earned on loans receivable is generally reported in the consolidated statements of income within Revenue�Interest and
dividends.

Loans receivable carried at fair value

Certain loans which are risk managed on a fair value basis are carried at fair value through election of the fair value option. Nomura makes this
election to mitigate volatility in the consolidated statements of income caused by the difference in measurement basis that would otherwise exist
between the loans and the derivatives used to risk manage those loans. Changes in the fair value of loans receivable carried at fair value are
reported in the consolidated statements of income within Revenue�Net gain on trading.

Loans receivable carried at amortized cost

Loans receivable which are not carried at fair value are carried at amortized cost. Amortized cost represents cost adjusted for deferred fees or
costs, unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans and after deducting any applicable allowance for loan losses.

Loan origination fees, net of direct origination costs, are amortized to Revenue�Interest and dividends as an adjustment to yield over the life of
the loan. Net unamortized deferred fees and costs were ¥552 million and ¥406 million as of March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013, respectively.

See Note 9 �Financing receivables� for further information.

Other receivables�

Receivables from customers include amounts receivable on client securities transactions and Receivables from other than customers include
amounts receivable for securities not delivered to a purchaser by the settlement date, margin deposits, commissions, and net receivables arising
from unsettled securities transactions. The net receivable arising from unsettled securities transactions reported within Receivables from other
than customers was ¥nil and ¥258,604 million as of March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013, respectively.
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These amounts are carried at contractual amounts due less any applicable allowance for credit losses which reflects management�s best estimate
of probable losses incurred within receivables which have been specifically identified as impaired. The allowance for credit losses is reported in
the consolidated balance sheets within the Allowance for doubtful accounts.

Loan commitments�

Unfunded loan commitments are accounted for as either off-balance sheet instruments, or are carried at fair value on a recurring basis either as
trading instruments or through election of the fair value option.

Loan commitments are generally accounted for in a manner consistent with the accounting for the loan receivable upon funding. Where the loan
receivable will be classified as a trading asset or will be elected for the fair value option, the loan commitment is also generally held at fair value,
with changes in fair value reported in the consolidated statements of income within Revenue�Net gain on trading. Loan commitment fees are
recognized as part of the fair value of the commitment.

For loan commitments where the loan will be held for the foreseeable future, Nomura recognizes an allowance for credit losses which is reported
within Other liabilities�other in the consolidated balance sheets which reflects management�s best estimate of probable losses incurred within the
loan commitments which have been specifically identified as impaired. Loan commitment fees are generally deferred and recognized over the
term of the loan when funded as an adjustment to yield. If drawdown of the loan commitment is considered remote, loan commitment fees are
recognized over the commitment period as service revenue.

Payables and deposits�

Payables to customers include amounts payable on client securities transactions and are generally measured at contractual amounts due.

Payables to other than customers include payables to brokers and dealers for securities not received from a seller by the settlement date and net
payables arising from unsettled securities transactions. Amounts are measured at contractual amounts due. The net payable arising from
unsettled securities transactions reported within Payables to other than customers was ¥396,116 million and ¥nil as of March 31, 2012 and
March 31, 2013, respectively.

Deposits received at banks represent amounts held on deposit within Nomura�s banking subsidiaries and are measured at contractual amounts
due.

Office buildings, land, equipment and facilities�

Office buildings, land, equipment and facilities, held for use by Nomura are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization,
except for land, which is stated at cost. Significant renewals and additions are capitalized at cost. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are
expensed as incurred in the consolidated statements of income.
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The following table presents a breakdown of Office buildings, land, equipment and facilities as of March 31, 2012 and 2013.

Millions of yen
March 31

2012 2013
Land ¥ 594,146 ¥ 93,800
Office buildings 235,995 104,320
Equipment and facilities 60,840 52,644
Software 141,069 161,469
Construction in progress 13,900 16,008

Total ¥ 1,045,950 ¥ 428,241

Depreciation and amortization charges are generally computed using the straight-line method and at rates based on estimated useful lives of each
asset according to general class, type of construction and use. The estimated useful lives for significant asset classes are as follows:

Office buildings 5 to 50 years
Equipment and facilities 2 to 20 years
Software Up to 5 years

Depreciation and amortization is reported within Non-interest expenses�Information processing and communications in the amount of
¥52,455 million, ¥54,083 million, ¥55,992 million, and in Non-interest expenses�Occupancy and related depreciation in the amount of
¥23,132 million, and ¥46,489 million, and ¥35,501 million for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively.

Leases that involve real estate are classified as either operating or capital leases in accordance with ASC 840 �Leases� (�ASC 840�). Rent expense
relating to operating leases is recognized over the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the lease is classified as a capital lease, Nomura
recognizes the real estate as an asset on the consolidated balance sheets together with a lease obligation. The real estate is initially recognized at
the lower of its fair value or present value of minimum lease payments, and subsequently depreciated over its useful life on straight-line basis.
Where Nomura has certain involvement in the construction of real estate subject to a lease, Nomura is deemed the owner of the construction
project and recognizes the real estate on the consolidated balance sheets until construction is completed. At the end of the construction period the
real estate is either derecognized or continues to be recognized on the consolidated balance sheets in accordance with ASC 840, depending on
the extent of Nomura�s continued involvement with the real estate.

Long-lived assets, excluding goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the estimated future undiscounted cash flows generated by the asset
is less than the carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying value exceeds its fair value.

Nomura recorded non-cash impairment charges of ¥1,532 million, and ¥3,135 million, and ¥5,455 million substantially related to write-downs of
software, office buildings, land, equipment, facilities, and other assets for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, respectively. The
current year impairment was primarily attributable to a decline in profitability of certain land and buildings. These losses are reported in the
consolidated statements of income within Non-interest expenses�Other and within Other in Nomura�s segment reporting. The revised carrying
values of these assets were based on the estimated fair value of the assets.
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Investments in equity securities�

Nomura holds minority stakes in the equity securities of unaffiliated Japanese financial institutions and corporations in order to promote existing
and potential business relationships. These companies will also often have similar investments in Nomura. Such cross-holdings are a customary
business practice in Japan and provide a way for companies to manage shareholder relationships.

These investments, which Nomura refers to as being held for operating purposes, are carried at fair value and reported within Other
assets�Investments in equity securities in the consolidated balance sheets, with changes in fair value reported within Revenue�Gain (loss) on
investments in equity securities in the consolidated statements of income. These investments comprise listed and unlisted equity securities in the
amounts of ¥69,552 million and ¥18,635 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2012 and ¥84,739 million and ¥38,751 million, respectively, as
of March 31, 2013.

Other non-trading debt and equity securities�

Certain non-trading subsidiaries within Nomura and an insurance subsidiary which was acquired during the year ended March 31, 2012 hold
debt securities and minority stakes in equity securities for non-trading purposes. Non-trading securities held by non-trading subsidiaries are
carried at fair value and reported within Other assets�Non-trading debt securities and Other assets�Other in the consolidated balance sheets with
changes in fair value reported within Revenue�Other in the consolidated statements of income. Non-trading securities held by the insurance
subsidiary are also carried at fair value within Other assets�Non-trading debt securities and Other assets�Other in the consolidated balance sheets,
and unrealized changes in fair value are reported net-of-tax within Other comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. Realized gains and losses on non-trading securities are reported within Revenue�Other in the consolidated statements of
income.

Where the fair value of non-trading securities held by Nomura�s insurance subsidiary has declined below amortized cost, these are assessed to
determine whether the decline in fair value is other-than-temporary in nature. Nomura considers quantitative and qualitative factors including the
length of time and extent to which fair value has been less than amortized cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer and
Nomura�s intent and ability to hold the securities for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. If an
other-than-temporary impairment loss exists, for equity securities, the security is written down to fair value, with the entire difference between
fair value and amortized cost reported within Revenue�Other in the consolidated statements of income. For debt securities, an
other-than-temporary impairment loss is also reported within Revenue�Other in the consolidated statements of income if Nomura intends to sell
the debt security or it is more-likely-than-not that Nomura will be required to sell the debt security before recovery of amortized cost. If Nomura
does not expect to sell or be required to sell the debt security, only the credit loss component of an other-than-temporary impairment loss is
reported in the consolidated statements of income and any non-credit loss component reported within Other comprehensive income (loss) in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

See Note 7 �Non-trading securities� for further information regarding these securities.

Short-term and long-term borrowings�

Short-term borrowings are defined as borrowings which are due on demand, which have a contractual maturity of one year or less at issuance
date, or which have a longer contractual maturity but which contain features outside of Nomura�s control that allows the investor to demand
redemption within one year from
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original issuance date. Short-term and long-term borrowings primarily consist of commercial paper, bank borrowings, and certain structured
notes issued by Nomura and SPEs consolidated by Nomura, and financial liabilities recognized in transfers of financial assets which are
accounted for as financings rather than sales under ASC 860 (�secured financing transactions�). Of these financial liabilities, certain structured
notes and secured financing transactions are accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis through election of the fair value option. Other short
and long-term borrowings are primarily carried at amortized cost.

Structured notes�

Structured notes are debt securities which contain embedded features (often meeting the accounting definition of a derivative) that alter the
return to the investor from simply receiving a fixed or floating rate of interest to a return that depends upon some other variable(s) such as an
equity or equity index, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, credit rating of a third party or more complex interest rate calculation.

All structured notes issued by Nomura on or after April 1, 2008 are carried at fair value on a recurring basis through election of the fair value
option. This blanket election for structured notes is made primarily to mitigate the volatility in the consolidated statements of income caused by
differences in the measurement basis for structured notes and the derivatives used to risk manage those positions and to generally simplify the
accounting Nomura applies to these financial instruments.

Certain structured notes outstanding as of March 31, 2008 were already measured at fair value but others continue to be accounted for by
Nomura by bifurcating the embedded derivative from the associated debt host contract. The embedded derivative is accounted for at fair value
and the debt host contract is accounted for at amortized cost.

Changes in the fair value of structured notes elected for the fair value option and bifurcated embedded derivatives are reported within
Revenue�Net gain on trading in the consolidated statements of income.

Income taxes�

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the expected future tax consequences of tax loss carryforwards and temporary differences
between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities based upon enacted tax laws and tax rates. Nomura recognizes deferred
tax assets to the extent it believes that it is more likely than not that a benefit will be realized. A valuation allowance is provided for tax benefits
available to Nomura that are not deemed more likely than not to be realized.

Nomura recognizes and measures unrecognized tax benefits based on Nomura�s estimate of the likelihood, based on the technical merits, that tax
positions will be sustained upon examination based on the facts and circumstances and information available at the end of each period. Nomura
adjusts the level of unrecognized tax benefits when there is more information available, or when an event occurs requiring a change. The
reassessment of unrecognized tax benefits could have a material impact on Nomura�s effective tax rate in the period in which it occurs.

Stock-based and other compensation awards�

Stock-based awards issued by Nomura to senior management and other employees are classified as either equity or liability awards depending
on the terms of the award.
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Stock-based awards such as Stock Acquisition Rights (�SARs�) which are expected to be settled by the delivery of the Company�s shares are
classified as equity awards. For these awards, total compensation cost is generally fixed at the grant date and measured using the grant-date fair
value of the award, net of any amount the employee is obligated to pay and estimated forfeitures.

Multi-Year Performance Deferral (�MYPD�) awards which contain certain performance conditions are also classified as equity awards because
these are expected to result in the issuance of SARs.

Stock-based awards such as Notional Stock Units (�NSUs�) and Collared Notional Stock Units (�CSUs�) which are expected to be settled in cash are
classified as liability awards. Other awards such as Notional Index Units (�NIUs�) which are linked to a world stock index quoted by Morgan
Stanley Capital International and which are expected to be cash settled are also effectively classified as liability awards. Liability awards are
remeasured to fair value at each balance sheet date, net of estimated forfeitures with the final measurement of cumulative compensation cost
equal to the settlement amount.

For both equity and liability awards, fair value is determined either by using option pricing models, the market price of the Company�s shares or
the price of the third party index, as appropriate. Compensation cost is recognized in the consolidated statements of income over the requisite
service period, which generally is equal to the vesting period. For MYPD awards with performance conditions, compensation expense is also
recognized over the requisite service period to the extent it is probable that the performance conditions will be met. Where an award has graded
vesting, compensation expense is recognized using the accelerated recognition method.

See Note 16 �Deferred compensation plans� for further information regarding these types of awards.

Earnings per share�

The computation of basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings
per share reflects the assumed conversion of all dilutive securities based on the most advantageous conversion rate or exercise price available to
the investors, and assuming conversion of convertible debt under the if-converted method.

Cash and cash equivalents�

Nomura defines cash and cash equivalents as cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.

Goodwill and intangible assets�

Goodwill is recognized upon completion of a business combination as the difference between the purchase price and the fair value of the net
assets acquired. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impairment at a reporting unit level during the
fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or more frequently during interim periods if events or circumstances indicate there may be impairment.
Nomura�s reporting units are at one level below its business segments.

Nomura tests goodwill of each separate reporting unit by initially qualitatively assessing whether events and circumstances indicate that it is
more-likely-than-not (i.e. greater than 50%) that a reporting unit�s fair value is less than its carrying amount. If such assessment indicates fair
value is not less than the carrying value, the reporting unit is deemed not to be impaired and no further analysis is required. If it is
more-likely-than-not that the fair value of the reporting unit is below its carrying value, a quantitative two-step impairment test is then
performed.
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In the first step, the current estimated fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its carrying value, including goodwill. If the fair value is
less than the carrying value, then a second step is performed. In the second step, the implied current fair value of the reporting unit�s goodwill is
determined by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to the fair value of the net assets of the reporting unit, as if the reporting unit were
being acquired in a business combination. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its implied current fair
value.

Intangible assets not subject to amortization are also tested for impairment on an individual asset basis during the fourth quarter of each fiscal
year, or more frequently during interim periods if events or circumstances indicate there may be impairment. The current estimated fair value of
the intangible asset is compared with its carrying value. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying value of the intangible asset exceeds its
estimated fair value. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over current estimated useful lives.

See Note 12 �Other assets�Other/Other liabilities� for further information regarding goodwill and intangible assets.

Nomura�s equity method investments are tested in their entirety for other-than-temporary impairment when there is an indication of impairment.
The underlying assets associated with the equity method investments, including goodwill, are not tested separately for impairment.

Restructuring costs�

Costs associated with an exit activity are recognized at fair value in the period in which the liability is incurred. Such costs include one-time
termination benefits provided to employees, costs to terminate certain contracts and costs to relocate employees. Termination benefits provided
to employees as part of ongoing benefit arrangements are recognized as liabilities at the earlier of the date an appropriately detailed restructuring
plan is approved by regional executive management or the terms of the involuntary terminations are communicated to employees potentially
affected. Contractual termination benefits included in an employee�s contract of employment that is triggered by the occurrence of a specific
event are recognized during the period in which it is probable that Nomura has incurred a liability and the amount of the liability can be
reasonably estimated. A one-time termination benefit is established by a plan of termination that applies to a specified termination event and is
recognized when an appropriately detailed restructuring plan is approved by regional executive management and the terms of the involuntary
terminations are communicated to those employees potentially affected by the restructuring.

New accounting pronouncements adopted during the current year�

The following new accounting pronouncements relevant to Nomura have been adopted during the year ended March 31, 2013:

Goodwill impairment testing

In September 2011, the FASB issued amendments to ASC 350 �Intangibles�Goodwill and Other� (�ASC 350�) through issuance of ASU 2011-08
�Testing Goodwill for Impairment� (�ASU 2011-08�). These amendments simplify goodwill impairment testing by permitting an entity to initially
assess qualitatively whether it is necessary to perform the quantitative two-step goodwill impairment test required by ASC 350. If an entity
determines that it is not more-likely-than-not (i.e. greater than 50%) that a reporting unit�s fair value is less than its carrying amount, the
quantitative test is not required, whereas prior guidance required the quantitative test at least on annual basis.
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ASU 2011-08 is effective prospectively for goodwill impairment tests performed in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011 with early
adoption permitted.

Nomura adopted ASU 2011-08 from April 1, 2012. Because the amendments only simplify when a quantitative test is required rather than
change the quantitative test itself, these amendments have not had, and are not expected to have, a material impact on these consolidated
financial statements.

Presentation of comprehensive income

In June 2011, the FASB issued amendments to ASC 220 �Comprehensive Income� (�ASC 220�) through issuance of ASU 2011-05 �Presentation of
Comprehensive Income� (�ASU 2011-05�). These amendments revise the manner in which entities present comprehensive income in their financial
statements. The amendments remove certain presentation options in ASC 220 and require entities to report components of comprehensive
income in either a continuous statement of comprehensive income or two separate but consecutive statements.

ASU 2011-05 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011 with early adoption
permitted.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12 �Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of
Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05� (�ASU 2011-12�) which deferred certain
aspects of ASU 2011-05.

Nomura adopted ASU 2011-05 from April 1, 2012 excluding those aspects that are deferred by ASU 2011-12. Because these amendments only
change how comprehensive income is presented within these consolidated financial statements rather than changing whether an item must be
reported in other comprehensive income or when an item of other comprehensive income is reclassified to earnings, these amendments have not
had, and are not expected to have, a material impact on these consolidated financial statements.

Future accounting developments�

The following new accounting pronouncements relevant to Nomura will be adopted in future periods:

Testing indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-02 �Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment� (�ASU 2012-02�). These amendments
simplify indefinite-lived intangible assets impairment testing by permitting an entity to initially assess qualitatively whether it is necessary to
perform the current quantitative impairment test required by ASC 350. If an entity determines that it is not more-likely-than-not (i.e. greater than
50%) that an indefinite-lived intangible asset fair value is less than its carrying amount, the quantitative test is not required.

ASU 2012-02 is effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012. Early adoption
is permitted.

Nomura will adopt ASU 2012-02 from April 1, 2013. Because the amendments only simplify when a quantitative test is required rather than
change the quantitative test itself, they are not expected to have a material impact on these consolidated financial statements.
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Disclosures about offsetting assets and liabilities

In December 2011, the FASB issued amendments to ASC 210-20 �Balance Sheet�Offsetting� (�ASC 210-20�) through issuance of ASU 2011-11
�Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities� (�ASU 2011-11�), and issued a related amendment in January 2013 through ASU 2013-01
�Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities� (�ASU 2013-01�). These amendments require an entity to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements to enable users of its financial statements to understand the effect or potential effect
of those arrangements on its financial position.

ASU 2011-11 and ASU 2013-01 are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after January 1, 2013 with
required disclosures made retrospectively for all comparative periods presented.

Nomura will adopt ASU 2011-11 and ASU 2013-01 from April 1, 2013. Because these amendments only require enhanced disclosures rather
than change the guidance around when assets and liabilities can be offset, they are not expected to have a material impact on these consolidated
financial statements.

Reporting of amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income

In February 2013, the FASB issued amendments to ASC 220-10 �Comprehensive Income�Overall� through issuance of ASU 2013-02 �Reporting of
Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income� (�ASU 2013-02�). The amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information about amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income, including changes in accumulated other
comprehensive income balances by component of accumulated other comprehensive income and information about significant items reclassified
out of accumulated other comprehensive income. ASU 2013-02 supersedes the presentation requirements for reclassifications out of
accumulated other comprehensive income in ASU 2011-05 and ASU 2011-12.

ASU 2013-02 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2012, with early adoption
permitted.

Nomura will adopt ASU 2013-02 from April 1, 2013. Because these amendments only require changes in presentation and disclosure of amounts
reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income rather than change the guidance regarding recognition of such amounts, they are
not expected to have a material impact on these consolidated financial statements.

Release of cumulative translation adjustment amounts

In March 2013, the FASB issued amendments to ASC 810-10 �Consolidation�Overall� and ASC 830-30 �Foreign Currency Matters�Translation of
Financial Statements� through issuance of ASU 2013-05 �Parent�s Accounting for the Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of
Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment in a Foreign Entity� (�ASU 2013-05�). The amendments
resolve diversity in practice about whether guidance in ASC 810 or ASC 830 applies to the release of cumulative translation adjustment (�CTA�)
amounts into earnings when a parent sells part or all of its investment in a foreign entity (or no longer holds a controlling financial interest in a
subsidiary).

ASU 2013-05 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013 with early adoption
permitted.
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Nomura currently plans to adopt ASU 2013-05 from April 1, 2014 and is currently evaluating the potential impact it may have on these
consolidated financial statements.

Determination of investment company status

In June 2013, the FASB issued amendments to ASC 946 through issuance of ASU 2013-08 �Amendments to the Scope, Measurement, and
Disclosure Requirements� (�ASU 2013-08�). These amendments change the definition of an investment company, which is an entity that is
required to measure its investments at fair value, including controlling financial interests in investees that are not investment companies. ASU
2013-08 also requires an investment company to measure noncontrolling ownership interests in other investment companies at fair value rather
than using the equity method of accounting and also introduces certain additional disclosures, including information about financial support
provided, or contractually required to be provided, by an investment company to any of its investees.

ASU 2013-08 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013 with early adoption not
permitted.

Nomura will adopt ASU 2013-08 from April 1, 2014 and is currently evaluating the potential impact it may have on these consolidated financial
statements.

2. Fair value measurements:

The fair value of financial instruments

A significant amount of Nomura�s financial instruments are carried at fair value. Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis are
reported in the consolidated balance sheets within Trading assets and private equity investments, Loans and receivables, Collateralized
agreements and Other assets. Financial liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis are reported within Trading liabilities, Short-term
borrowings, Payables and deposits, Collateralized financing, Long-term borrowings and Other liabilities.

Other financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, where the primary measurement basis is not fair
value but where fair value is used in specific circumstances after initial recognition, such as to measure impairment.

In all cases, fair value is determined in accordance with ASC 820 which defines fair value as the amount that would be exchanged to sell a
financial asset or transfer a financial liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It assumes that the
transaction occurs in Nomura�s principal market, or in the absence of the principal market, the most advantageous market for the relevant
financial assets or financial liabilities.

Fair value is usually determined on an individual financial instrument basis consistent with the unit of account of the financial instrument.
However, certain financial instruments managed on a portfolio basis are valued as a portfolio, namely based on the price that would be received
to sell a net long position (i.e. a net financial asset) or transfer a net short position (i.e. a net financial liability) consistent with how market
participants would price the net risk exposure at the measurement date.

Financial assets carried at fair value also include investments in certain funds where, as a practical expedient, fair value is determined on the
basis of net asset value per share (�NAV per share�) if the NAV per share is calculated in accordance with certain industry standard principles.

Increases and decreases in the fair value of assets and liabilities will significantly impact Nomura�s position, performance, liquidity and capital
resources. As explained below, valuation techniques applied contain inherent
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uncertainties and Nomura is unable to predict the accurate impact of future developments in the market. Where appropriate, Nomura uses
economic hedging strategies to mitigate its risk, although these hedges are also subject to unpredictable movements in the market.

Valuation methodology for financial instruments carried at fair value on a recurring basis

The fair value of financial instruments is based on quoted market prices including market indices, broker or dealer quotations or an estimation by
management of the expected exit price under current market conditions. Various financial instruments, including cash instruments and
over-the-counter (�OTC�) contracts, have bid and offer prices that are observable in the market. These are measured at the point within the
bid-offer range which best represents Nomura�s estimate of fair value. Where quoted market prices or broker or dealer quotations are not
available, prices for similar instruments or valuation pricing models are considered in the determination of fair value.

Where quoted prices are available in active markets, no valuation adjustments are taken to modify the fair value of assets or liabilities marked
using such prices. Other instruments may be measured using valuation techniques, such as valuation pricing models incorporating observable
parameters, unobservable parameters or a combination of both. Valuation pricing models use parameters which would be considered by market
participants in valuing similar financial instruments.

Valuation pricing models and their underlying assumptions impact the amount and timing of unrealized and realized gains and losses
recognized, and the use of different valuation pricing models or underlying assumptions could produce different financial results. Valuation
uncertainty results from a variety of factors, including the valuation technique or model selected, the quantitative assumptions used within the
valuation model, the inputs into the model, as well as other factors. Valuation adjustments are used to reflect the assessment of this uncertainty.
Common valuation adjustments include model reserves, credit adjustments, close-out adjustments, and other appropriate instrument-specific
adjustments, such as those to reflect transfer or sale restrictions.

The level of adjustments is largely judgmental and is based on an assessment of the factors that management believe other market participants
would use in determining the fair value of similar financial instruments. The type of adjustments taken, the methodology for the calculation of
these adjustments, and the inputs for these calculations are reassessed periodically to reflect current market practice and the availability of new
information.

For example, the fair value of certain financial instruments includes adjustments for credit risk; both with regards to counterparty credit risk on
positions held and Nomura�s own creditworthiness on positions issued. Credit risk on financial assets is significantly mitigated by credit
enhancements such as collateral and netting arrangements. Any net credit exposure is measured using available and applicable inputs for the
relevant counterparty. The same approach is used to measure the credit exposure on Nomura�s financial liabilities as is used to measure
counterparty credit risk on Nomura�s financial assets.

Such valuation pricing models are calibrated to the market on a regular basis and inputs used are adjusted for current market conditions and
risks. The Global Model Validation Group (�MVG�) within Nomura�s Risk Management Department reviews pricing models and assesses model
appropriateness and consistency independently of the front office. The model reviews consider a number of factors about a model�s suitability for
valuation and sensitivity of a particular product. Valuation models are calibrated to the market on a periodic basis by comparison to observable
market pricing, comparison with alternative models, and analysis of risk profiles.

As explained above, any changes in fixed income, equity, foreign exchange and commodity markets can impact Nomura�s estimates of fair value
in the future, potentially affecting trading gains and losses. Where financial contracts have longer maturity dates, Nomura�s estimates of fair
value may involve greater subjectivity due to the lack of transparent market data.
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Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments measured at fair value, including those carried at fair value using the fair value option, have been categorized into a
three-level hierarchy (�fair value hierarchy�) based on the transparency of valuation inputs used by Nomura to estimate fair value. A financial
instrument is classified in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the
financial instrument. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows, with Level 1 representing the most transparent inputs and
Level 3 representing the least transparent inputs:

Level 1:

Unadjusted quoted prices for identical financial instruments in active markets accessible by Nomura at the measurement date.

Level 2:

Quoted prices in inactive markets or prices containing other inputs which are observable, either directly or indirectly. Valuation techniques using
observable inputs reflect assumptions used by market participants in pricing financial instruments and are based on data obtained from
independent market sources at the measurement date.

Level 3:

Unobservable inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement of the financial instrument. Valuation techniques using unobservable
inputs reflect management�s assumptions about the estimates used by other market participants in valuing similar financial instruments. These
valuation techniques are developed based on the best available information at the measurement date.

The availability of inputs observable in the market varies by product and can be affected by a variety of factors. Significant factors include, but
are not restricted to the prevalence of similar products in the market, especially for customized products, how established the product is in the
market, for example, whether it is a new product or is relatively mature, and the reliability of information provided in the market which would
depend, for example, on the frequency and volume of current data. A period of significant change in the market may reduce the availability of
observable data. Under such circumstances, financial instruments may be reclassified into a lower level in the fair value hierarchy.

Significant judgments used in determining the classification of financial instruments include the nature of the market in which the product would
be traded, the underlying risks, the type and liquidity of market data inputs and the nature of observed transactions for similar instruments.

Where valuation models include the use of parameters which are less observable or unobservable in the market, significant management
judgment is used in establishing fair value. The valuations for Level 3 financial instruments, therefore, involve a greater degree of judgment than
those valuations for Level 1 or Level 2 financial instruments.

Certain criteria management use to determine whether a market is active or inactive include the number of transactions, the frequency that
pricing is updated by other market participants, the variability of price quotes among market participants, and the amount of publicly available
information.
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The following tables present the amounts of Nomura�s financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2012 and
2013 within the fair value hierarchy.

Billions of yen
March 31, 2012

Level 1
Level
2 Level 3

Counterparty
and

Cash Collateral
Netting(1)

Balance as of
March 31, 2012

Assets:
Trading assets and private equity investments(2)
Equities(3) ¥ 745 ¥ 1,194 ¥ 125 ¥ �  ¥ 2,064
Private equity investments(3) �  �  202 �  202
Japanese government securities 2,143 �  �  �  2,143
Japanese agency and municipal securities �  151 10 �  161
Foreign government, agency and municipal securities 3,072 1,185 37 �  4,294
Bank and corporate debt securities and loans for trading purposes �  1,276 62 �  1,338
Commercial mortgage-backed securities (�CMBS�) �  135 8 �  143
Residential mortgage-backed securities (�RMBS�) �  2,010 5 �  2,015
Real estate-backed securities �  1 91 �  92
Collateralized debt obligations (�CDO�) and other(4) �  103 20 �  123
Investment trust funds and other 95 85 9 �  189

Total trading assets and private equity investments 6,055 6,140
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